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FINANCIAL SUMMARY/FINANCIAL REVIEW

BZ12R31HLEE
For the year ended 31 December

20124 20114 2010%F 20094
2012 2011 2010 2009
AR®T AREETTT AREETTT ARBETTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
E4 RESULTS
A Revenue 17,517,266 10,767,254 7,621,374 5,803,275
bR P15 55 B0 7108 Profit before income tax 2,818,161 2,385,215 1,798,143 1,363,510
EfFFEX Income tax expense (1,232,777) (941,284) (747,047) (510,691)
FAFHE Profit for the year 1,585,384 1,443,931 1,051,096 852,819
FEAEFEAFE Attributable to:
KARERFTEA Equity holders of the Company 930,819 886,886 691,843 572,072
eI Non-controlling interests 654,565 557,045 359,253 280,747
1,585,384 1,443,931 1,051,096 852,819
RAREHFERA Earnings per share for profit
FEAE TR B =% 2 F attributable to equity holders
of the Company
ERREE Basic and diluted RMBO.21 RMBO0.21 RMBO0.16 RMBO0.13
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BERE Total assets 40,843,543 36,900,366 28,146,068 16,819,514
BEEE Total liabilities (32,448,516) (31,698,417) (24,392,794) (14,037,090)
8,395,027 5,201,949 3,753,274 2,782,424
RAREZRIZFE AEN Capital and reserves attributable to
AR R (b s equity holders of the Company:
BT RER KRR Issued and fully paid capital 4.617 3,466 - -
i Reserves 5,746,486 3,176,350 2,261,968 1,576,808
5,751,103 3,179,816 2,261,968 1,576,808
FEFEARRE T Non-controlling interests 2,643,924 2,022,133 1,491,306 1,205,616
8,395,027 5,201,949 3,753,274 2,782,424
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2009-2012F T EM B IEELH L

T B 2009 F20125 MR = B0 B HE R H e
R

X Revenue
(AR¥EET) (RMB million)

18,000 17,517
15,000
12,000
9,000
6,000

3,000

2009 2010 201 2012
m YEHE Hits
Sales of Properties Others

TFEIE L 2 Net-Debt-to-Equity Ratio
(%)

140
120

100

o T 127.7%
A 74.9%

20

0

2009 2010 2011 2012

COMPARISON OF KEY FINANCIAL
INDICATORS FROM 2009 TO 2012

The following charts compare the financial indicators of
our performance from 2009 to 2012:
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

BRTIRSBHERIER COMPLETED AND PARTIALLY
COMPLETED PROJECTS
AfAEEHE -
EHAE HEER HESEANEREE FEERER
GFA Available for Sale, Lease Group'’s Interest
Projects Property Type or Use by the Group in the Project
(FFHHK)
(sgq.m.)
M
Changzhou
FEE = 167 51.66%
Fresh Garden Residential
HURETR F= 1,525 51.66%
Zhong Liang Town Residential
7 2= F= 21,039 51.66%
Four Seasons Future Land Residential
ARKE F= 4,486 51.66%
People’s Mansion Residential
IR IR F= 9,764 51.66%
Future Land Scenic Garden Residential
R EL B T= 13,607 51.66%
Future Land Blue Diamond Residential
Y F= 7,373 51.66%
Upper East Residential
I F=E 4,740 93.78%
Fuhan Garden Residential
bEH Ta 3,647 91.62%
Wanbo Fashion Mall Integrated
R E F= 15,828 51.66%
Future Land Splendid Park Residential
- = 12,971 51.96%
Yulong Bay Residential
BIKE = 42,097 53.48%
Geniality Bay Residential
& U EER E5 N 204,445 91.62%
Injoy International Plaza Mixed-use
U EEES NSy 9,033 91.62%
Injoy Lifestyle Plaza Mixed-use
AT F= 958 93.78%
Lakeview Residential

ZZ— 43R 2012 Annual Report ¥4 % B2 KRG MR A 7 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHAREHE

HE HEER HERERANEERR FEERER

GFA Available for Sale, Lease Group's Interest
Projects Property Type or Use by the Group in the Project

(FFHXK)
(sg.m.)

EHES Ta 310,263 91.62%
Injoy Plaza Integrated
MW E T = 83,055 51.66%
Future Capital Residential
LB RN £ 24,874 51.66%
Changzhou New City Residence Residential
© @R T=® 11,238 51.66%
Golden Future Land Residential
MWERS F= 25,654 51.66%
Future Land Long Island Residential
Hip & = 35,149 53.93%
Future Land Southern Metropolis Residential
NHISE T=x 37,211 53.75%
Park No.1 Residential
TS = = 16,364 51.72%
Future Land Emporium Residential
N EI F= 41,678 51.66%
Xincheng Future Town Residential
EINFI A T= 6,472 51.66%
Changzhou Future Land Golden County Residential
fisb;s3
Shanghai
RIS E = 1,897 51.89%
Future Land Scenic Garden Residential
AR E F= 2,120 51.89%
Future Land Maple Garden Residential
B KEEE F= 2,360 51.89%
Clear Water Garden Residential
R R0 F= 3,024 51.89%
Future Land Splendid View Garden Residential
Ak s E E= 9,071 51.89%
Future Land Glorious View Garden Residential
B AR = 51,608 51.89%
Legend Mansion Residential

i 2% R KR AR 2 T Future Land Development Holdings Limited == — =44 %{ 2012 Annual Report
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHAREHE

HE HEER HERERANEERR FEERER

GFA Available for Sale, Lease Group's Interest
Projects Property Type or Use by the Group in the Project

(FFHXK)
(sg.m.)

BT S AR F= 14,328 51.89%
Park View International Community B Residential
1&E I = 14,761 51.89%
Yoho City Residential
g S EA F= 12,876 51.89%
Park View International Community A Residential
i 3Rk T=® 24,272 51.89%
Exalted Uptown Residential
BEE F= 26,424 51.89%
Gorgeous Mansion Residential
AHBERE = 58,049 53.93%
Petrus Hacienda Residential
BR
Nanjing
RS T=E 39 51.89%
Future Land Scenic Garden Residential
i R & T=® 6,450 51.89%
Upper East Residential
i £ 518 51.89%
Lofty Position Residential
B R AT & AP F= 13,017 51.89%
New Golden Town Residential
Eu
Kunshan
3FRE = 43,930 51.89%
Oannes Residential
B2 LB oAk 150 T= 46,091 51.71%
Kunshan Future Land Territory Residential
BN
Suzhou
R FTI 2 AR = 70,350 53.93%
Suzhou Future Land Golden County Residential

ZZ— 43R 2012 Annual Report ¥4 % B2 KRG MR A 7 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

9



ERYEBA
BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

AHAREHE

HE HEER HERERANEERR FEERER
GFA Available for Sale, Lease Group's Interest
Projects Property Type or Use by the Group in the Project
(FFHXK)
(sg.m.)
%)
Wuxi
BRI = 21,228 53.93%
Glorious Century Future Land Residential
ERFEH O NS 79,912 91.71%
East China Home Decor Centre Integrated
EEid =% 78,413 53.93%
Up Town Residential
&S5 1,524,378
Grand Total
BERAEE 1,040,754

Attributable to the Group

10 ¥EBEEZERER AT Future Land Development Holdings Limited —Z — — 44 3f 2012 Annual Report
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

EERFEIEH PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND
HELD FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
EERBR
HH HERR R IAH EEPEEEE 2 SEESEEE FEEOER
Expected GFA Under GFA Under Group’s Interest
Project Property Type Completion Date Development Planning in the Project
(F77K) (F77K)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
M
Changzhou
REIH £ 20145 F4FE - 38,100 51.66%
Golden Future Land Residential Q4 2014
i E A T=E 2013 F4FE 25,503 20,251 53.93%
Future Land Southern Metropolis Residential Q4 2013
LA T= 2013FF4FE - 5,753 93.78%
Lakeview Residential Q4 2013
NEE T 20135 54FE 86,039 - 53.75%
Park No.1 Residential Q4 2013
BHETH AR £ 20155545 % - 239,110 51.66%
New City Residence Residential Q4 2015
RS FE 2016FF4FE - 332,221 51.66%
Future Land Long Island Residential Q4 2016
HTH & FE 20135 F4FE 65,710 - 51.66%
Future Capital Residential Q4 2013
o w = £ 20165525 % 92,032 421,917 51.72%
Future Land Emporium Residential Q2 2016
EMETH 2 T 20145 52FE 72,646 46,333 51.66%
Future Land Golden County Residential Q2 2014
INEIR I FE 20145545 182,142 45,000 51.66%
Xincheng Future Town Residential Q4 2014
B ES Fa 20155 B4FE 24,538 267,056 91.62%
Injoy Plaza Mixed-use Q4 2015
BEH¥E T= 20145835 F 369,074 - 51.89%
Future Consequence Residential Q32014
e F=x 2015 F4FE 291,694 292,401 51.66%
Future France Residential Q4 2015
RENRIMMIEE = 20155 82FE - 125,875 51.66%
Logistics Hub Land Parcel Project Residential Q2 2015
AR RERAEE A 2017 B4EE - 498,946 91.62%
Xitaihu Road East Project Mixed-use Q4 2017
HIEIE B fRe 2018F F2FFE - 1,001,114 95.73%
Hutang Project Mixed-use Q2 2018
Eyayeli T 20155 52FE 290,575 251,298 51.66%
Fragrant Legend Residential Q2 2015
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

HERER
A HEER HEFRIAH EERPEEEE FEEEEE FEBHER
Expected GFA Under GFA Under Group's Interest
Project Property Type Completion Date Development Planning in the Project
(F77K) (F7XK)
(sg.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
Hri5 IR B A 2015 F4FE - 103,785 51.66%
New Airport Road Project Mixed-use Q4 2015
9 o) 20135 B4FE 141,345 - 91.62%
Future Royal Bay Mixed-use Q4 2013
MR 1,641,298 3,689,160
Changzhou Subtotal
k3]
Jintan
REEREEE fRa 2015 F4FE - 43,463 71.64%
Jintan Wanjiantang Project Mixed-use Q4 2015
- - 43,463 -
Jintan Subtotal
&
Shanghai
a2 8 F= 20135825 % 113,638 - 51.89%
Park View International Community B Residential Q2 2013
1&IE TE 2013FF4FE 75,010 - 51.89%
YOHO City Residential Q4 2013
RS ERA F=x 20145 F4FE 94,037 91,130 51.89%
Park View International Community A Residential Q4 2014
3 T=x 20135 F2FE 85,411 - 51.89%
Exalted Uptown Residential Q2 2013
BER Tx 20145 F4FE - 156,912 51.89%
Gorgeous Mansion Residential Q4 2014
REERE Tx 2013FF4FE 102,582 - 53.93%
Petrus Hacienda Residential Q4 2013
ZERE FEx 2013FF4FFE 121,321 106,225 25.95%
Golden Territory Residential Q4 2013
HIERER £ 2015 F4FE - 87,835 51.89%
Hongde Road Project Residential Q4 2015
HIRBEAT1 -4 58 = 20135 F84FE 71,603 - 51.89%
Baiyin Road A11-4 Land Parcel Project Residential Q4 2013
BIKIEE F= 2014584%F - 94,324 51.89%
Yun Chuan Road Project Residential Q4 2014

i 2% R KR AR 2 T Future Land Development Holdings Limited == — =44 %{ 2012 Annual Report



EEYERA

BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

HERER
A HEER HEFRIAH ERTEEER FEEEER FEBHER
Expected GFA Under GFA Under Group's Interest
Project Property Type Completion Date Development Planning in the Project
(FARXK) (FAXK)
(sg.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
HKFERIE B Fx 20155 F2FF - 113,146 51.89%
Rushui South Road Project Residential Q2 2015
52T AA0G- 1 5] T= 20156 F2FE - 139,600 51.89%
Jiading Future Land A06-1 Land Parcel Residential Q2 2015
FEHTMACG- 21 1% T 2015 F2FF - 95,700 51.89%
Jiading Future Land
A06-2 Land Parcel Residential Q2 2015
LigEt 663,602 884,872
Shanghai Subtotal
BR
Nanjing
B 5D FE 2016FF2FF 403,137 277,587 51.89%
Future France Residential Q2 2016
LRI R iR 20155 F4FE - 52,650 51.89%
Hubei Road Project Mixed-use Q4 2015
ER/DE 403,137 330,237
Nanjing Subtotal
Bl
Kunshan
BILER R F=x 20145 F4FE 100,972 334,564 53.93%
Kunshan Future France Residential Q4 2014
HrmEFE RE B R 2015F F4FE - 210,497 72.78%
Kunshan Future Land Territory West Project ~ Mixed-use Q4 2015
Bt 100,972 545,061
Kunshan Subtotal
Wuxi
i R I FE 20145 F2FE 153,677 117,226 53.93%
Up Town Residential Q2 2014
SWRKIER Fx 20145 F4FE - 252,000 53.93%
Jincheng East Road Project Residential Q4 2014
|GG 153,677 369,226

Wouxi Subtotal

ZZ— 43R 2012 Annual Report ¥4 % B2 KRG MR A 7 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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BREAKDOWN OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

HERER
A HEER HEFRIAH EERPEEEE FEEEEE FEBHER
Expected GFA Under GFA Under Group's Interest
Project Property Type Completion Date Development Planning in the Project
(FARXK) (FAXK)
(sg.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
BN
Suzhou
NS T 20136 B4FE 139,395 - 53.93%
Suzhou Future Land Golden County Residential Q4 2013
iy L =% 20145 F4AFE 80,284 176,068 53.93%
Fragrant Legend Residential Q4 2014
EINFIR AR (14 - BETEE ) Tx 20145 F4ZE - 263,538 53.93%
Suzhou Legend Mansion (formerly,
Sujie Project) Residential Q4 2014
M /NEt 219,679 439,606
Suzhou Subtotal
rY
Changsha
Tt B R TE A fRE 2016FF4FE 509,819 944,513 91.62%
Future Land International Metropolis Mixed-use Q4 2016
BDet 509,819 944,513
Changsha Subtotal
HiE
Wuhan
FRE £ 2013 F4FE 184,303 - 91.62%
In Spring Live Residential Q4 2013
BENE 184,303 -
Wuhan Subtotal
At 3,876,488 7,246,138
Grand Total
BEREAEE 2,333,376 4,925,539

Attributable to the Group

i 2% R KR AR 2 T Future Land Development Holdings Limited == — =44 %{ 2012 Annual Report
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CHAIRMAN & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

AANBREFHMEREBRERAA (A28 ]) ERTAA
(B IARER])  ARIMUBEMAIESAEEEZE20124F
12A31BEFEMNEZFELE -

B EEBERER TS

2012FRAEEMREE  HEERN—F  BRELAEE
TRE FHEZRIRE -

RE2012F IRBKACETBABA + KRR BMDIAKINR2012F 11
A2OBEREHMERSMBMR AT (B A Em -
HERERATHED  BREEBERERATRE - XEE
MBEITERE20MNFUREEMSEAENTREEHES
RAREITIEE o N - REBER2013F1A31BTHE
TR2018F RS EAMBIEITNI0.25%BAEE T
REEEBHNEATSSEAHE N - ARERNHNITEE
7o REBER LT RAAEMNXRERE  AAKBIEAER
WETEEE ) - BRASBERERE -

EREREY

RNEB0NFEANBEEEB201MFIERISIEHNAR
16,1349 8L BIEELHm c 2012F HEBEEME
([BE@ME]) 41,856,038F K ([FHXK]) » 820114
A K30.4% -

EHZE2012F12A31BIEFE - AEBEEEER2011FR L
BEH62.7%EARE17,51738E T - BELBREANZL
EH (TR RIEEMEBRFE AR BERKS) 82011FRLL
BEAI195%EHNARBISHET AR REES ([&E
EE|) FERBERESRARKEOSTT  KELERLNAFE
PR R Z LB FBI30% °

On behalf of Future Land Development Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | am
pleased to present the final results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

SUCCESSFUL INTERNATIONAL CAPITAL
MARKET ENTRY

2012 was a fruitful year as the Group continued to grow
and marked an important milestone in its development.

Notwithstanding the global economic uncertainties in
2012, the Company was successfully listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 29 November 2012, which enabled
the Group to tap the international capital markets and
expedite its development. The Group’s initial public offering
was the largest offering of Chinese real estate developers’
in Hong Kong since 2011. The Group also issued USD200
million 10.25% senior notes due in 2018 on 31 January
2013. The success of the initial public offering and debt
offering reflected the Group management’s accurate
assessment of the market and their execution capabilities,
and enhanced the Group’s financial position for its
long-term development.

STRONG GROWTH IN OPERATIONS

In 2012, the Group’s contracted sales rose 15.3% to its
historic high of RMB16,134.9 million. Gross floor area
("GFA") sold totalled 1,856,038 square metres (“sg.m.”),
which surged 30.4% year-on-year.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s
revenue increased by 62.7% to RMB17,517.3 million. Core
earnings (excluding after-tax fair value gains on investment
properties) attributable to shareholders rose 19.5% to
RMB909.5 million. Our board of directors (the “Board”)
has recommended a final dividend of RMBO0.05 per share,
roughly equivalent to a pay-out ratio of 30% of core
earnings attributable to shareholders.

ZZ— 43R 2012 Annual Report ¥4 % B2 KRG MR A 7 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

20125 B &

FRAEMEMSE2011F N EFREFEAE - 2012F
MMBBHEEALE EEEBEMBHEELBRYE &
BHIE2012F 1 EES - TBBREEZSIRENILE - BES
REFE20 FREFUEHETISHTEMEEE L8R
SANRERE - AP RBFABELE  R201268#E78E
EEREREN N EBELCESNRIES K PEAME
EmS T HFEBHREE -

AEERNERUFEER  BRSKENELRE  UE

AREREHREAL - 2012F » AEBERF-EREFEEBE
HEBIER - EER(CIRS B ERE RAE S E e 71 188
BEMERRBMZECERRHEE - UHEE L E

TAEFYER T 2 HERE - 20129 - RMEFE LB - &
MMEZEDRNZERE - AE - FHRIESOEERR

NMEA RoBBREFEERBEANERMAR - BBE
ﬁ [REEERE | XBEN - AEREEHREERYEA

CIRREmNEE XAl
fﬁﬁé/}lb ﬂiTulu@Jﬁiﬂ %q©

ERREMHmEAL  KE

HiH R IZER AR 2T Future Land Development Holdings Limited —

REVIEW OF 2012

The PRC real estate market underwent a downward
market
sentiment continued to be pessimistic in early 2012.
Nonetheless,

adjustment since the second half of 2011,

the Group’s management maintained a
cautiously optimistic view and actively sought opportunities
from the nascent recovery in the latter half of 2012. Since
2011, the central government had continued its tightening
policies to curb the real estate market, and the Group’s
operating environment remained difficult. However, the
government adopted various credit easing measures in
2012 with an aim to stabilizing the economy. This, coupled
with the country’s on-going urbanisation that drove
end-user demand for housing, led to a mild recovery in the
real estate market in mainland China in the latter half of
the year.

The Group is committed to maintaining sustainable growth
and operational excellence to maximise shareholder
In 2012,
operations and mitigating risk through rapid asset
turnover. Streamlined business processes and standardised
product design enabled the Group to shorten the time
from site acquisition to pre-sale and the completion of

returns. the Group focused on improving

properties. This was exemplified by a number of projects
in Shanghai, Suzhou and Wuhan, for which land parcels
were acquired in 2012. In each case, pre-sales began
and generated cash receipts within six months from land
acquisitions. The Group’s on-going focus on

turnover”

“rapid asset
is manifest in the replication of successful
property development projects, faster sales, higher returns
on investment,
risks.

improved cash flow, and lower liquidity

—ZF 4 2012 Annual Report
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CHAIRMAN & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

AEBE2010F M - BB ELNITE T REAERRF
M2EBERTFHRGTE - ARASERZEFRENFA
ZH o WBBYMERSIHPISHEBER RS - LT AEERZX
B ARAIRSTERRENEFOREE @ RRBREE
BRA REEPNEEBEERMEER - RIEFE =R
%ﬁvmu¢%ﬁ5$%lﬁmﬂm%mﬁ%EL%%*
REGEHITEFAEISD  BREITEERKE -

EEMAE  KMABRRESZFEOFREL ey FR -
BEER URH—ERHZENHAE  #E—FBLELTASE
e RMMEEERAEBRAMAZ - 2012F£EEFHHF

_\

o

ERERIERMETANESEZNORR - ZBREREDT
RBREE  mEMEREPHNFER  BEXTRE YRS

TETGRE AKRENEREGZRE  HFMNBDRE - LF
FMEEEE  BEELTEREXNERRENETRLE
R BRTESNEEER BESERAEBIH A%E
(B0 REE T = RERGIILRI - B ENHRIER
TiRARER—aAUNESRENRBERES  TRHEEX &
AEEK BN BT EKBEA RN EESEREEE
TE -

Since 2010, the Group has endeavoured to improve its
service standard for both existing and potential customers.
With our property services team participating in project
planning, design,
procedures, quality and customer satisfaction were greatly

construction audit and inspection

enhanced and operating costs were reduced. The success
of such initiative is reflected in rising repeat patronage
and customer referrals. A third-party study* indicates
that customer satisfaction with the Group’s products and
services was 83 points in 2012, 15 points higher than the
industry average, placing the Group among the industry’s
standard-bearers.

The Group continues to track evolving customer
preferences and carry out detailed product researches. This
has allowed us to enhance product offerings in terms of
flat layout, interior finishing and standardised designs. Our
residential product lines became mature and the Group
realised appreciable improvements in product development
for the medium-density properties in 2012. New product
designs optimise floor space within the plot ratio, cutting
unit costs to meet the needs of a new generation of
customers. This has been instrumental in improving our
price premium per square meter. The Group’'s projects,
including Future France (&#&2XEF) in Nanjing, Fragrant
Legend (& & M) in Suzhou and Future Land Golden
County (¥t £ #F) in Shanghai, were positioned to appeal
to first-time buyers and those who were trading up to
better flats alike and commanded high selling prices. The
Group has developed three major mixed-use complex
product lines under the “Injoy (&1%)” brand. In particular,
our landmark mixed-use projects, Injoy Plaza (B1i/ES)
and Injoy International Plaza (H1REIFEE ) in Changzhou
were opened and established a solid foundation for further
development of “Injoy (E1%)” as a premier commercial
property brand in the country.

* Study by Gallup Consulting
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As a leading property developer in the affluent Yangtze
River Delta region, the Group always focuses on the middle
class segment and seeks to acquire quality land reserves
at competitive costs. We acquired eight parcels of land
in Shanghai, Suzhou and Wuhan in 2012, adding GFA of
1,218,566 sg.m. to our land bank at an average cost of
RMB3,480 per sq.m.. In line with our expansion strategy
of extending coverage from our core Yangtze River Delta
upstream to central China, the Group successfully entered
the Wuhan property market in 2012 on the heels of its
Changsha entry in 2011. By the end of 2012, the Group
had a total of 78 projects in nine major cities (45 of
which were under construction and/or held for future
development), representing a total land bank of GFA of
12,647,004 sq.m., of which 8,299,669 sg.m. is attributable
to the Group. This is sufficient to support the Group’s
plans for large-scale property development over the next
four to five years. Our land reserves are predominately in
economically advanced cities in mainland China. Notably,
our plentiful land bank in Shanghai will strengthen the
Group's leading market position in the city.

The Group remains prudent in its financial management
and emphasizes on maintaining steady cash flow and
ensuring the security of funds. In November 2012, the
Company raised HKD2.056 billion through its initial public
offering which optimised our capital structure. We then
issued USD200 million 10.25% five-year senior notes
in January 2013, which further enhanced liquidity and
improved the Group's debt maturity profile. Our financial
position was further strengthened over the past year as
contracted sales increased. As at the end of 2012, the
Group held RMB6,000.2 million cash at bank and on hand
(including restricted cash) and had RMB6,700 million of
unutilized bank credit facilities. Our net-debt-to-equity
ratio on 31 December 2012 was 57.1%. Maintaining
a sound financial position both undergirds the Group's
operations and assures us of a solid base for future
growth.
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OUTLOOK

Data published in early 2013 indicate that China’s gross
domestic product growth bottomed in the third quarter
of 2012 such that overall growth for 2013 is expected to
be 7.5%. Although growth has slowed, China’s economy
outperformed other major global economies in 2012 as the
country was still in the phase of fast economic expansion.
China’s real estate market is expected to continue to
grow, driven in part by economic development, and in
part by favourable long-term policies such as urbanization.
However, macroeconomic controls to be implemented
by the central government in the short term remain a
challenge to our business operation. Faced with policy
uncertainties and volatile market conditions, we will
continue to consolidate our leading market position and
expand market shares in the Yangtze River Delta region.
Meanwhile, we will adhere to the “Pan-Yangtze River
Delta” regional strategy and selectively expand into cities
with growth potential within our financial means.

We will continue to focus on product innovation that can
command higher price premium while furthering product
design optimisation and standardisation. Additionally,
we will continue to increase the sales of properties with
interior finishing and promote integration of property
design, interior decoration and construction of flats with
an aim to lowering overall costs, reducing carbon emission
and meeting the demand of environment conscious
customers. In terms of cost control, we will strive to
streamline decision making and information dissemination
processes so as to lower administrative expenses. We will
also experiment with new marketing and sales practices
in order to reduce selling costs. We will continue our
endeavour to control the cost of capital, accelerate the
capital turnover of the projects and expand our financing
channels in order to save finance costs.

Despite the uncertain and volatile market environment, we
believe that, through well defined strategies, continued
product standardisation and disciplined cost control,
the Group will continue to grow steadily and generate
increased value to our shareholders.
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APPRECIATION

The success of the Group has been built on the enormous
support from our stakeholders and invaluable contributions
by staff members. On behalf of the Board, | would like to
take this opportunity to express my wholehearted gratitude
to our staff, shareholders, investors, business partners and
customers for their trust and support.

Wang Zhenhua
Chairman and CEO

27 March 2013
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MARKET OVERVIEW

Industry policies and measures implemented by the PRC
government in 2011 that aimed to contain the potential
overheating of the property sector, such as raising
interest rates and bank reserve ratios, property purchase
restrictions, increasing the supply of social housing
units and higher taxes and duties on property transfers,
continued to cause low real estate transaction volumes
and high inventory levels in the first half of 2012. In
view of the challenging market conditions, we responded
strategically by adapting our pricing strategy to focus our
sales efforts on smaller-sized and lower-priced units that
target the mass market segment, which is less impacted by
property purchase restrictions, to achieve our cash receipts
targets. To better capture the opportunities in the volatile
market environment, we adjusted the pace of launching
new projects, strategically selected the right property type
for pre-sale in the then current market and rescheduled
the pre-sale timetable of some of our projects. The PRC
property market began to show signs of recovery towards
the end of the second quarter of 2012, as the credit-easing
policies that were implemented by the PRC government in
early 2012 began to show positive impact. In response to
the improved market conditions, we expedited the pre-sale
schedules of our projects, and increased the supply of our
projects that targeted the inelastic demands in the market.
We achieved our annual pre-sale target for 2012 as a
result, with our contracted sales and GFA sold increased by
15.3% and 30.4%, respectively.

FBRMERE
Petrus Hacienda

ZZ— 43R 2012 Annual Report ¥4 % B2 KRG MR A 7 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

21



22

BB WED T

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MRER

2012F - AEERAHHEERNEARK16,1349B8 T
B0 RA15.3% « HAPIHELEEMIEL,856,038
Tk E2011FE R R L30.4% - A XS ER D HY
o B BN BRNERERNAOEEE (FTEHEEHE)
DRI ABARYEL886. 1B T - ARY6,6208HETT * A
R#1,608. 1TBETMARKI20738ET  DRlEAEH
AKX ETER30.7%  41.7% ~ 10.1%M7.6% ° T FI7
20125 E AR ZESNHEBOAARK 103688 T -
IEAEEENHEELRELN0T% -

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

In 2012, the Group achieved contracted sales of
approximately RMB16,134.9 million, representing an
increase of 15.3% as compared to 2011. The Group sold
approximately 1,856,038 sq.m. in GFA, representing an
increase of 30.4% over 2011. Contracted sales recorded in
different regions were evenly distributed. The contracted
sales in Shanghai, Changzhou, Suzhou and Nanjing were
approximately RMB4,886.1 million, RMB6,620.8 million,
RMB1,608.1 million and RMB1,207.3 million (excluding
carparks), contributing to 30.7%, 41.7%, 10.1% and
7.6% of the Group’s total contracted sales, respectively.
The Group entered Wuhan in 2012, and the contracted
sales in this city amounted to RMB103.6 million,
contributing to approximately 0.7% of the Group’s total
contracted sales.

BMABEZHR
Park No. 1

#7183 R Z R AR A 8 Future Land Development Holdings Limited ==

RO BB TEER
Future Land International Metropolis
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in 2012

the Group’s contracted sales in 2012:

Table 1: Details of contracted sales of the Group

The following table sets out the geographic breakdown of

ERHEEREER ERHER
Contracted Contracted
HEER Project/Properties GFA Sold Sales
(EFRK) (ARBEET
(sgq.m.) (RMB million)

H N Changzhou
EES Injoy Plaza (B i /&%) 115,480.5 850.9
A5 Future Consequence (1% 5) 92,326.0 812.6
FTYk 15 Xincheng Future Town (F73 ) 149,524.2 811.2
BN RE Fragrant Legend (&% #15) 102,309.1 794.9
il Future France (& 22#8) 121,005.3 743.6
¥ Ep Future Land Golden County (3 &F) 56,150.7 731.0
2RE Future Royal Bay (5% 55,295.3 473.7
i ER B Injoy International Plaza (& 15 B E35) 31,029.6 383.1
Tk E R Future Capital (Efis & fi¥) 26,829.4 373.6
NEZENR Park No.1 (REZ5%) 49,041.0 286.3
EIREEES Injoy Lifestyle Plaza (& 1H 4 & &15) 26,550.3 246.1
AR NN New City Residence (Fil A %E) 7,614.7 59.2
BT Lakeview (#BEETK) 1,662.1 20.7
T ERE Future Land Splendid Park (#7354 E2E) 3,525.0 18.7
s E D Future Land Southern Metropolis (74 & #B) 740.7 5.0
e Future Land Scenic Garden (313 i%215) 739.0 4.9
B Geniality Bay (& 7K /&) 551.4 2.9
& BN Golden Future Land (& &) 206.2 1.9
THEE Yulong Bay (EBE/&) 40.7 0.5
B Ef Changzhou Sub-Total 840,621.1 6,620.8

EE Shanghai

FEERE Petrus Hacienda (GRS E2E) 53,072.5 1,550.8
gk & A Park View International Community (& %73 & Z8)* 87,158.0 1,253.0
BES Gorgeous Mansion ([EZ2) 59,943.6 899.9
MabisE it N Shanghai Legend Mansion (/& #7422 £E) 26,889.5 550.8
& _E 3 Exalted Uptown (i&_E3) 49,645.6 539.0
& TE I YOHO City (4&EHR) 6,753.3 91.6
RN Clear Water Garden (j&7KFEE]) 92.0 1.0
Way-2/\¥a Shanghai Sub-Total 283,554.5 4,886.1
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Contracted Contracted

HEER Project/Properties GFA Sold Sales
(FFkK) (AREBET

(sg.m.) (RMB million)

[ Nanjing

Ei 5 A Future France (&5 5#8) 98,686.3 738.0
AT 2 BB Nanjing Future Land Golden County (F 5 ¥4k £ ZB) 43,765.1 469.3
ARt Nanjing Sub-Total 142,451.4 1,207.3
B Suzhou

RN T & BB Suzhou Future Land Golden County (FrM ¥7¥% & Z8) 131,409.2 1,088.7
EpinE il Future France (7 i 5 EB) 61,881.3 407.4
BimwE Fragrant Legend (&& #15) 11,174.8 110.0
FTYk A Future Land Territory (¥735%) 309.8 1.7
FRE Oannes (3522 %) 100.1 0.3
M Et Suzhou Sub-Total 204,875.1 1,608.1
& Wuxi

eV Up Town (14 3R HEE) 85,999.9 652.4
ERREH ] East China Home Decor Centre ((EERZREH 1)) 23,878.5 281.0
R S I Glorious Century Future Land (B tt3i) 523.3 3.1
EF At Wuxi Sub-Total 110,401.6 936.4
Y Changsha

i BIpR TE ED Future Land International Metropolis (¥73 BB 7E#B) 134,523.2 531.4
R D&t Changsha Sub-Total 134,523.2 531.4
HE Wuhan

BERE In Spring Live (FX&) 14,113.1 103.6
HZE )t Wuhan Sub-Total 14,113.1 103.6
B Car parks 125,498.5 241.2
st Total 1,856,038.5 16,134.9
i Note:

* BIE LIS EA - B S EB R A IREA -4 5018 B A KB E * Included contracted sales from Park View International Community

A (LIS # £ EBA), Park View International Community B (8 3
4 %0B) and Baiyin Road A11-4 Land Parcel Project (H#EFSA11-44
RIEA)
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As at 31 December 2012, the total land bank of the Group

approximately 12,647,004 sg.m. or approximately

8,299,669 sg.m. on an attributable basis. The average

acquisition cost of our land bank was approximately
RMB1,761 per sq.m. The geographic spread of the land
bank of the Group was as follows:

Table 3: Breakdown of land bank of the Group

IEAREE rEERER

BEEEE rEERER EEEE

BEEME [ERa04 BEEMEE Aokt

Percentage of

GFA GFA

Percentage of Attributable Attributable

the Group’s to the Group’s to the Group’s

W City Total GFA Total GFA interests interests

(FFFK) % (FFFK) %

(sgq.m.) % (sq.m.) %

BN Changzhou 6,274,097 49.6% 4,276,723 51.5%

i Shanghai 1,769,263 14.0% 862,322 10.4%

[E2p Nanjing 753,398 6.0% 390,938 4.7%

mi5 Wuxi 702,457 5.6% 409,026 4.9%

#RN Suzhou 729,636 5.8% 393,492 4.7%

Bl Kunshan 736,054 5.8% 434,713 5.2%

B9 Changsha 1,454,332 11.5% 1,332,459 16.1%

18 Jintan 43,463 0.3% 31,137 0.4%

Bz Wuhan 184,303 1.5% 168,859 2.0%

&a&t Total 12,647,004 100% 8,299,669 100%

BT - Note:

FHHRAE The table above excluded:

SRAE  LEBZHEHERBARAR (HMNBEQR) MENER -

B e

BHRIAR  ZBEEBRBIXRAEE  SROBERSHIEAEER -
BEFTAM AR - mEMIHEERRER -

Golden Territory (& 4%813), a project being developed by Shanghai
Wanzhicheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (/88 2 #EH0ERH
AR AF]), our associated company.

Changxin Road Project (E#7#IEH), which comprises an industrial
complex that we are holding for future development upon obtaining

the necessary approvals to re-zone the site for commercial use.
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Acquired through government public tender, auction or
listing-for-sale acquisition, the remaining one property
project was acquired through the purchase of equity
interests in a property company. The Group acquired
approximately 1,218,566 sq.m. of land to replenish
our land bank whilst the average acquisition cost was
approximately RMB3,480 per sg.m.

Table 4: Land acquisition from January to
December 2012

BHE /5 T AR PR WEERE BEREERE 1 FHLEA
Attributable Average Unit
Project/Land Parcel Land Use Interest Site Area Total GFA  Land Premium Land Cost
% (FAK) (FAK) (AR¥BER) (BYAKRARE)
% (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (RMB million) (RMB per sg.m.)
Lif
Shanghai
BEREEA-410 35 F=E 51.89% 35,259 71,603 3112 5,516
Baiyin Road A11-4 Land Parcel Project Residential
(BIRFEA1-41358)
B)II%IEE FE 51.89% 64,911 94,324 342.5 3,740
Yun Chuan Road Project (22)I| %8 E) Residential
FEFMACL-11 3% TE 51.89% 48,569 139,600 757.9 7,802
Jiading Future Land A06-1 Land Parcel Residential
(BEFHA0G-11052)
ETEFIMACG-211% TE 51.89% 32,186 95,700 489.5 7,604
Jiading Future Land A06-2 Land Parcel Residential
(BEFHA06-2105%)
HKERIER = 51.89% 38,366 113,146 495.1 6,055
Rushui South Road Project (#i7K@ %8 H)  Residential
BN
Suzhou
HNERBE = 53.93% 74,810 256,352 720.0 3,850
Suzhou Fragrant Legend (&7 &% 18) Residential
HMFHAE (14 BEIER) € 53.93% 82,596 263,538 765.0 4,027
Suzhou Legend Mansion (formerly, Sujie Residential
Project) (BRMETI R EB(RI & : BRATEE))
RiE
Wuhan
E=N F=E 91.62% 61,689 184,303 359.0 2,328
In Spring Live (FXE) Residential
CL)
Total 438,385 1,218,566
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REVENUE

Our revenue comprises income from sale of properties
and, to a lesser extent, property management, rental
and other property related services earned during the
year. Our revenue increased by 62.7%, to approximately
RMB17,517.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2012 from approximately RMB10,767.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2011. This increase was primarily
attributable to a 62.3% increase in our property sales and
our rental income. The increase in property sales in 2012
is attributable to a 62.2% increase in GFA delivered and
a 18.5% increase in recognized average selling price per
sq.m. in 2012.

Table 5: Breakdown of revenue in 2012

20124 1hLE 20114 ey d

2012 Proportion 2011 Proportion

HEMERA Revenue from sale 17,341,932 99.00% 10,688,562 99.27%
of properties

MEEERIA Revenue from property 121,469 0.69% 72,088 0.67%
management

AE WA Rental income 35,620 0.20% 4,960 0.05%

Hitb Others 18,245 0.10% 1,644 0.02%

17,517,266 100.00% 10,767,254 100.00%

85 R TR
Glorious Century Future Land

MR A AR
Changzhou New City Residence
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A B AR
Nanjing Future France

MEHEHERA
202 AEEBEMEHEERADEARE17,341.9
HETT B2011FEEL62.2% « ST ELEEmMBELD
1,912,223 75K - 2012F ABRFHHEBR N AT F T K
AR#9,069.07T °

REVENUE FROM SALE OF PROPERTIES

In 2012, revenue from sale of properties by the Group
was approximately RMB17,341.9 million, representing
an increase of 62.2% over 2011. The Group delivered
approximately 1,912,223 sq.m. of property in GFA terms.
Recognized average selling price was RMB9,069.0 per
sq.m. in 2012.
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The following table sets forth the revenue information

relating to the properties we delivered for sale during

2012:

Table 6: Breakdown of property development
revenue by projects in 2012

HE W 'ON EEmE FHEE
Average
Project City Revenue GFA Selling Price
(ARBBET) CEAK)  (BEFRRARE)
(RMB million) (sgq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
BEE ai! 1,606.1 125,414 12,807
Gorgeous Mansion (IE% ) Shanghai
bR ekl = 1,276.2 102,556 12,444
Future Land Golden County (¥ & &F) Changzhou
i N 1,228.3 230,531 5,328
Xincheng Future Town (¥74 1) Changzhou
=R BN 1,337.3 190,560 7,018
Injoy Plaza (B 1i/&E%) Changzhou
BRI 2 AR #RN 1,156.8 142,376 8,125
Future Land Golden County (BRI £ EF) Suzhou
REERE £5 1,129.0 41,926 26,928
Petrus Hacienda (FREIZE 22 [E)) Shanghai
NEZ5 N 1,082.7 207,475 5,219
Park No.1 (REIZR) Changzhou
B ez 1,065.3 78,666 13,542
YOHO City (4&5E %) Shanghai
R R AR F 1,058.9 97,861 10,821
New Golden Town (Fg R ¥ &) Nanjing
BIKE =N 1,047.7 208,101 5,035
Xincheng Geniality Bay (7K /&) Changzhou
IS AR i 935.7 46,256 20,229
Legend Mansion (/8% A £) Shanghai
B % M 848.8 61,458 13,812
Injoy International Plaza (& 1% BB E15) Changzhou
i 458 adi! 731.0 57,587 12,694
Exalted Uptown (/& _E3%) Shanghai
i B HE ] £:327) 683.3 77,844 8,777
Up Town (14 3R FEE) Wuxi
E AR RS ais! 564.7 54,672 10,329
Injoy Lifestyle Plaza (B 1R 4)E &) Changzhou
HbIA B 1,589.9 188,939 9,033
Other projects
VEHEST 17,341.9 1,912,223 9,069

Total from sale of properties
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Of the properties we had pre-sold, a total GFA of
approximately 1,688,800 sg.m. with total pre-sale revenue
of approximately RMB13,561 million, had not been
delivered as at 31 December 2012. This laid a foundation
for a steady growth in the Group’s revenue for the year to
come.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

In 2012, the Group had investment properties of 306,598
sq.m. that have already commenced operation, and
rental income from these investment properties was
approximately RMB23.6 million. This was mainly derived
from the completion of two new shopping malls, namely,
Injoy Plaza and Injoy International Plaza, which successively
commenced operations in 2012, and from Four Seasons
Future Land Commercial Complexes (PO Z #7374 4§), a
project that was completed in December 2004.

The Group did not hold any other significant investments
except for the aforementioned investment properties as at
31 December 2012. Save as aforementioned, the Group
has no current plan to develop other investment properties
or acquire or hold any other significant investments.

EMENES
Injoy Plaza

EME B ES
Injoy International Plaza
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Table 7: Breakdown of rental income from
investment properties of the Group in 2012

BZ12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December
201245 20114
2012 2011
ARET T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
HEWA Rental income
PO Z= 5T o Four Seasons Future Land Commercial Complexes 370 445
EiES Injoy Plaza 22,881 -
SR ES Injoy International Plaza 383 -
&t Total 23,634 445
$HE KA COST OF SALES

HENATZEERMEDMEREEHULBAENDESE
BEBREREENNAN - SHERABIEERKA « Lib
AR - EEHMMME - EARCF B REMEBEK
Ko BRFIEEKABEZ201MF12A31BHIEEFENAR
7,743 7B E LIS 5% EH E2012F12A31H IEFE
PARME13,587. 4B 8T - HERAENEZZHRKME
E202FNAMHEFERNNSF KL AKE L
o RFEARNEEEBESF A REER AR FEER
EFEIE INFTEL o

Cost of sales consists primarily of the costs we incurred
directly in relation to our property development activities as
well as our leasing and property management operations.
Cost of sales includes construction costs, land use rights
costs, business tax and surcharges, capitalised interest and
other business costs. Our cost of sales increased by 75.5%
to approximately RMB13,587.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2012 from approximately RMB7,743.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2011. This increase was
primarily attributable to the significant increases in the
land acquisition costs per square meter of GFA delivered,
as well as increases in construction costs per square meter
of GFA delivered and total GFA delivered in the year ended
31 December 2012.
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The following table sets forth information relating to our
cost of sales for the years indicated:
Table 8: Breakdown of our cost of sales

BZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December

201268
20114
20125 20114 (A b & &)
Percentage
increase/
(decrease)
in 2012
2012 2011 versus 2011
AR%TR ARBTTT %
RMB’000 RMB’'000 %
T b {5 AR AR Land use rights costs 4,025,794 1,634,569 146.3%
R Construction costs 7,684,444 4,640,411 65.6%
B AR Capitalised interest 732,328 398,288 83.9%
BEWEWINE Business tax and surcharges 977,980 600,515 62.9%
AR EREMER Accrual of provision for properties
B held for sale - 398,726 -100.0%
Hf> Other expenses 166,825 71,178 134.4%
13,587,371 7,743,687 75.5%
EREEEEARE Total GFA delivered
(FFFHXK) (sgq.m.) 1,912,223 1,396,916 36.9%
BEESFAKFHRAR Average cost per sq.m. sold
(ARE) * (RMB)* 6,507 4,777 36.2%
CDESFEHKEHERE Average selling price per sq.m. sold
(ARE) (RMB) 9,069 7,652 18.5%
FHRAEFHEER Average cost as % of average selling
Bkt price 71.7% 62.4% 14.9%
* BIEARNFEHXAERMYEHEENTHXRNE (FREBERMAOEERY * Average cost per sq.m. sold refers to the average cost of our

EEREE)  NFNRERAK - 1 AR K E AT A @R
AFEANE R @EEEASS -

property sales (excluding our leasing and property management
operations) and is derived by dividing the sum of construction
costs, land use rights costs and capitalised interest for a year by the

total GFA delivered in that year.
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RPN TEFAEET2011F12A318ELFEHARE3,023.6
BETIEMN30.0%E & E20126F12831H IEEEHARKE
3,9299B B L AEEE E2012F 128318 L FEHE
FEREL22.4% » MEBZE2011F 128318 IEFEREREL
28.1%  EFERMBLETERAREME2012FXMWES
SRR A AN DA R AR S e8I AR IR X P19 BB
R RIBEFTE °

REVMELAABERSE

BMFAETFES TRHEDE  UBRRASKRASITEER
BE - PINMSEEE  BYESREEM - RMIEEWE
FFERBILYEGHBEMETHE - RPIEEDENFERE
BERNEREHMNBERTFERAAABERKENEE - #2
202FN2AMBALEFEREMERBEREAARKEII T
B WEYWEGBEREAR - TERHAN)2012F I &EH
B EWE  RNEMBBEOMBEEEREME (FiHE
BRESMEIRES) WETHEeBRRAFERE2011FAEL
REGFF -

SHEME H AR
HEMSEKABAEZT20MFENANBUHEFEFENARE
388.1EELIENM22.4% 2 & £2012F 12 A31HIEFELHA
R¥47498 8T - HEMEHKAEMEZERARKME
026N B ZIBEBEMTRNES - HEMSNEEH
I INFTE ©

GROSS PROFIT

Our gross profit increased by 30.0% to approximately
RMB3,929.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2012 from approximately RMB3,023.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2011. The Group reported a gross
profit margin of approximately 22.4% for the year ended
31 December 2012 as compared to approximately 28.1%
for the year ended 31 December 2011. The decrease
in gross profit margin was primarily attributable to the
increase in land acquisition cost and construction cost per
square metre, which outweighed the increase in average
selling price, of the properties we delivered in 2012 in our
projects.

FAIR VALUE GAINS ON
PROPERTIES

We develop and hold certain of our commercial properties

INVESTMENT

such as retail shops, shopping malls and car parks for rental
income or capital appreciation. Our investment properties
are appraised annually by an independent property
valuer. Any appreciation or depreciation in our investment
property value is recognised as fair value gains or losses
in our consolidated statements of income. Valuation gains
on investment properties was approximately RMB31.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2012. Valuation
gains on investment properties were limited as (i) no new
investment properties were developed in 2012, and (ii) the
estimated rental rates and occupancy rates (as applicable)
for two major investment properties we hold, namely,
Injoy International Plaza and Injoy Plaza, remained flat as
compared to 2011.

SELLING AND MARKETING COSTS

Selling and marketing costs increased by 22.4% to
approximately RMB474.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2012 from approximately RMB388.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2011. The increase was
primarily attributable to an increase in sales commissions,
advertising and publicity expenses incurred as we launched
more projects for pre-sale in 2012.

ZZ— 43R 2012 Annual Report ¥4 % B2 KRG MR A 7 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

33



BB WED T

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ITHFAX

THEXHEZE201MF12A31B EFEHAREA6598 8
TTIEIN22.3% EEE2012F12A31 B ILFEHARES569.9
BT THAZEMFEZRHANE TAZSENARE TH
BHACEIR S E BB TAAEI - A RIS R 20124 £
RERBEEENZEERI2011FEM -

Rl & R AN B
BAMBMEXNANE B EERITERNEAIREL O SR
THMBRENMEFEMPHEBA KNS - HIBEMEEEN
EBRAEETENME EUEERBERE B TEEYA
REBENZEEREMTNESAR - BREKABEHZE2011
F1N2ABULEFEHNARBIZCAABLRDI1I7TA%ERSE
202F12A3MBUEFEHNARBINNTIEE T - BEKAR
LEERAREE2012F12A31B I EEZRHIRSHF
ERARGFREAELL2011FE 0 - BBERITF ZUGANABF)
B AN -

PR <

RPN EHRASEEFEAN T IBER ([LhEER]) &
- RESEMSRAELEEE - ISR AEZE2011
F1I2A318IEFEMARBIM IEETEMII.ONEEE
2012F12A3MBIEFEHARKE1,232.8EE T - Fif3iiH
TIEINEZRHR2012FHRMNATYEL N - BHERE
ZWATFE « 5| BRI AR Tt I8 E ARG 0 o

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses increased by 22.3% to
approximately RMB569.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2012 from approximately RMB465.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2011. The increase was
primarily attributable to an increase in staff costs resulting
from an increase in our staff headcount, salary levels of
our staff as well as professional fees incurred in connection
with the listing and the global offering of our shares in
2012, as compared with 2011.

FINANCE COSTS — NET

Our finance costs primarily consist of interest expenses
on bank loans and trust financing arrangements less
capitalised interest and finance income. Interest on
borrowings relating to project development is capitalised
to the extent they are directly attributable to a
particular project and used to finance the development
of that project. Finance costs decreased by 17.4%, to
approximately RMB111.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2012 from approximately RMB135.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2011. This decrease
was primarily attributable to an increase in interest
income on increased bank deposits that resulted from an
increase in restricted cash with higher interest rate than
current deposit for the year ended 31 December 2012 as
compared with 2011.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Our income tax expense includes provisions made for land
appreciation tax (“LAT"), PRC corporate income tax and
deferred income tax during the year. Income tax expense
increased by 31.0% to approximately RMB1,232.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012 from RMB941.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2011. The increase
was primarily due to the increase in our LAT in 2012 as
a result of the increase in our properties delivered and
therefore more revenue and profit was recognised during
the same period.
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BERNARREZFEEANFRABEEZ2011F12A8318 1
FEHARKE1,44398 B L MNI.8%EE E2012F12 A
BMBEIEFEHAREE1,585.488 7T °

BERADREREE ANZLERN (T RIEEDMERT
BRARBEKR) AEE2011FE1N2A3MBIEEEHARE
760.9E BT MN19.5% EEHE2012F 12831 HIEFELHA
R#909.58 &L - BMIEMELE B S AEBAFRA LR
([ BRAEHRE|) FERFEFKFE - R2012F - K&
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BERSNTMIET AREAERTER
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20129128318 - AEBEMRITEFERS (BEXR
HI3R2) A2011F12A31HHNAREAS,536. 188 T
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SEEYNERMER20M1EI12A31BHOARKL 221688
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RE115.0687C °

BREGEHE - REANE L BERE

AEMNATAR (RRERE - RENXLAER
Yegt) B INETME

T FRAEHRE X 100%

BEAMEAA BEKRFRERREIERL IS (BREEFFHEH
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
increased by 9.8% to approximately RMB1,585.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012 from approximately
RMB1,443.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Core profit (excluding post-tax fair value gains on
investment properties) attributable to equity holders of
the Company increased by 19.5% to RMB909.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012 from approximately
RMB760.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2011.
Benefited from its prudent operation management, the
Group has maintained a high level of net return on equity*
(“net ROE"). In 2012, the Group's net ROE reached 26.6%
(2011: 29.9%), ensuring steady returns to shareholders in
the volatile market.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

Cash position

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s cash at bank and
on hand (including restricted cash) increased by 32.3%
to approximately RMB6,000.2 million from approximately
RMB4,536.1 million as at 31 December 2011. the carrying
amount of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents increased
by 14.9% to approximately RMB4,852.1 million as at 31
December 2012 from approximately RMB4,221.6 million
as at 31 December 2011. For the year ended 31 December
2012, the Group had net cash generated from operating
activities of approximately RMB1,062.6 million, net cash
used in investing activities of approximately RMB546.9
million and net cash generated from financing activities of
approximately RMB115.0 million.

Net profit attributable to shareholders - fair
value gains on investment properties**
Weighted average of (shareholders' equity - fair ~ x100%

= Net return

on equity = . ‘ .
qury value gains on investment properties**)
for the current and prior period
o The amount of fair value gains on investment properties represents

the pro rata portion attributable to shareholders using net profit
attributable to shareholders as a percentage of total net profit for

the period.
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Borrowings and charges on the Group’s assets

Our outstanding current and non-current borrowings
from bank and trust financing arrangements amounted
to RMB9,640.1 million as at 31 December 2012, of which
approximately RMB5,130.4 million is repayable within 1
year, approximately RMB2,700.7 million is repayable after
1 year but within 2 years, approximately RMB1,359.0
million is repayable after 2 years but within 5 years and
approximately RMB450.0 million is repayable after 5 years.
Our current, non-current borrowings from bank and trust
financing arrangements decreased from RMB10,866.6
million as at 31 December 2011 primarily as we paid off
some of our trust financings in 2012.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s bank loans of
approximately RMB7,452.8 million were secured by one
or a combination of the following methods: land to be
developed, properties under development, properties held
for sale, investment properties, shares of our subsidiaries,
bank deposits and/or guarantees by our subsidiaries. Our
bank borrowings are from major commercial banks, all of
which are independent third parties.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s trust financings
of approximately RMB2,187.3 million are secured by
certain properties and/or shares of our subsidiaries. Our
trust financing arrangements are made with major trust
financing companies, all of which are independent third
parties.

The weighted average effective interest rates for the
Group’s bank borrowings and trust financing arrangements
as at 31 December 2012 was 6.76% and 13.50%,
respectively.
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Net debt-to-equity ratio

Our net debt-to-equity ratio was 57.1% as at 31 December
2012. Net debt-to-equity ratio equals net debt divided by
total equity as at the end of the period and multiplying
by 100%. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents. Our net debt-to-equity ratio
decreased from 127.7% as at 31 December 2011 primarily
due to an increase in our total equity subsequent to our
global offering and listing of our shares on 29 November
2012 and the fact that we reduced our outstanding trust
financing arrangements to reduce finance costs while our
bank borrowings remained relatively stable.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Pursuant to the mortgage contracts, banks require us to
guarantee our purchasers’ mortgage loans. Guarantees for
mortgages on pre-sold residential properties are generally
discharged at the earlier of: (i) the property ownership
certificates are submitted to the mortgagee banks, or (ii)
the settlement of mortgage loans between the mortgagee
banks and the purchasers. If a purchaser defaults on a
mortgage loan, we may have to repurchase the underlying
property by paying off the mortgage. If we fail to do so,
the mortgagee bank may auction the underlying property
and recover any shortfall from us as the guarantor of the
mortgage loan. As at 31 December 2012, our material
contingent liabilities in respect of the guarantees given
to financial institutions for mortgage loan facilities
granted to purchasers of our properties amounted to
approximately RMB3,993.7 million (as at 31 December
2011: approximately RMB3,970.8 million).

There are certain corporate guarantees provided by our
subsidiaries for each other in respect of borrowings as at
31 December 2012. The directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) consider that the subsidiaries are sufficiently
financially resourced to settle their obligations.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, we had no other
material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2012.
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012, the fair value of the Group’s
available-for-sale financial assets increased by 16.1%
to approximately RMB181.2 million from approximately
RMB156.0 million as at 31 December 2011. The increase
is mainly attributable to the Group’s acquisition of
available-for-sale financial assets in 2012 that amounted
to approximately RMB25.2 million. There had been
no significant change in the fair value of the Group’s
available-for-sale financial assets as at 31 December 2012
from the acquisition cost.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had cash balances
denominated in Renminbi of approximately RMB5,665.0
million, in Hong Kong dollars of approximately RMB333.4
million and in US dollars of approximately RMB0.047
million.

Almost all of the Group's operating activities are carried
out in the PRC with most of the transactions denominated
in Renminbi. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
arising from the exposure of Hong Kong dollars against
Renminbi as a result of cash in Hong Kong dollars or US
dollars. As the deposits are temporarily in Hong Kong
dollars and will be converted into Renminbi fairly quickly
for the operation of the subsidiaries, the Director believes
the Group’'s exposure to foreign exchange risk in this
regard is not significant.

In January 2013, we issued bonds of USD200 million to the
international capital market at a reasonable interest rate
of 10.25% with a tenor of 5 years to secure healthy and
sound cash flow for the Group in the future. The Group’s
credit ratings are BB- (Standard & Poor) and B+ (Fitch)
with a stable rating in its outlook. As a result of the bond
issuance, we became exposed to foreign currency risk
arising from the exposure of US dollars against Renminbi.

In addition, Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies and the conversion of Renminbi into foreign
currencies is subject to rules and regulations of the foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
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We do not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the Directors monitor our foreign exchange
exposure closely and may, depending on the circumstances
and trend of foreign currency, consider adopting significant
foreign currency hedging policy in the future.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the year ended 31 December 2012, we did not
have any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates or assets.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Directors confirmed that as at the date of this annual
report, there are no current plans to acquire any material
investment or capital assets other than in the Group's
ordinary business of property development.

EMPLOYEES AND COMPENSATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2012, we had 4,127 full-time
employees in the PRC and Hong Kong. 1,602 of these
employees worked in the property development operations
and 2,525 are engaged in property management, customer
services and other related operations.

We remunerate our employees based on their performance,
work experience and the prevailing market wage level.
The total compensation of the employees consists of base
salary, performance-linked rewards and other cash benefits.
We have established performance appraisal system so as to
evaluate the performance of our employees on an annual
basis and use the evaluation results to determine their
salary increment or promotion accordingly.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wang Zhenhua (E#x%), or Chairman Wang', aged 51,
is our chairman, executive Director and chief executive
officer. Chairman Wang began engaging in property
development business in China in 1993. Chairman Wang
founded the business of the Group and has been the
chairman of the board of directors of Future Land Holdings
Co., Ltd ("Future Land Holdings"”) since 1996. In
2001, Chairman Wang became chairman of the board of
directors of Jiangsu Future Land Co., Ltd (“Jiangsu Future
Land”), a subsidiary of the Group that engages principally
in residential property development and the B-shares of
which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock
code: 900950). In 2008, he founded Future Land Wanbo
Property Co., Ltd (“Future Land Wanbo"), which focuses
on the development of mixed-use complex project.
Chairman Wang graduated from Jiangsu Broadcast and
Television University (T# E & ERAEZ) with a diploma in
mechanical engineering in August 1983, and from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business (F;TREET) with an
EMBA degree in July 2005. Chairman Wang currently
serves as an executive committee member of the All-
China Federation of Industry and Commerce (FE2ET
BB AE), and as a vice-president of China Real Estate
Chamber of Commerce (FEZXHTHEM S SFHED
). Chairman Wang was named “National Model Worker”
by the State Council in 2010 and was appointed as a
representative of Jiangsu Province for the National People’s
Congress of the PRC in January 2013.

1 Chairman Wang had been managing our Group's business and
overall strategic planning since its establishment. Our Directors
consider that the vesting of the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer in Chairman Wang is beneficial to the business
prospects and management of the Group. Accordingly, the
Company had not segregated the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer as required by Code Provision A.2.1 of Appendix

14 of the Listing Rules.
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Min Yuansong (B32#2), aged 38, is our executive Director.
Mr. Min joined the Group in 2000. Between 2001 and
2004, he served as assistant president of Jiangsu Future
Land, where he was responsible for marketing in its
Wujing branch. Between 2004 and 2007, he served as vice
president of Jiangsu Future Land, where he was responsible
for project development of the Future Land Southern
Metropolis project, and gained valuable experience in
project management. Between May 2007 and June 2010,
Mr. Min was appointed as a director and the vice president
of Jiangsu Future Land, where he was responsible for
marketing. Since June 2010, Mr. Min has been a director
and vice president of Future Land Holdings, overseeing
our mixed-use complex development business principally
carried out by Future Land Wanbo. Mr. Min graduated
from Wuhan University (E£X2) with a bachelor’s degree
in science in 1997 and a master’s degree in economics in
2000. He qualified as a Senior Economist (&AL EEM) in
2004. Mr. Min graduated from China Europe International
Business School with a Master of Business Administration
degree in 2007.

Liu Yuanman (2/JR®), aged 55, is our executive Director
and head of the strategic investment centre. Mr. Liu joined
the Group in 2006 and was appointed as a vice president
of Future Land Wanbo in 2010 and vice president of
Future Land Holdings in 2011. He is responsible for the
engineering and construction of the Group’s mixed-
use complexes. Mr. Liu graduated from Changzhou
Construction Vocational University (% /N M 2 £ 8 T K
£) with a diploma in industrial and civil engineering in
May 1984. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu worked in
Changzhou Marine Products Co., Ltd. (FMH/KERF])
between 1984 and 1995 and served as general manager
and chairman of Changxin Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (B{EREMEFZEERAF) between 1995 and 2002
and general manager of Wuxi Jintaihu Real Estate Limited
Company (€ KHFEMERMZEBRAT) between 2003
and 2006, where he was responsible for the overall
business of the relevant companies and gained valuable
experience in project management. Mr. Liu qualified as a
civil engineer in 2000.
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Tan Weimin (25 R), aged 41, is our executive Director
and joint company secretary. Mr. Tan is also responsible for
managing our investors’ relations. Mr. Tan joined Shanghai Xingi
Investments Co., Ltd (E/8FTEURE AR AT, a subsidiary
of Future Land Holdings engaging in investment business
prior to the Group’s corporate reorganisation, in 2003 and
became its general manager. The company was excluded
from the Group upon completion of such reorganisation
in May 2010. Since July 2010, Mr. Tan has been a director
and a vice president of Future Land Holdings, overseeing
our onshore financing activities. He graduated from
Lanzhou University (BN AX2) with a bachelor’s degree in
national economics and management in June 1994. Mr.
Tan then obtained a master degree in global economics
in June 1997 and a doctoral degree in economics in July
2002 from Fudan University (8 B X&). Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Tan worked in Haitong Securities between
1997 and 2002, and served as investment manager, where
he gained valuable experience in securities investment
and market studies. He served as vice general manager
of the Asset Management Division of Zhejiang Merchants
Securities between 2002 and 2003, where he was
responsible for securities investment.

Huang Maoli (EX%0), aged 38, is our executive Director.
Madam Huang joined the Group in December 2011 and leads
our offshore financing activities. Madam Huang graduated
from Nanjing University (B A%) with a bachelor's degree
in economics in 1994 and a master's degree in economics
in 1997. Madam Huang obtained an MBA degree from the
Wharton School of Business at the University of Pennsylvania
in 2003. Prior to joining the Group, Madam Huang held
various positions at Goldman Sachs GaoHua Securities
Limited (8B S EEE5EGMR ST A7) between May 2007
and December 2011, and served as executive director of its
investment banking division immediately before joining the
Group. Previously, Madam Huang served as a vice president
of Bank of America Corporation strategic planning and
corporate development department between August 2005
and April 2007.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Lv Xiaoping (& /M ¥), aged 51, is our non-executive
Director. Mr. Lv joined the Group in 2001. Mr. Lv served
as the vice president of Future Land Holdings between
September 2001 and August 2004. From August 2004 to
January 2013, Mr. Lv had been a director and the president
of Jiangsu Future Land (Stock code: 900950), principally
responsible for the overall management of our residential
property development business carried out by Jiangsu
Future Land. Since February 2013, Mr. Lv has been the vice
chairman of Jiangsu Future Land. Mr. Lv graduated from
Naval University of Engineering with a bachelor's degree
in engineering in 1983. Mr. Lv later graduated from China
European International Business School with an MBA
degree in 2007. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lv worked
in Changchai Company Limited, a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock code: 000570) between
1987 and 2001 and served as the secretary to the board
of directors and head of investment of the company,
where he was responsible for business development and
investment strategies.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chen Huakang (PR#EE), aged 60, is our independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Chen joined the Group in
November 2012. He was awarded a certificate in Modern
Economic Management Professional Studies (RA&EEE 1B
HEEP) by Beijing Economic Management College (1b3
EEE TR KIREPT) in 1988. Mr. Chen has been a certified
public accountant in China since 1998 and a registered
expert consultant in Jiangsu province (T &k & 5 fft 7% 38
ZEX) since 2004. He has over 40 years of experience in
the field of accounting. Mr. Chen is and has been serving
as the principal accountant and managing partner of
Jiangsu Wujin Certified Public Accountants (T&#HRE&
sHEMEEFT), a registered PRC accounting firm in Jiangsu
province, since 1995. He also served as managing partner
of Wujin Assets Valuation Association (R & E {55
75 FT) between 1995 and 2000, and is and has been the
president of Changzhou lJieling Investment Management
Consultant Limited (FMGEERZRIREEEEAERAD
Al) since 2004. Mr. Chen served as independent director
of Jiangsu Future Land (Stock code: 900950) between
May 2002 and May 2010 and the independent director of
Jiangsu Shunfeng Photovoltaic Co., Ltd. (T &R E@E Yt B R
BIR A7) between 2009 and May 2012.
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Nie Meisheng (E # %), aged 72, is our independent
non-executive Director. Madam Nie first joined the Group
when she was appointed as an independent director of
Jiangsu Future Land between 2007 and 2009. She joined
us again in November 2012 as independent non-executive
Director. Madam Nie graduated from Tsinghua University
(BEEKE) with civil engineering in 1963, specialising in
hydraulic engineering. Madam Nie served as independent
non-executive director of three companies listed on
the Stock Exchange including Neo-China Land Group
(Holdings) Limited (HF#fibE & B(ER)E R A 7)) (Stock
Code: 563), Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited (&
BEHEEAR AR AT (Stock Code: 1238) and Road King
Infrastructure Limited (B&ShEE B R A 7)) (Stock Code:
1098) since October 2003 (up to her resignation in July
2010, September 2009 and October 2012, respectively).
She also served as independent director of Jiangsu Future
Land between 2007 and 2010. Madam Nie is currently
the economic counselor of the people’s government of
Jieyang (#8F%), Guangdong Province and her appointment
commenced in December 2006 and chairlady of China Real
Estate Chamber of Commerce (FE2B ¥ &S EH
ERIE) in 2004,
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Zhu Zengjin (5R3g3), aged 49, is our independent non-
executive Director. Mr. Zhu joined the Group in November
2012. He graduated from Nanjing University (F 5 A& with
a bachelor’s degree in law in 1985 and from Beijing University
({JE R AREZ) with an EMBA degree in 2005. Mr. Zhu was the
head of the business department between July 1985 and
August 1998 and the deputy head and partner between
August 1999 and August 2009 of Jiangsu C&T Partners
Law Firm (TERtEACECZRMETEAT) respectively. He was
also a listing committee member of the GEM Board of the
China Securities Regulatory Commission (Ff B & 25 & Al # R
3% % 8) between August 2009 and August 2011. Since
January 2002, Mr. Zhu has been a committee member
of the Jiangsu Province All China Lawyers Association in
Securities Law (I# & TBIRMBEARIEFEEZEGE
8) and has been recognised as a Well Known Lawyer in
Jiangsu Province (JL&R AN 7REM) by the association. He has
served as an independent director of two listed companies
in the PRC, namely Ningbo Yunsheng Co., Ltd. (BTt
& B R AT]) (Stock Code: 600366) and Bank of Nanjing
Co., Ltd (ARIRITARID AR E]) (Stock Code: 601009),
since March 2012 and June 2012, respectively, and three
other non-listed PRC companies, namely, Guolian Trust
Co., Ltd (EIEEFEMRMD BBRAF]), Institute of Architectural
Design Co., Ltd (BRINER&TFEARDEMRARF]) and Jiangnan
Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd (T & EEIRTT) since
June 2008, September 2009 and June 2012, respectively.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The table below shows certain information in respect of
senior management of the Company:

e Fir Bif

Name Age Position

P B a1 R

Lu Zhongming Chief Financial Officer

JEL1EBR 59 R B AR EL

Qi Boming Vice President, Future Land Holdings
TREF 56 TR R R

Xu Guoping Vice President, Jiangsu Future Land
H=i 37 TLERT R B R

Huang Chao Vice President, Jiangsu Future Land
ik 42 T ERFTI B AR

Shao Lei Vice President, Jiangsu Future Land
JEL /N ER 43 L ERAT L A B IR

Qi Xiaoming Assistant President, Jiangsu Future Land

FERE - 4155 RARMOMBRE  HEXREENM BN
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2010F#E - EAE—EATHTHEFNIN B ER R -
W20 TFEEF PRI AR B B ABEL o BESe AR 1999F 1B ;R
BB SR 2 - RINBEAEBR - EL A 1998F
E2001F BETEHRZE (BAFIZERMN2001FER MBI
HHARWE) B EA SRR -

Lu Zhongming (F£:885), aged 41, is our chief financial
officer, overseeing the accounting and finance functions of
the Group. Mr. Lu joined the Group in 2001 after Jiangsu
Future Land acquired its listing status on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange and became the finance general manager
of Jiangsu Future Land in 2002. Mr. Lu has been a director
of Jiangsu Future Land and a vice president of Future Land
Wanbo since 2010. He became vice president of Future
Land Holdings in 2011. Mr. Lu completed his accounting
study from Nanjing Institute of Finance & Economics (7
FEF4EEERT) in 1999, Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lu
served as deputy head of finance and audit department of
Jiangsu Wuling (acquired by Future Land Holdings in our
B-Share Restructuring in 2001) between 1998 and 2001.
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Qi Boming (Ei{A8A), aged 59, is the vice president of Future
Land Holdings and the head of the human resources and
administration center and the IT center. Mr. Qi joined the
Group in 2002. He was the vice president of Jiangsu Future
Land (Stock code: 900950) between August 2002 and
May 2007, and a director between 2003 and 2010. Mr.
Qi has been a vice president and a director of Future Land
Holdings since May 2007 and July 2010, respectively, and
has been overseeing the Group’s general administration
and information management. Mr. Qi graduated from
Xi‘an Military Institute (FAZfEE Z4%) in political studies in
1979. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Qi was a government
official and worked in a number of government authorities
in Wujin (2 #), Jiangsu Province between 1982 and 2002,
including serving as head of the Health Bureau of Wujing
between 1999 and 2002.

Xu Guoping (# Bl ), aged 56, is the vice president
and a director of Jiangsu Future Land responsible for
the construction and engineering of residential property
development. Mr. Xu has been working in the group
for over 15 years, and during this period he has gained
extensive experience in construction, engineering and
project management. Mr. Xu joined the Group in 1996.
Between 1996 and 2001, he served as vice general
manager of Jiangsu Future Land, responsible for project
management in Wujin area. Since 2001, Mr. Xu has
served as vice president and director of Jiangsu Future
Land. Between 2001 and 2004, he was responsible for
the development of several residential property projects in
Changzhou. From 2004 to the present time, Mr. Xu has
been responsible for engineering, cost management and
procurement. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu served as
head of the institute between 1993 and 1995, where he
was responsible for the overall business and operation, and
gained valuable experience in management.
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Huang Chao (Ei#), aged 37, is the vice president of
Jiangsu Future Land responsible for the sales and marketing
of our residential property development business. Mr.
Huang joined the Group in 2005. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Huang served as the marketing manager of
Changzhou Yikang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (/M
BEFEERRE AR QA between 1996 to 2002 and the
assistant general manager of Changzhou Zhijiang Property
Co., Ltd. (BN 2/ T E AR Q7)) between 2003 and 2005,
where he was responsible for marketing and sales.

Shao Lei (BF%), aged 42, is the vice president of Jiangsu
Future Land responsible for the design and technical
support for our residential property development business.
Mr. Shao joined the Group in 2005 and became the
general manger of our technical research institute in 2007.
Mr. Shao graduated from Southeast University (3 F X
2) with a bachelor’s degree in architecture in 1994 and
qualified as a registered state-level architect (20015 BIZ
— R EEMFESEED) in 2001, Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Shao served as head of the institute from 2001 and 2005
responsible for overall business management and gained
valuable experience in construction and management.

Qi Xiaoming (R/NBA), aged 43, is the assistant president
of Jiangsu Future Land. He joined the Group in 2002 and
has assumed various positions within the Group. Mr. Qi
is also the general manager of Changzhou Future Land.
Mr. Qi graduated from Hefei University of Technology
(BBET 2 :A2) with a bachelor’s degree in engineering
in 1992. Between 1992 and 2001, Mr. Qi held various
senior management positions in Changzhou Passenger
Trucks Manufacturing Plant (M ZEELER), including vice
office manager responsible for general office affairs. Mr.
Qi served as office manager of Wujing Branch of Pingan
Insurance (Group) Limited Company of China (FEF &R
B2 B # 2 7)) between 2001 and 2002.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2012.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 23 April 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
(the “Companies Law”). The Company's shares (the
“Shares”) were listed on the Stock Exchange on 29
November 2012 (the “Listing” or “Listing Date").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the property
development and property investment in China.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year by principal
activities is set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012 are set out in the consolidated statement of income
on page F-6 of this annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2012 are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of RMBO0.05 per Share for the year ended 31 December
2012 to the Shareholders. The proposed final dividend
will be paid on or around the end of June 2013 after
approval by our shareholders (the “Shareholders”) at
the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM") of the
Company.

The proposed final dividend shall be declared in Renminbi
and paid in Hong Kong dollars. The final dividend payable
in Hong Kong dollars will be converted from Renminbi at
the average middle rate of RMB to Hong Kong dollars as
announced by the People’s Bank of China for the period
from 20 May 2013 to 23 May 2013.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY/FINANCIAL REVIEW

A financial summary and a financial review of the Group’s
results, assets, liabilities for the last four financial years
are set out on pages 5 to 6 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The net proceeds from the Listing (after deducting
underwriting fees and related expenses) amounted to
approximately HKD1,975.8 million, which are intended
to be applied in the manner consistent with that in the
Company'’s prospectus dated 19 November 2012.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 15.4% (2011:
16.6%) of the Group’s total purchases and the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the
Group's purchases in the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s
sales to its five largest customers accounted for 0.64%
(2011: 2.8%) of the Group’s revenue and the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of
the Group’s revenue in the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

ZZ— 43R 2012 Annual Report ¥4 % B2 KRG MR A 7 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

51



EEEHE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ME - BERRKRE

AARRAEBREE2012F12A31BIEFENDE - K
B REENEB BN A I BIREW LT -

REWE

KRR NAREEREE2012F12B31BEFENREME
HE B BN A SRR TS -

N
ARBRFRARNBRABBHIEHN A H P RERMEIS -

G

REBEARBDIRFANKEEZEFBEINEHEZEZHE
FEF-8HEFHF-I9B LAY HIREME20 -

A ks
R2012F12A31H - REQATEEXEGERRAATH DK
B BARYEL195548 8T (R2011F 124318+ A
R#356.8@&E L) ©

RITERRHAMEK

RABRAREBR2012F12A31MHNRTER L HMER
M FBEN A S B IRER M 521 -

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Company and the Group during the year ended 31
December 2012 are set out in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of
the Company and the Group during the year ended 31
December 2012 are set out in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out on pages F-8 to F-9
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and in
note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
provisions of Companies Law, amounted to approximately
RMB1,955.4 million (as at 31 December 2011: 356.8
million).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2012 are set
out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2012
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. WANG Zhenhua (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 23 April 2010)

Mr. MIN Yuansong (appointed on 6 November 2012)

Mr. LIU Yuanman (appointed on 6 November 2012)

Mr. TAN Weimin (appointed on 6 November 2012)

Ms. HUANG Maoli (appointed on 6 November 2012)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. LV Xiaoping (appointed on 6 November 2012)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Huakang (appointed on 6 November 2012)
Ms. NIE Meisheng (appointed on 6 November 2012)
Mr. ZHU Zengjin (appointed on 6 November 2012)

In accordance with article 16.3 of the articles of association
of the Company, Mr. MIN Yuansong, Mr. LIU Yuanman,
Mr. TAN Weimin, Ms. HUANG Maoli, Mr. LV Xiaoping,
Mr. CHEN Huakang, Ms. NIE Meisheng, Mr. ZHU Zengjijn
will retire from office, and being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming
AGM.

In accordance with articles 16.18 of the articles of
association Mr. WANG Zhenhua shall retire from office
as Director and being eligible, has offered himself for re-
election as Director at the forthcoming AGM.

Details of the retiring Directors to be re-elected at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company are
set out in the circular to the Shareholders.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 40 to 49
of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be
independent for the year ended 31 December 2012.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
LETTER OF APPOINTMENTS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors
has entered into a service agreement with the Company
on 6 November 2012 for a term of two years commencing
from the date of Listing and may be terminated in
accordance with the respective terms of the service
agreements.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
signed a letter of appointment on 6 November 2012 for
an initial term of two years commencing from 6 November
2012.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
terminable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during the year ended 31 December 2012.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing
the Group’s emolument policy and structure for all
remuneration of the directors and senior management
of the Group, having regard to the Group's operating
results, individual performance of the directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted pre-ipo share award scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme”) and share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) as incentive to
eligible employees, details of the schemes are set out in
the section headed “Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme” and
"Share Option Scheme” below, respectively.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and five highest
paid individuals are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT
OF DIRECTORS

HE2012F12A31ALEFE - BRABRE EMEAIZE13.5102) During the year ended 31 December 2012, there was
BKEQEEBMOBESATREACERENERTES no changes to information which are required to be

e

disclosed and has been disclosed by Directors pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules.

BEERTETHAERRG HERORE DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

SFNEENRAR

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

M20125F12A318 - ARRIEEREETHRAERAKAF] As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions
s B REOEE (E& RES RBAEED f%%&%ﬁﬂ% of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company
Bl ] EEXVEL) B9t - MR D RES T A G)EREE in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the

&B;ﬁlaaﬂﬂﬂ%xv*hm&zaﬂﬁ me

NN B 2 B A2 P O RE Company or any of its associated corporations (within the

mRKE (BIEEHERAEGIRE 2 MES R AHA R meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
mRAR) Sk EREES MEEENE3S2E - BRRA ("SFO")) (i) which were required to be notified to the
NAGFEMERM - R()ERBE LM EITAESTETES Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
R HVEAEST A ([RESFRI ) M ARG LB AFT e &= and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short

MRBWT

(i) REQXARMDAES

EEfE

positions which were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or (ii) which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into
the register maintained by the Company, or (iii) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"”) were as follows:

(i) Interest in Shares of the Company

1E IR

EEME M2 BB RER BHUEDI
Approximate

Number and percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interest class of Shares shareholding
THRE ZREFENEBAD 4,068,950,000 71.79%
WANG Zhenhua Founder of a discretionary trust®

BRI EREXHEA? 8,000,000 0.14%
MIN Yuansong Beneficiary of a trust?®

2150m EREXHEA? 5,000,000 0.08%
LIU Yuanman Beneficiary of a trust?®

BRE EREXHEA? 5,000,000 0.08%
TAN Weimin Beneficiary of a trust?®

B/ EREXHEA? 12,000,000 0.21%
LV Xiaoping Beneficiary of a trust?
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(1) FEE K AHua ShenglEsEM Al A + iEiBHua Shengfsst -
Standard Chartered Trust (Cayman) Limited A3 AB H 158
BEZ IR AFFH4,068,950,000 5 BV EF A -

(2) BLEEEAERAMEENROEEABTHTEA - B

e
B2 AFR [ ERAMBENRD @8 —& -

(i) REBIFARGOES

Notes:

(1) Chairman WANG is the founder of Hua Sheng Trust,
through which Standard Chartered Trust (Cayman) Limited
held long position in 4,068,950,000 Shares through its
controlled corporations in its capacity as trustee.

(2) These Directors are grantees under the Pre-IPO Share

Award Scheme. Please refer to the section headed “Pre-

IPO Share Award Scheme" in this annual report.

(ii) Interest in Shares of associated corporation

R RER
EEpE EEME 22) N BHESL
Approximate
percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest Name of associated corporation Shareholding
FiIRE BmiEam M EREEFR AR 2.07%
WANG Zhenhua Beneficial interest Future Land Holdings Co., Ltd.
TiRE SR A Al BMNESEREGRAA 5.60%
WANG Zhenhua Interest in a controlled corporation®”  Changzhou Wealth Zone Development
Co., Ltd.
Bt &t Note:
(1) TEERFATMNFIUBEREGRRFI0%MRE - i E M M Mr. Chairman WANG held 90% equity interest in
FHEEREARAAFESMNELBRRERRA6.22%M R Changzhou Future Land Wanbo Investments Co., Ltd (¥
#e M E R EERAR]), which in turn held 6.22% in
Changzhou Wealth Zone Development Co., Ltd.
M EXFT#E A - R2012F 128318 BIEARRES Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of

REZTHABRARRREARER (EEREFLYE
EBIEXVER) Bfn - RN REFEA AR R REFEE
R E S R EIROIEI521FRMERAFENBELMA - iR
BIRETRIEMG AR R MBI AN EAEREIORR

the Directors and the chief executive of the Company had
or was deemed to have any interest or short position in the
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, no time during
the year ended 31 December 2012 were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company and any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors, or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2012, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, the following persons (not being a Director or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

15 IRFER
EEpE B Rt RS E BHBEDL
Approximate
percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interest Number of Shares shareholding
Standard Chartered Trust (Cayman) ZEEA 4,068,950,000 71.79%
Limited™
Standard Chartered Trust (Cayman) Trustee
Limited™
Infinity Fortune Development Limited™ — R S#EHIAEEZS 4,068,950,000 71.79%
Infinity Fortune Development Limited™  Interest in a controlled corporation
First Priority Group Limited® REZEHEERER 4,068,950,000 71.79%
First Priority Group Limited™ Interest in a controlled corporation
Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments Ex 4,068,950,000 71.79%
Limited®
Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments Beneficial
Limited®
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(1) Standard Chartered Trust (Cayman) Limited?E/Hua Sheng{=3E (f1 E iR
FEERMERTFANERERBERARRARY) WXEABBEAREA
Global Nominees Ltd.#4Infinity Fortune Development Limited 100%
K)E 8 7TARAN + Minfinity Fortune Development Limited$§#First Priority
Group Limited 100% /) B B 1TREAN ©

(2) Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments LimitedeFirst Priority Group
Limited#§74 100% #) B #1TAA -
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Notes:

(1) Standard Chartered Trust (Cayman) Limited, as trustee of Hua
Sheng Trust, which was established by WANG Zhenhua as settlor
in favour of his family members, held 100% of the issued share
capital of Infinity Fortune Development Limited through its nominee
Global Nominees Ltd., which in turn held 100% of the issued share
capital of First Priority Group Limited.

(2) Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments Limited is held as to 100% of
its issued share capital by First Priority Group Limited.

Save as disclosed above, and as at 31 December 2012,
the directors of the Company were not aware of any
persons (who were not directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No controlling shareholders or its subsidiary had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance, whether for the provision of services or
otherwise, to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year ended 31 December 2012.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December
2012, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

ZZ— 43R 2012 Annual Report ¥4 % B2 KRG MR A 7 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

59



60

EEEHE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BB E

ARBEBERAREHSE (ARREMKIZAHLE) AT
EE228 (1961 FH3WEN - Bira RER) BEREAR
RAZAMIRE BIRIZ L (1) 38 & 3RO B 5T R BAR 1T

TR F AR

TEE R KWealth Zone Hong Kong Investments Limited
(ERBRR]) SEEEETHEFRE Bt REESTAH
B & AR M AN A BUREE MR - ST S ERNEENIES
FEARKBALAR R BITHMUL - S AR S REK
ERAL - BRKXAA - SEBEMNELRE (RIBEBEARF]
ERFRBIRIN) 2EEREBFTFNER -

B ETmAEEE2012F12A31MBEE - EREREAEZH
FABAARGERFEESEEBIHFLHE  ARANFRPE

=

EERHGFUERBROES

MAIREFTIREESI - W2012F128318 - HIEESFNE
EEANBEBEA TSI NI MEREBREBERFEFHA
B AR B XS P AR -

HERS

BEeWR  AHMERRMFAIZAENEES XS HEE
R ETRUFAATEBE TN T EREBEL S NIFERER
58 FmBMEE2012F12A31B 8K - AEE M EaT
S ETREREEARAREREN T MEER S5 ERE

$TH 3% R R AR 2 F Future Land Development Holdings Limited —%

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands where the Company was incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of Chairman WANG and Wealth Zone Hong Kong
Investments Limited (the “Controlling Shareholders”)
has executed a deed of non-competition through which
they have irrevocably and unconditionally warranted and
undertaken to the Company not to, whether directly or
indirectly or as principal or agent, and whether on its/his/
own account or with each other or in conjunction with
or on behalf of any person, firm or company or through
any entities (except in or through any subsidiary of the
Company) engage in businesses that are in competition
with the Group.

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed in writing to
the Company of their compliance with the deed of non-
competition for disclosure in this annual report during the
period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2012.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this report, as at 31 December 2012,
none of the Directors or their respective associates had
engaged in or had any interest in any business which
competes or may compete with the businesses of the
Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Board confirmed that none of the related party
transactions set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted non-exempt connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. During the period from
the Listing Date to 31 December 2012, the Group had
not entered into any connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions which are required to be disclosed
in this report pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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PRE-IPO SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a Pre-IPO Share Award scheme on
12 September 2011.

1. Objective

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Award
Scheme to recognise the contribution of certain
of the employees and officers, especially those
whom we consider have contributed to the early
development and growth of the Group, and to
align their interests with those of the Shareholders.

2. Implementation

Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme, a
total of current and former employees, officers
and business partners of the Group (the “Selected
Persons”) were awarded Shares representing
approximately 3.19% of the total issued share
capital of the Company. At the direction of Wealth
Zone Hong Kong, the Company issued at nominal
value a total of 181,050,000 new Shares to Wellink
Global (PTC) Limited (the “Trustee”), a special
purpose vehicle incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands on July 21, 2011, for the benefit of the
Selected Persons. As of the Latest Practicable Date,
a total of 181,050,000 Shares (the “Awarded
Shares”) were granted to the Selected Persons.

3. Vesting of the Awarded Shares

The vesting principles of the Pre-IPO Award Scheme
are summarised as follows:

- The Selected Persons are not entitled to
exercise or enjoy the rights to, or to transfer
the Awarded Shares pending the vesting of
the Awarded Shares.

- Vesting period for a Selected Person
is determined based on his or her (i)
performance appraisal; (i) length of service;
and (iii) seniority (if applicable).

ZZ— 43R 2012 Annual Report ¥4 % B2 KRG MR A 7 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

61



62

E5g

&

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

P

SN

R E 8 A TR EEIRR 5 5 57
20134 ~ 20144 ~ 20155 A12016512 A31H
NH U ERERE

FREMRBREALTMEEREBRHDA2013F
12A318(1) -

it

BEATHBANGE S RBBRMD I MERMR

E o

fHEEATOFRERRNE (HER) TRIE

B AZERENEBHATER -

REBEA - BEAL
R R

BREZFARBBRNHM®

RERBRNET R NHMBREHETE
AREEHNEFATNIRBEEERE

RIEAHA2012566 A30BMMRIRZAR - RIEERAHEE
&7 B2 =T B SR M AR 1) 69 53 B Hi R 2012F 20154 LA {8
F1AH2013F E20164F (EPU4F -

HiH R IZER AR 2T Future Land Development Holdings Limited —

Note:

(M

The Awarded Shares granted to any
particular Selected Person will vest in four
equal tranches on 31 December, 2013,
2014, 2015 and 2016(1) respectively.

The first vesting date for all the relevant
Selected Persons is 31 December 2013(1)

The Selected Persons are not required to pay
any consideration for the Awarded Shares
for the purpose of vesting.

Vesting period of a Selected Person is
subject to postponement in the event of
unsatisfactory work performance based on
his or her annual performance appraisal (if
applicable).

Prior to vesting, the Selected Persons are not
entitled to the voting rights to the Awarded
Shares.

All dividends declared and paid in respect
of the Awarded Shares shall be held by the
Trustee for the benefit of the respective
Selected Person pending vesting.

Pursuant to the resolutions of the Shareholders dated
June 30, 2012, the vesting period of the Shares awarded
under the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme was amended
from four years from 2012 to 2015 to four years from
2013 to 2016.

—ZF 4 2012 Annual Report



EEERE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

B ESTE
RARIF2012911 B 6 HIRNBAYETEI -

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a Share Option Scheme on 6
November 2012.
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Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
enable the Company to grant Options to eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

Eligible Participants

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an
option to subscribe for such number of new Shares
as the Board may determine at an exercise price
determined to:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees,
executives or officers of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive
directors and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries;

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and agents to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; and

(iv) such other persons who, in the sole opinion
of the Board, will contribute or have
contributed to the Group.
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Acceptance of an offer of options

An option shall be deemed to have been granted
and accepted by the grantee and to have taken
effect when the duplicate offer document
constituting acceptances of the options duly
signed by the grantee, together with a remittance
in favour of the Company of HKDO0.10 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof, is received by
the Company on or before the relevant acceptance
date. Such payment shall in no circumstances
be refundable. Any offer to grant an option to
subscribe for Shares may be accepted in respect
of less than the number of Shares for which it
is offered provided that it is accepted in respect
of a board lot for dealing in Shares on the Stock
Exchange or an integral multiple thereof and such
number is clearly stated in the duplicate offer
document constituting acceptance of the option. To
the extent that the offer to grant an option is not
accepted by any prescribed acceptance date, it shall
be deemed to have been irrevocably declined.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of
which options may be granted (including Shares
in respect of which options, whether exercised or
still outstanding, have already been granted) under
the Share Option Scheme and under any other
share option schemes of the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue on the Listing Date (but taking no
account of any Shares which may be issued under
the exercise of the Over-allotment Option), being
566,800,000 Shares (the “Scheme Limit").
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Maximum number of options to any one
individual

The total number of Shares issued and which
may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company
(including both exercised, outstanding options
and Shares which were the subject of options
which have been granted and accepted under
the Share Option Scheme or any other scheme
of the Company but subsequently cancelled (the
“Cancelled Shares”) to each Eligible Participant in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any
particular option granted under the Share Option
Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its
absolute discretion shall determine, save that such
price will not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
on the date of grant, which must be a day
on which the Stock Exchange is open for
the business of dealing in securities;

(ii) the average of the closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.
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Granting options to connected persons

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company or
any of their respective associates is required to
be approved by the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding any independent non-executive
Director who is the grantee of the options).

Restrictions on the times of grant of
Options

A grant of options may not be made after a price
sensitive event has occurred or a price sensitive
matter has been the subject of a decision until such
price sensitive information has been announced.
In particular, no options may be granted during
the period commencing one month immediately
preceding the earlier of (i) the date of the Board
meeting; and (ii) the deadline for the Company to
publish an announcement of the results for any
year, or half-year, or quarterly or other interim
period and ending on the date of actual publication
of the results announcement.

Rights are personal to grantee

No grantee shall in any way sell, transfer, charge,
mortgage, encumber or create any interest (legal
or beneficial) in favour of any third party over or
in relation to any option or attempt so to do (save
that the grantee may nominate a nominee in whose
name the Shares issued pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme may be registered). Any breach
of the foregoing shall entitle the Company to
cancel any outstanding options or any part thereof
granted to such Grantee.
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10.

Time of exercise of Option and duration
of the Share Option Scheme

An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time
after the date upon which the Option is deemed to
be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of
10 years from that date. The period during which
an option may be exercised will be determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no
option may be exercised more than 10 years after
it has been granted. No option may be granted
more than 10 years after the date of approval of
the Share Option Scheme by the sole Shareholder
of the Company (the “Adoption Date”). Subject
to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the Adoption Date.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options,
provided that the total number of Shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme does not exceed
10% of the Shares in issue on the date of Listing.
The Company may at any time refresh such limit,
subject to the Shareholders’ approval and issue
of a circular in compliance with the Listing Rules,
provided that the total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under all
the share option schemes of the Company does not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue at the time.

As at 31 December 2012, no option under the
Share Option Scheme has been granted by the
Company.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
made charitable and other donations of approximately
RMB4.3 million.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The material post balance sheet events are disclosed in
note 39 to the audited consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee had reviewed together with the
management and external auditor the accounting
principles and policies adopted by the Group and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been
made to all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed
that they had complied with such code of conduct during
the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest
standard of corporate governance practices. The Company
has complied with the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2012
with deviation from code provision A2.1 which has already
been stated in the Corporate Governance Report in this
report. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 71 to 86 of this annual
report.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 17 May 2013 to Wednesday, 22 May 2013,
both days inclusive, in order to determine the identity
of the Shareholders who are entitled to attend the
forthcoming AGM to be held on Wednesday, 22 May
2013. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 16 May 2013.

The record date for qualifying to receive the proposed
final dividend is Thursday, 30 May 2013. In order to
determine the rights of Shareholders entitled to receive the
proposed final dividends, which is subject to the approval
by Shareholders in the forthcoming AGM, the register
of members of the Company will also be closed from
Tuesday, 28 May 2013 to Thursday, 30 May 2013, both
days inclusive, in order to determine the entitlement of
the Shareholders to the final dividend. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 27 May 2013.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of
the Company’s total issued share capital, the prescribed
minimum percentage of public float approved by the Stock
Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules, are held
by the public at all times as of the date of this report.
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers has acted as auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire in the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. WANG Zhenhua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance
report in the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Company has adopted the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate
governance. Save for the deviation disclosed in this report,
the Company has complied with the code provisions as set
out in the CG Code since the Listing Date and up to the
date of this annual report. The Company will continue to
review and enhance its corporate governance practices to
ensure compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of
the Group, oversees the Group’s strategic decisions
and monitors business and performance. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established
three Board committees including the audit committee
(the "Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) (together,
the “Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to
the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
and in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the Group’s Directors for their liabilities
arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage
will be reviewed on an annual basis.
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Board Composition

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors,
namely Mr. WANG Zhenhua, Mr. MIN Yuansong, Mr. LIU
Yuanman, Mr. TAN Weimin and Ms. HUANG Maoli, one
non-executive Director, namely Mr. LV Xiaoping and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. CHEN
Huakang, Ms. NIE Meisheng and Mr. ZHU Zengjin. The
biographies of the Directors are set out under the section
headed “Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Biographies”
of this annual report.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors with at least one independent non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Under 3.10A of the Listing Rules, listed issuers are
required to appoint independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board by 31
December 2012. The Company has three independent
non-executive Directors currently representing one-third of
the Board and therefore the Company has complied with
Rule 3.10A before 31 December 2012.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

None of the Directors has any personal relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship), with any other Director.

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism
to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive directors are invited to serve on
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee.
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As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors
to disclose the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time
involved to the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose
their commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has
a proper understanding of the Company’s operations
and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities under
relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The Company
also arranges regular seminars to provide Directors with
updates on latest development and changes in the Listing
Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements
from time to time. The Directors are also provided with
regular updates on the Company’'s performance, position
and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and performed by different individuals. Under the
current organization structure of the Company, Mr. WANG
Zhenhua is our Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer. With extensive experience in the property
industry, the Board considers that vesting the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer in the same person is
beneficial to the business prospects and management of
the Group. The balance of power and authority is ensured
by the operation of the senior management and the Board,
which comprise experienced and high caliber individuals.
The Board currently comprises five executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors and therefore has a fairly strong
independence element in its composition.
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Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Director
has entered into a service agreement with the Company
on 6 November 2012 for a term of two years commencing
from the Listing Date and may be terminated in accordance
with the respective terms of the service agreements.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
signed a letter of appointment with the Company dated
6 November 2012, for an initial term of two years
commencing from 6 November 2012.

None of the Directors has a service agreement which
is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and any new Director appointed
to fill a causal vacancy shall submit himself/herself for
election by shareholders at the first general meeting of the
Company after appointment and new Directors appointed
as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for
re-election by shareholders at the next following annual
general meeting of the Company after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of directors are set out in the Company’s
articles of association. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
monitoring the appointment, re-election and succession
planning of Directors.
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Board Meetings

The Company will adopt the practice of holding board
meetings regularly, at least four times a year, and at
approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days are given for all regular board meetings to
provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and
include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting. For
other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given. The agenda and accompanying board
papers are dispatched to the Directors or committee
members at least three days before the meetings to ensure
that they have sufficient time to review the papers and be
adequately prepared for the meetings. When directors or
committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they
will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given an
opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman
prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the
Joint Company Secretaries with copies circulated to all
Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by
the Board and the committees and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft
minutes of each board meeting and committee meeting
are sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable
time after the date on which the meeting is held. The
minutes of the board meetings are open for inspection by
Directors.
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BEMBSRREEAFRALY EETERT-_NESTY Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual

ELBEEFHRZEERNBERERNTX report, three board meetings were held and the attendance
of the individual Directors at these meetings is set out in
the table below:

BHERE, W HERE

= Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
FIRELE Mr. WANG Zhenhua 3/3
BIEMSEE Mr. MIN Yuansong 3/3
BJRm o Mr. LIU Yuanman 3/3
BRREAE Mr. TAN Weimin 3/3
ED &G Ms. HUANG Maoli 3/3

BN A Mr. LV Xiaoping 3/3
PREEFR LA Mr. CHEN Huakang 3/3
EmgEL LT Ms. NIE Meisheng 3/3
RIGHE S & Mr. ZHU Zengjin 3/3

BErMBMBEEEAFREE  2REFHELFEZGH Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
THMBEE - report, all meetings of the Board were held with the
presence of all Directors.

ETRFRINEESR Model Code for Securities Transactions
RAEERM EMRRNN T ATEMIREFR] - (FEAEA S The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
EREFENBEFRINTRTH - KAMBESEHEES in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
:@fﬁ EEFCHR BLMABREEAFHRAM  BF conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
BPRAESFR| - Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and

each of the Directors has confirmed that he/she has
complied with the Model Code since the Listing Date and
up to the date of this annual report.

ELrMABBEEAFRAL  AQANAUESHEBEAR Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual

AR ARRESRENNEAEESNGTIREEEANRR report, the Company has also adopted its own code of

HEEMRSPRR] - MIRP<FRINRNE B L IZAE<F AT, conduct regarding employees’ securities transactions on

BIZERTER © terms no less exacting than the standard set out in the
Model Code for the compliance by its relevant employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information of the Company in respect of their
dealings in the Company’s securities.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. Directors
could have recourse to seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Company’s expense
and are encouraged to access and to consult with the
Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the senior management. The
delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically
reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from
the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the management.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be
the collective responsibility of Directors and delegated the
corporate governance duties to the Nomination Committee
which include:

(a) to develop, review and implement the Company’s
policy and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(0) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable
to employees and directors;
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(e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report; and

(f) to develop, review and monitor the implementation

of the shareholders’ communication policy to
ensure its effectiveness, and make recommendation
to the Board where appropriate to enhance
shareholders’ relationship with the Company.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, the Company has updated the compliance manuals
on notifiable transactions and price sensitive information
in accordance with the Listing Rules as guideline for
its employees to report unpublished price sensitive
information (inside information) to the Company to ensure
consistent and timely disclosure and fulfillment of the
Company’s continuous disclosure obligations.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
members, namely Mr. ZHU Zengjin (chairman), Ms. NIE
Meisheng and Mr. MIN Yuansong, the majority of them are
independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
the following:

- To review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and make recommendations regarding any
proposed changes

- To identify suitable candidates for appointment as
directors

78  FHRIZERAER DT Future Land Development Holdings Limited —Z — — 44k 2012 Annual Report



m*h—a— ‘A\i
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

- REFNZENEARETHINESSRERBE
i)

- FHEB IFITESRMBI

REZEGHRFETHERBEASREBEREA - 0HE - &
B RERBABEREMBINBTREREENED - B
ZEGNHBEEBREREZTESSELRE  HRER
BB S e X B AU AT 28 o

BELEMASENEEAFRAY REZBEEHRT K
ALREZBERENHETHERN TR

i)Y

- To make recommendations to the Board on
appointment or re-appointment of and succession
planning for directors

- To assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or
incumbent on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill
and ability to commit time and effort to carry out the
duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of the
Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board for
decision. Their written terms of reference are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, one meeting of the Nomination Committee was
held on and the attendance record of the Nomination
Committee members is set out in the table below:

EHERE WHERE
EE Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
RIS Mr. ZHU Zengjin 11
EmigER T Mr. NIE Meisheng 11
BRI LA Mr. MIN Yuansong 1/1

REAESETERELFNTESNRELIERERETESN
BREH -

FMEES

FINZESRE=RKE  BIRIGESRE (7))  #EEL
MERRELE  REDKEBHRBIIFNTES -

The Nomination Committee assessed the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and considered the
re-appointment of the retiring Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
namely Mr. ZHU Zengjin (chairman), Ms. NIE Meisheng and
Mr. TAN Weimin, the majority of them are independent
non-executive Directors.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations on and approving the
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and the senior
management/to determine remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for formulating such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/
her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by
reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions. Their
written terms of reference are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, one meeting of the Remuneration Committee
was held and the attendance record of the Remuneration
Committee members is set out in the table below:

EHERE AHERE
= Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
RIGHE LA Mr. ZHU Zengjin 1/1
EIFEZ L Mr. NIE Meisheng 1/1
BRREE Mr. TAN Weimin 11

FHEZE g wmARANARREETRSRERRENH K
B URESNRTEERSRERENFHES T EAES
SRR

The Remuneration Committee discussed and reviewed the
remuneration policy for Directors and senior management
of the Company, and make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management.
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Remuneration

band (RMB’000)

Details of the remuneration by band of the 6 members
of the senior management of our Company, whose
biographies are set out on pages 47 to 49 of this annual
report, for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out
below:

BAZE

Number of individual

2,000%3,000
3,000%4,000

2,000 to 3,000
3,000 to 4,000

BEREES

ERZESRE-RBYIRNTES  RERLELE (X
B)  BAERERRIEHEELE BERZEENIZREE
AT

- EMYBREERBRE UREEFESRIAEXH
AT & B AREEAZ A sk INBAZ A BT IR e (T
AT EHIEE

- RIBZBENETTH T - WENKE KT IESRE
EONEZ AR - WH R - ERE B IMNER
BEAEF SR L ERESR

- BE AR R R RGE - AEREIESE kR R E
HIERERIEFOTRERBRYE - BEARAES
AR ERRBEE T EMNER - BTERMER - 15
JIRERBERERE

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the three independent
non-executive Directors namely, Mr. CHEN Huakang
(chairman), Ms. NIE Meisheng and Mr. ZHU Zengjin. The
main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

- To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by
the internal audit division or external auditor before
submission to the Board

- To review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor

- To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the

Company’s financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system and
associated procedures, including the adequacy of
the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s

accounting and financial reporting function
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BELMEHEREEARFRAN SxEE28RT A Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual

HEREZZEGNEMEREEHEIHN TR report, one meeting of the Audit Committee were held and
the attendance record of the Audit Committee members is
set out in the table below:

BHERE A HERE

EE Directors Attended/Eligible to attend
BREE R S 4 Mr. CHEN Huakang 11
BEIGEL T Mr. NIE Meisheng 1/1
RIGHE S & Mr. ZHU Zengjin 1/1

EZZESRMATHBRMES aHREF  REEE (2 The Audit Committee reviewed the financial reporting
AR ﬂEanr&Eﬁ%EE#ﬁH&ﬁuE@E’Jﬁﬁ - BT EREMEK system, compliance procedures, internal control (including

B BIREREEREDRE)  BREERFLBE - U the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
K ABTESNIEAZ ZHAD © é%é'}lﬂfﬁﬁﬁﬁvzi,\a%%ﬁ C & experience, training programmes and budget of the
£ - BHESER R INEZ BN 5 E IR B A R - Company’s accounting and financial reporting function),

risk management systems and processes and the re-
appointment of the external auditor. The Board had not
deviated from any recommendation given by the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditor.

BENTEHNTARAREFRARARTBFENRAZES - A They also reviewed final results of the Company and its

MEBINEZHATRE S SRR ZEBRERERNE subsidiaries for the fiscal year as well as the audit report

RERHZERE - ARAIAEEELZE  BEFIUMR prepared by the external auditor relating to accounting

BAARMBEE  AREERATEHEAENRNTET issues and major findings in course of audit. There are

AR - HEEEE R AT R A R AU AT 26 - proper arrangements for employees, in confidence, to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control and other matters. Their written
terms of reference are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the
Company and the Group and of the Group’s results and
cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable
the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval. The Company provides all members
of the Board with monthly updates on Company’s
performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding
their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on page F-1 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the
Board for maintaining an adequate internal control system
to safequard shareholder investments and Company assets
and reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an
annual basis.
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The Group’s internal audit department plays a major role
in monitoring the internal governance of the Company.
The major tasks of the internal audit department are
reviewing the financial condition and internal control of
the Company and conducting comprehensive audits of all
branches and subsidiaries of the Company on a regular
basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Company and considered
the internal control system to be effective and adequate.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Annual audit fees of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012 payable to the external auditor are
approximately RMB3.3 million. The Company incurred
approximately RMB2.3 million in 2012 for services
provided by external auditor in connection with the Initial
Public Offering of the Company’s shares and incurred
approximately RMBO0.3 million for non-audit services
related to tax consultation.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. TAN Weimin, our company secretary, is responsible for
advising the Board on corporate governance matters and
ensuring that the Board policy and procedures, and the
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong
Kong laws, the Company also engages Ms. MOK Ming
Wai, director of KCS Hong Kong Limited (a company
secretarial service provider), as its joint company secretary
to assist Mr. TAN to discharge his duties as company
secretary of the Company. The primary corporate contact
person at the Company is Mr. TAN Weimin, the executive
Director and company secretary of the Company.
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Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, Mr. TAN and Ms. MOK have undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training respectively
in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication
with shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and understanding of the Group’s business,
performance and strategies. The Company also recognises
the importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of
information, which will enable shareholders and investors
to make the informed investment decisions.

The AGM of the Company provides opportunity for
shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors.
The Chairman of the Company, the chairmen of the Board
Committees of the Company will attend the AGMs to
answer shareholders’ questions. The external auditor of the
Company will also attend the AGMs to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and
auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts
a shareholders’ communication policy which aims at
establishing a two-way relationship and communication
between the Company and its shareholders and maintains
a website at www.futureholdings.com.cn, where up-to-
date information on the Company’s business operations
and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available
for public access.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each
shareholder meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting
and putting forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration
at a general meeting according to the Companies
Ordinance and the Company’s articles of association. As
regards proposing a person for election as a director, the
procedures are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries
about the Company to the Board could send their
enquiries to the principal place of business for the
Company in Hong Kong at 8th Floor, Gloucester Tower, 15
Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong (email address:
ir@futureholdings.com.cn).

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, there is no
significant change in constitutional documents of the
Company.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
FUTURE LAND DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Future Land Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages F-3 to F-130, which comprise the
consolidated and company statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated statement
of income, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013

—ZF 4 2012 Annual Report



EHEERRER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20124128318 As at 31 December 2012

M12H31H
As at 31 December
20124 20114F
2012 2011
B 5T AR¥ T AREETTT
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
ME - BEMREE Property, plant and equipment 7 117,074 117,016
BEME Investment properties 8 3,105,600 2,443,200
E L E Intangible assets 9 7,267 5,341
REEE N RIHIRE Investments in associates 10 229,890 235,000
RILFTSIRE E Deferred income tax assets 24 361,193 362,640
AIEESRERE Available-for-sale financial assets 11 181,187 156,000
T b R Land use rights 12 367,248 367,248
4,369,459 3,686,445
REBEE Current assets
THE LM IE FIE Prepayments for leasehold land 13 4,313,847 2,689,155
SIGENEREENE Properties held or under development 14 24,493,752 24,227,066
for sale
& 5 N HAth FE U FRIE N Trade and other receivables and 15 1,666,266 1,761,606
TERTFRIE prepayments
ZREIR® Restricted cash 17 1,148,089 314,536
BeMBELEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 17 4,852,130 4,221,558
36,474,084 33,213,921
EERE Total assets 40,843,543 36,900,366
FEERER OWNERS’ EQUITY
AATERZTEAENS Capital and reserves attributable to
BARFE equity holders of the Company
BT MR A Issued and fully paid capital 18 4,617 3,466
fEE Reserves 20 5,746,486 3,176,350
5,751,103 3,179,816
FEIERR Non-controlling interests 2,643,924 2,022,133
R Total equity 8,395,027 5,201,949

ZZ— 43R 2012 Annual Report ¥4 % B2 KRG MR A 7 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Cont'd)

20124128318 As at 31 December 2012

M12H31H
As at 31 December
20124F 20114F
2012 2011
B 5T AR¥ T AREETTT
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
=N LIABILITIES
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
B Borrowings 21 4,509,670 6,649,200
EIEFEHRARE Deferred income tax liabilities 24 402,872 343,237
4,912,542 6,992,437
REBAE Current liabilities
E S H A e FRIA Trade and other payables 23 9,597,029 6,627,089
TEEMEBWFIE Advances from pre-sale of properties 22 11,663,869 12,775,020
BIERRT ST B & Current income tax liabilities 1,143,835 1,085,703
B Borrowings 21 5,130,436 4,217,363
FETRR B Dividends payable 805 805
27,535,974 24,705,980
B EHEE Total liabilities 32,448,516 31,698,417
EEREEHE Total equity and liabilities 40,843,543 36,900,366
REBEEFE Net current assets 8,938,110 8,507,941
EEARRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 13,307,569 12,194,386

FF-1MBEZFEF130EMM B AMERERN—ZH °

Tan Weimin Huang Maoli
EAR EHXH
Director Director

BE BE

i 2% R KR AR 2 T Future Land Development Holdings Limited == — =44 %{ 2012 Annual Report

The notes on pages F-11 to F-130 are an integral part of
these financial statements.



ARREERRER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

#2012412 8318 As at 31 December 2012

M12H31H
As at 31 December
20125 20114
2012 2011
BsE AR¥T ARBT T
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
RFRRIHIRE Investments in subsidiaries 16 424,271 387,574
REEE Current assets
B R EAMEKEIE Trade and other receivables 15 718,417 -
HeMBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 17 895,307 4,626
1,613,724 4,626
BEEAH Total assets 2,037,995 392,200
B ERER OWNERS’ EQUITY
EATEREFEA Capital and reserves attributable to
RS equity holders of the Company
BT BB Issued and fully paid capital 18 4,617 3,466
H Reserves 20 2,019,589 384,330
ERBE Total equity 2,024,206 387,796
FEBEEREEAE Current liabilities and total liabilities
B 5 M EAM R 7B Trade and other payables 23 13,789 4,404
EEREBHEE Total equity and liabilities 2,037,995 392,200
REBEEEE Net current assets 1,599,935 222
EEATRRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 2,024,206 387,796
FF11B2FEF-1308 2 A EHRER 2 —35 ° The notes on pages F-11 to F-130 are an integral part of
these financial statements.
Tan Weimin Huang Maoli
BAR EHXF
Director Director
EZE EE
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BOFRIER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

EHZE2012412 831 H [L4EE For the year ended 31 December 2012

BZE12A318LLFE
Year ended 31 December
201245 20114
2012 2011
B 5T AR¥T AREET T
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
WA Revenue 25 17,517,266 10,767,254
SHE R Cost of sales 27 (13,587,371) (7,743,687)
EX Gross profit 3,929,895 3,023,567
BEWMEARBEKS Fair value gains on investment properties 8 31,086 273,493
SHE A& SRR Selling and marketing costs 27 (474,921) (388,091)
THREX Administrative expenses 27 (569,883) (465,941)
HA U A Other income 26 9,475 39,493
HAth Az Other expenses 26 (4,347) (20,240)
Hias — 55 Other gains — net 26 13,626 58,076
PPN Operating profit 2,934,931 2,520,357
IR N Finance income 28 48,052 19,406
BhA R Finance costs 28 (159,712) (154,548)
MERAE — FHE Finance costs — net (111,660) (135,142)
FE(HEEE N R ELE Share of results of an associated company 10 (5,110) -
R B 851 A I Profit before income tax 2,818,161 2,385,215
ey Income tax expense 30 (1,232,777) (941,284)
FRFHE Profit for the year 1,585,384 1,443,931
EEERFE - Attributable to:
AREERFEA Equity holders of the Company 930,819 886,886
FEPERR A Non-controlling interests 654,565 557,045
1,585,384 1,443,931
BRATESTEAENG Earnings per share for profit attributable
FENZRER to equity holders of the Company
— HEARREE — Basic and diluted 31 RMBO0.21 RMBO.21
BE Dividends 32 283,400 -

FEF-NMBEZFEF130B2MFAT KRRz —35 -

i 2% R KR AR 2 T Future Land Development Holdings Limited == — =44 %{ 2012 Annual Report

these financial statements.

The notes on pages F-11 to F-130 are an integral part of



BHtEERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EHZ2012412 831 H IL4EE For the year ended 31 December 2012

BZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December

20125 20114F

2012 2011

B &E AR®T T ARKEFTT

Note RMB'000 RMB'000

F R FE Profit for the year 1,585,384 1,443,931

Hip 2 mEk = Other comprehensive income = -

FRE2EWNEAE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,585,384 1,443,931
EHFREZERREE ! Attributable to:

KABEFZEFAEA Equity holders of the Company 930,819 886,886

JEVERR M = Non-controlling interests 654,565 557,045

1,585,384 1,443,931

BF-NMEZEF-130EHM BN BHREKN—F 5 © The notes on pages F-11 to F-130 are an integral part of

these financial statements.
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BHFEZREER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EHZE20129 12 A31 B L [E For the year ended 31 December 2012

RAARREEAER
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
B R&E Hhikte RERR gt FRRER EREH
Share Share Other Retained Non-controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings Sub-total interests equity
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(HizE18) (HEF20) (HEF20) (H&F20)
(Note 18) (Note 20) (Note 20) (Note 20)
R2012F1818 048 Balance at 1 January 2012 3,466 360,020 (214,198) 3,030,528 3,179,816 2,022,133 5,201,949
2EKE Comprehensive income
ERFIE Profit for the year - - - 930,819 930,819 654,565 1,585,384
ek len Other comprehensive income - - = - - - -
2HAkEAE Total comprehensive income - - - 930,819 930,819 654,565 1,583,612
BEEAETHR S Transactions with owners
BTEER (:218) Issuance of ordinary shares
(Note 18) 1,151 1,602,620 - - 1,603,771 - 1,603,771
ENNBRENRNZEHE  Pre-IPO share award scheme
(RizE19) (Note 19)
-REEERBER - value of current employee
services - - 36,697 - 36,697 - 36,697
FRARE Dividends of subsidiaries - - - - - (32,774) (32,774)
BEADRA Total contributions by and
RABEE distributions to owners 1,151 1,602,620 36,697 - 1,640,468 (32,774) 1,607,694
R20125 128318 &8 Balance at 31 December 2012 4,617 1,962,640 (177,501) 3,961,347 5,751,103 2,643,924 8,395,027

i 2% R KR AR 2 T Future Land Development Holdings Limited == — =44 %{ 2012 Annual Report



EHERZEEHR @)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Cont'd)

HZE2012F 12 A31H LLFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

ANFREREAER
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
e RiaE Hftfte REEF it FERER BRAE
Share Share Other Retained Non-controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings Sub-total interests equity
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
(Hr18) (H20) (H&20) (H20)
(Note 18) (Note 20) (Note 20) (Note 20)
RONME1F1ANES Balance at 1 January 2011 N N 118,326 2,143,642 2,261,968 1,491,306 3,753,274
2EKE Comprehensive income
ERFE Profit for the year - - - 886,886 886,886 557,045 1,443,931
ek len Other comprehensive income - - - - - - -
2ENELE Total comprehensive income - - - 836,886 836,886 557,045 1,443,931
REBNETNRS Transactions with owners
BrLEk (fzs) Issuance of ordinary shares
(Note 18) 3,466 360,020 (360,049) - 3,437 - 3,437
ERDAERENRNEHHE  PrePO share award scheme
(fiizE19) (Note 19)
-REEERKER - value of current employee
services - - 13,468 - 13,468 - 13,468
ERDFRENRNEEE  PrePO share award scheme
(FitzE19) (Note 19)
-HES  BREER - value of former employees,
2Be¥ \RBER officers and business
partners services - - 14,057 - 14,057 - 14,057
FRARRE Dividends of subsidiaries - - - - - (26,218) (26,218)
2NN Total contributions by and
RABAE distributions to owners 3,466 360,020 (332,524) - 30,962 (26,218) 4,744
R011F12A31B &8 Balance at 31 December 2011 3,466 360,020 (214,198) 3,030,528 3,179,816 2,022,133 5,201,949

FFRTEZFEF130B 2 AMBHRE 2 —3 5 ©

The notes on pages F-11 to F-130 are an integral part of

these financial statements.
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EHRERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHZE2012412 831 H [L4EE For the year ended 31 December 2012

BZ128310LFE
Year ended 31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
ihE=s AR¥T T ARBET T
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
ReTy Operating activities
LTSRS Cash generated from operations 34 3,161,944 797,414
B F 8 Interest paid (1,023,291) (979,208)
B REATER PRC income tax paid (561,268) (417,865)
BT g E R PRC land appreciation tax paid (514,816) (350,916)
SEEME(FFA) Net cash generated from/(used in)

iﬁﬁ?%ﬁ operating activities 1,062,569 (950,575)
REEE Investing activities
NEREE Additions of investment properties (551,308) (748,277)
RNEME  BENEH Additions of property, plant and equipment (20,925) (21,760)
SR EMEFTSHIE Proceeds from disposal of investment

properties - 5,450
HEWE - BE&KEE Proceeds from disposal of property,

Fri5#A plant and equipment 34 835 4,113
NG EY 5? Additions of intangible assets 9 (3,457) (4,458)
RIS A TR E Investments in associates 10 - (225,000)
WEHEESmEE Acquisition of available-for-sale

financial assets 11 (25,187) (53,066)
HET AR - MREAEHEIRE Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed - (16)
i & AT ﬁ%éﬁﬁﬁﬁ Proceeds from disposal of

FT1S 5 available-for-sale financial assets 11 — 103,332
=2 U iR B Dividends received 26 5,042 3,750
B F B Interest received 28 48,052 19,406
RETHMARSFE Net cash used in investing activities (546,948) (916,526)
BEES Financing activities
BB RIE Proceeds from borrowings 6,249,311 6,830,403
BEER Repayments of borrowings (7,475,768) (4,422,975)
EAgh B EE R/ Increase in restricted cash relating to

SRR 4IIIR S 18 financing activities 17 (229,589) (206,000)
ﬁ#fﬂxﬂxﬁiﬁﬂ Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (32,774) (64,018)

BITE @A SRE Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 18 1,668,936 -
AT PRE D BE AT R AR Payments of share issuance costs 18 (65,165) -
RMETBHRERESFR Net cash generated from financing

activities 114,951 2,137,410
REeNRSEEYEMTFE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 630,572 270,309
FYNR SRS EEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of the year 4,221,558 3,951,249
FERNESHNERSEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end

of the year 17 4,852,130 4,221,558

FFMEZEFEF130B 2T AMBRE 2 —3 5

The notes on pages F-11 to F-130 are an integral part of
these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2012412 4318 |F4[Z For the year ended 31 December 2012

1 —mRER

M ERERABR QR ([RARF]) K2010F4723
ARBEFREFSQTE (201055 A) £ 28
EXMRURERRERAF > 82012512 H3H
#2 o P EE i B fScotia Centre, 4th Floor,
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1112, Cayman
Islands 2 &Floor 4, Willow House, Cricket Square,
P.O. Box 2804, Grand Cayman KY1-1112, Cayman

Islands °

RAABREFRAR (HBIAKEE]) TEHEPREA
REME ([HEH) HEMEBRERMEREES -
RARMB AR ASHEBREBRRDA ([Wealth
Zone Hong Kongl) © ANARI A& AR A B AFirst
Priority Group Limited * MR ARIHREBE LS
AT - AEEEKRERFATIRESE (T4

E e EBRARER]) -

REBARTRODBERACEBRERIMERA T
([BEzpr]) EMR ET - AEE#EITEHA ([EH]) -
Bt - ARBINABEKAEESF AR ZIERAF -
SHFBEHRNARABEHA2012F11 5198 2

RERE -

AAB D R2012F11B298 B EB R £

(TEmD -

BREERPI  AHBBHRRUAARBET T TAR

BTl REMLZY -

AAREEE ([E5g]) M2013F3 2781 E K
BTG SHNEF-3EZFEF-130B0MA HI SR

*o

GENERAL INFORMATION

Future Land Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 23 April 2010 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law
(2010 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The address
of its registered office has been changed from
Scotia Centre, 4th Floor, George Town, Grand
Cayman KY1-1112, Cayman Islands to Floor 4,
Willow House, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 2804,
Grand Cayman KY1-1112, Cayman Islands since 3
December 2012.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the "Group”) are property
development and property investment in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"). The
Company’s parent company is Wealth Zone Hong
Kong Investments Limited (“Wealth Zone Hong
Kong”) and the Company’s ultimate holding
company is First Priority Group Limited, both of
which are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
The ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr.
Wang Zhenhua (“Mr. Wang” or the “Controlling
Shareholder”).

To prepare for the initial listing of the Company’s
shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
the Group has undertaken a reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) pursuant to which the Company
became the holding company of the subsidiaries
comprising the Group. Details of the Reorganisation
are set out in the prospectus of the Company dated
19 November 2012.

The Company’s shares began to list on the Stock
Exchange on 29 November 2012 (the “Listing”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of Renminbi (RMB’'000), unless
otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements set out
on pages F-3 to F-130 have been approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors (the
“Board”) of the Company on 27 March 2013.
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B O SRR ML

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EHZE2012412 831 H [L4EE For the year ended 31 December 2012

2 EXRSTHEBE

REAHYBRRAKMBNEZSFHABEREN T »
SRR EEBIN WERRRA2INFEERER -

2.1 REEE

EBHUBHRIREREABTEGHMAE ([FEE
fhAg]) RGN EEMBREEL ([BEMBRS
R mEEKRAEIRE - YERRAREBET
EOAHEESREERREMENEGMIELHE

EHIE

EXEEV AT B LT R E AR S R A GHE AR
REFEZEFNZEER  MARBZERERAHE
FORSIRR - ILERENFEERAERBRRMNFHR
BREEAL XEHRFEMAHNREHER
REAREERBRREG NS (ERREELEAT)
MAMKIEAEEERIGHEEN DS TASH - B
BEHEBECHBERRELSHERBZEBILEA
REBEBANAIBREE - AERKARBNRFF

BERRHKRAZ S8

BHGEBBVBREERNAHYBEHRRFEZEM
ETHREHHE EEEEERASESHBERS
RATBITEREAE - FRIENHE RS EEME
MEESS R A HM B REBEABRRMGE TN

BEEM SR E o

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets and investment
properties which are carried at fair value.

The Reorganisation for the Listing referred to in
Note 1 above involved combination of a number
of entities that were under the common control of
the Controlling Shareholder, Mr. Wang, and was
accounted for using merger accounting. The net
assets of these entities were consolidated using
the existing book values from the Controlling
Shareholder’s perspective. The results were
combined from the earliest date presented or since
the date when the combining entities first came
under the common control, where this was at a
later date, regardless of the date the Group took
actual ownership. No amount was recognised in
consideration for goodwill or excess of acquirers’
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost at the time the Reorganisation
took place.

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 5 below.
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B RS AR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2012412 4318 |F4[Z For the year ended 31 December 2012

2

2.1

BEASHHEHE @)

mREE (F)
()  FEBR2012F A2 EIETER

ATEIRBERZEFTR2012F1 A1 B %A
ZHBRFEEERGHER  MARAEEY
ES-¥=1 71

R20105127 - BB GMAGEIEES
FTEERISE125R [FIBR] - MAR AR BER
BERAVEELEEHBEENARBZET
ERAZHIIMER - BEAGTERIFE 1250
TrERATHELSBEHEAFEANHENR
EEEZREME Kt 2EEZRLERIE -
RIS A —HAI B 2 B:R - AEZARE
BARZEEDEDERLE2EHWE - i
EEFTE0NFIANB R 2 BEB 2 FE
HFEEMER  WAlERRM - ALEER
2012F R IEISET » B TEISET W AR E A
EENEHUBRREKNEATE  RAR
REEFBEREMEZEBEN - IS
R IR EMERRI D 2B\ Rz - M
EEBHEME - Bt - FlBREHES
AR R E R B R EFE -

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(i)

Amended standard adopted by the
Group in 2012

The following amendment to existing
standard is mandatory for the first time
for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2012 and is relevant to the Group’s
operations.

In December 2010, the HKICPA amended
HKAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ to introduce
an exception to the principle for the
measurement of deferred tax assets or
liabilities arising on an investment property
measured at fair value. HKAS 12 requires
an entity to measure the deferred tax
relating to an asset depending on whether
the entity expects to recover the carrying
amount of the asset through use or sale.
The amendment introduces a rebuttable
presumption that an investment property
measured at fair value is recovered entirely
by sale. The amendment is applicable
retrospectively to annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2012 with early
adoption permitted. The Group has
adopted this amendment in 2012 but this
amendment has no significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements,
as the investment properties of the Group
are held with a business model to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over
time, rather than through sale. Accordingly,
the presumption is rebutted and related
deferred tax is not remeasured.
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B O SRR ML

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EHZE2012412 831 H [L4EE For the year ended 31 December 2012

2 EASHBEEHE @)

21 HwmREE(E)

(i)  FKEER2012F BASITRABIFET -~ #BIEET
R RAIEET K

BETEAMBREEROITE] EETRE
BEAMETAE EMER2012F1A18H
WEFERNAES - ZEHAEEEBHEE
RIZERIZIIRA0T -

ERGIERNE IR BERRMES (R201267818
(BFTA) S EHBNEEER)

BEUHREEDN BE-EKECBEENRSRAE
F7% (BFTK) (201351 B1 B2 BFRE
EEEM)

EEEFENF195 RERM (R2013F 1 1A%
(20115 5T) R FEER)

BAI I RE &R SR TE (M2015F1A188 2%
£95 IR EE )

BRI EREER AREBBHRER (R2013F1 /18
105 ZERIRNEE )

BAMBREER  HARZH (R2013F1A1R%2#%
E115% FInmFEER)

BERBREERN  BEAHEGERMES (R2013F
F12% TATERZ RRBROFEER)

BEPBREER DAEMEME (R2013F1 818K
E13% ZERFRBNERER)

BAGHERNE27H:  ERBBERE (R2013F1818%
(2011 F{E7T) ZERBRNEEER)

EEGHERFE28% MNEERRNAELENRE
(20115 &5]) (201351 B1 B2 B FRE
FEAEW)

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(ii) New/revised standards and amendments
that are required to be adopted by the
Group after 2012

Certain new/revised standards and
amendments to existing standards of
HKFRSs have been published but are not yet
effective for the annual period beginning on
1 January 2012. Those that are relevant to
the Group’s operations are as follows:

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
(Amendments)  (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2012)
HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets
(Amendments) and Financial Liabilities (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013)
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits (effective for annual
(Revised 2011) periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after
1 January 2015)
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
(effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013)
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013)
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
(effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013)
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (effective for
annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013)
HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (effective for
(Revised 2011) annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013)
HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
(Revised 2011) Ventures (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013)
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2.1

2.2

2.2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(ii) New/revised standards and amendments
that are required to be adopted by the
Group after 2012 (Cont’d)

The Group has not early adopted any new/
revised standards and amendments to the
existing standards that have been issued but
are not effective in 2012. The Group is in
the process of making an assessment on the
impact of these new/revised standards and
amendments and does not anticipate that
the adoption when they become effective
will result in any material impact on the
Group's results of operations and financial
position.

Subsidiaries
Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. The Group also assesses
existence of control where it does not have more
than 50% of the voting power but is able to
govern the financial and operating policies by virtue
of de-facto control. De-facto control may arise from
circumstances such as enhanced minority rights or
contractual terms between shareholders, etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group (or to the
Controlling Shareholder under merger accounting).
They are de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from
inter-company transactions that are recognised in
assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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2.2

2.2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
Consolidation (Cont'd)

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position,
consolidated statement of income, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

(i) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
as described below to account for business
combinations, except for the Reorganisation
which had been accounted for as stated in
Note 2.1 above.

Under the acquisition method of accounting,
the consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred also includes
the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest's proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.
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2.2

2.2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont’'d)

Consolidation (Cont'd)

(i)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

If the business combination is achieved
in stages, the acquisition date carrying
value of the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to
fair value at the acquisition date; any gains
or losses arising from such re-measurement
are recognised in consolidated statement of
income.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed
to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 either in
consolidated statement of income or as a
change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the sum of consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previously
held equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the
sum of those amounts are less than the fair
value of the identifiable net assets of the
subsidiary acquired and the measurement
of all amounts has been reviewed,
the difference is recognised directly in
consolidated statement of income.
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2.2

2.2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Consolidation (Cont'd)

(ii)

(iii)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without loss of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the other owners
in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are
also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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2.2

2.2.2

2.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
Separate financial statements

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less impairment (Note 16). Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates or associated companies are all entities
over which the Group has significant influence
but not control or joint control,
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights.
associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss
and other reserve movements of the investee after

generally

Investments in

the date of acquisition. The Group’s investments in
associates include goodwill (net of any accumulated
impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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2 EBEXSEEME @ 2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

23 HELQT (E) 2.3 Associates (Cont'd)
REBFTREE R RMEERAEIRE HREERA The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition
R MAMEEMEEEEREEZSHANEME profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated
W z=NER - WHEAZERENERERSE - 4% statement of income, and its share of post-
EEEHE QRS ERS NGBS R A Qa8 acquisition movement in other comprehensive
@ (B EAA MR EN TR & - BIREEA income is recognised in other comprehensive
SHE—THREE  RIFLAEBEERBE R RARE income with a corresponding adjustment to the
ERHEFERBAZNHRIE - AREEGEREBHE carrying amount of the investment. When the
ERBEATINRERSFERERERE - —BfF Group's share of losses in an associate equals or
EREERRE  AEEGKEEQFARE S FEEER exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
HEEZETERESE  TRAMFBEER ELEE other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
REFE (B8 REEEE - recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal

or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. The Group determines at
each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of profit/(loss) of an associate’ in
the consolidated statement of income.

B AR B R QR L R TR 5B BN Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
BB IR PR A E @R A EH R AR downstream transactions between the Group
WG RR - REREBTGHE  BRIEFHRHE and its associates are recognised in the Group’s
AAEEEED HIRRE - BE AR BREE financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
VEFR - U REREBFTRMAERE I - investor's interests in the associates. Unrealised

losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

REFERRIRAEFMESENESREBES SIRERA® Dilution gains and losses arising in investments
R o in associates are recognised in the consolidated

statement of income.
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2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker (the “CODM").
The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as Mr.
Wang who makes strategic decisions.

Management has determined the operating
segments based on the reports reviewed by the
CODM that are used to make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). Since the
majority of the assets and operations of the
Group are located in the PRC, the financial
statements are presented in RMB, which is
the functional currency of the Company and
the presentation currency of the Group.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

(iii)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position of
the Group entities are translated at
the closing date of that statement of
financial position;

(b) income and expenses for each
statement of income and statement
of comprehensive income of the
Group entities are translated at
average exchange rate; and

(o) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated as a
separate component of equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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2.6

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The initial cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated
statement of income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings 35 years
— Motor vehicles 5-10 years
— Furniture, fittings and equipment 5-10 years
— Leasehold improvements 3-5 years

The assets’ residual value and useful life are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
“QOther gains/(losses) — net”
consolidated statement of income.

recognised as in the
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2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the Group, is classified as investment
property. Investment property also includes property
that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings owned by the Group.
Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest
of the definition of investment property is met. In
this case, the operating lease is accounted for as if
it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its
cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment property is carried at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised and presented
separately in the consolidated statement of income.

Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset.
If this information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. These valuations are performed at
balance sheet date by external valuers.
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2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Investment properties (Cont'd)

Property under construction is measured at fair
value if the fair value is considered to be reliably
measurable. If the fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment property under
construction will be measured at cost until such
time as fair value can be determined or construction
is completed, whichever is earlier. Any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date
and its then carrying amount shall be recognised in
the consolidated statement of income. Investment
property that is being redeveloped for continuing
use as investment property, or for which the market
has become less active, continues to be measured
at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the
asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when
incurred.
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2.8

2.9

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Intangible assets
Trademarks

Trademarks of the Group are separately acquired
trademarks which are shown at historical cost.
They have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost of trademarks over their estimated useful
lives of 10 years.

Computer software

Computer software of the Group comprises
acquired computer software which is capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have
not yet been available for use are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each balance sheet date.
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2.10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Properties held or under development for
sale

Properties held or under development for sale are
included in current assets at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The costs of properties held
or under development consist of costs of leasehold
land, construction expenditure, capitalised
borrowing costs and other direct costs incurred
during the development period. The costs of
properties held are determined by apportionment of
the total development costs for that development
project attributable to the unsold properties. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business as determined
by management with reference to the prevailing
market conditions, less further costs expected to be
incurred to completion and selling and marketing
costs.

Land use rights

All land in the PRC is stated-owned or collectively-
owned and no individual ownership right exists.
Land use rights are acquired by the Group for
development of properties. Land use rights held for
development for sale are inventories and measured
at lower of cost and net realisable value, of which
those within normal operating cycle are classified
as current assets and included in properties held or
under development for sale, while those out of the
normal operating cycle are classified as non-current
assets. Land use rights fall within investment
properties are classified as investment properties
(Note 2.7).
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2.12

2.121

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial assets
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables, and
available for sale. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for those with maturities greater
than 12 months after the end of reporting
period, which are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise certain items in “Trade and
other receivables and prepayments” and
bank deposits included in “cash and cash
equivalents” and “restricted cash” in the
statement of financial position (Note 15 and
Note 17).

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless management intends to
dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the end of the reporting period.
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2.12

2.12.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)
Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the consolidated statement of income.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated statement of income as part of
other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the consolidated
statement of income as part of other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.12 Financial assets (Cont'd)

2.12.3 Impairment of financial assets

(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event
(or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors are experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is @ measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.12 Financial assets (Cont'd)

2.12.3 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of income.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.12 Financial assets (Cont'd)

2.12.3 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

(ii)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria
referred to in (i) above. In the case of equity
investments classified as available for sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated statement of income on
equity instruments are not reversed through
the consolidated statement of income. If, in
a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed through
the consolidated statement of income.
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2.12

2.12.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired;

o the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset, or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.13

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is
reduced through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of income.

When a trade or other receivable is uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account for
trade and other receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to
the consolidated statement of income.

Trade and other receivables are included in current
assets, except for those maturing more than twelve
months after the reporting period (or out of the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer)
which are classified as non-current assets.
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2.15

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
and other payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within twelve months after the
reporting period (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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2.18

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of income over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period when they are incurred.
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2.19

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated statement of income, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluate positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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2.19

2.20

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Current and deferred income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits

In accordance with the rules and regulations
of mainland China, the mainland China based
employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments in the mainland China
under which the Group and the mainland China
based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ salaries, subject to a
certain ceiling.
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2.20

2.21

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Employee benefits (Cont'd)

The municipal and provincial governments
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired
mainland China based employees payable under
the plans described above. Other than the monthly
contributions, the Group has no further obligation
for the payment of retirement and other post-
retirement benefits of its employees. The assets
of these plans are held separately from those
of the Group in independently administrated
funds managed by the municipal and provincial
governments.

Share-based payments

The Group operates an equity-settled pre-IPO
share award scheme, under which the Group
receives services from employees and certain
former employees, officers and business partners as
consideration for equity instruments (awards) of the
Company. The fair value of the current employee
and certain former employees, officers and business
partners services received in exchange for the grant
of the shares is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the shares granted:

o including any market performance
conditions;

° excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions;
and

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.
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2.21

2.22

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Share-based payments (Cont'd)

Non-market performance vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of
shares that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of shares that are expected to vest
based on the non-market performance vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
statement of income, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

The grant by the Company of its shares to the
employees of subsidiaries in the Group is treated as
a capital contribution. The fair value of employee
services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investments in subsidiaries,
with a corresponding credit to equity account of
the Company.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is more likely than not that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.
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2.22

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Cont'd)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.
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2.23

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of
properties and services in the ordinary course of the
Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of returns,
rebates and discounts and after eliminated sales
within the Group. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(i) Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is
recognised when the risks and rewards
of the properties are transferred to the
purchasers, which is when the construction
of relevant properties has been completed
and the properties have been delivered
to the purchasers pursuant to the sales
agreement and collectibility of related
receivables is reasonably assured. Deposits
and instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition
are recorded as “Advances from pre-sale of
properties” in the consolidated statement of
financial position under current liabilities.

(ii) Rental income

Rental income from properties being let
under operating leases is recognised on a
straight line basis over the lease terms.

(iii)  Service income

Revenue from services is recognised when
services have been provided, total amount
of revenue and costs can be estimated
reliably and the collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.
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2.23

2.24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)
(iv)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired
loans and receivables is recognised using the
original effective interest rate.

(v) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions. Government
grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the consolidated statement of income over the
period necessary to match them with the costs
they are intended to compensate. Government
grants that become receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to an
entity within the Group with no future related costs
are recognised as income of the period in which
they become receivable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial guarantee liabilities

The Group provides financial guarantees for certain
property purchasers on mortgage facilities with
banks.

Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised initially
at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
liabilities. After initial recognition, such contracts
are measured at the higher of the present value
of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation and the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Financial guarantee liabilities are derecognised from
the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled or expired.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated statement of income on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised, as a liability where applicable, in the
Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are properly
approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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3.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Subsequent events

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period (“adjusting
events”) are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that
are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
when material.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk, cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is engaged in the development,
sale and management of properties solely
in the PRC with almost all transactions
denominated in RMB. In addition, the
majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB. Accordingly, the
Group is not exposed to significant foreign
currency risk, except for the bank deposits
from the Company’s initial public offering,
which are denominated in HKD.

No hedging has been arranged as
management is expecting converting the
HKD deposits into RMB fairly quickly.

As at 31 December 2012, if HKD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB, all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit of the Group for the year
would have been RMB12,052,000 (2011:
RMB174,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange loss/gain from
the bank deposits denominated in HKD.
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3 HHREREE @ 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Market risk (Cont'd)
HIERR (&
3.1 WHERR (5 (iij)  Price risk
(i) &R The Group is exposed to price risk because
HRAEEMBRECAHEEEBRAR of investments held by the Group and
PERIHLESMEE  WAKEAXE classified on the consolidated statements
EE R - of financial position as available-for-sale
financial assets.
EERE AKERAEREMEAZAERER In the opinion of the directors, the Group’s
gWAEXR - MEAAEETBERE - T81F exposure to price risk with regard to its
HEREBEYBEEEF RERTANEENE investments is not significant since it is
RIEE - FTBEREAKLESRUER T IE the Group’s policy not to invest significant
1T e amounts that might have a detrimental
impact to the Group’s financial results.
All investments must be approved by the
Chairman of the Board before they may be
entered into.
TREMSFERAHEERTEFSNDAE The following table summarises the Group’s
BLEATHS%  ZEFNEEEEA other comprehensive income increase/
SEEMPEKSEM, RN E - decrease as a result of gains/losses on equity
securities classified as available for sale if
the fair value of the securities increase/
decrease by 5%.
BZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20125 20114F
2012 2011
ARET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
— 5% - 5 percent higher 6,795 5,850
— T#5% - 5 percent lower (6,795) (5,850)
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3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

Except for cash deposits in the bank, the
Group has no other significant interest-
bearing assets.

The Group’'s exposure to changes in
interest rates is mainly attributable to
its borrowings from bank and non-bank
financial institutions. Borrowings at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The Group has not hedged its cash flow or
fair value interest rate risk. The interest rate
and terms of repayments of borrowings are
disclosed in Note 21.

Management does not anticipate significant
impact to interest-bearing assets resulted
from the changes in interest rates, because
the interest rates of bank deposits are not
expected to change significantly.
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3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, if
interest rates on borrowings at floating rates
had been 50 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, the post-
tax profit and capitalised interest of the
Group for the years ended 31 December
2012 and 2011 would have changed as
follows:

BZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
MBiEFEE I S CR) Post-tax profit increase/(decrease)
— EFAS0E &R, - 50 basis points higher (4,814) (488)
— TFAS0EES - 50 basis points lower 4,814 488
BARA B S CFd) Capitalised interest increase/(decrease)
— FH#501EE B, - 50 basis points higher 26,246 29,427
— T H#E501E 2, - 50 basis points lower (26,246) (29,427)
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3.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. The carrying amounts of bank deposits
and trade and other receivables included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to its financial assets.

Cash transactions are limited to high-credit-quality
financial institutions. The table below shows the
bank deposit balances as at 31 December 2012 and
2011:

®W12H31H
As at 31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
AR®T T ARBTT
REHF Counter party RMB’000 RMB’000
AR BN KA RITRT R Deposits in the four major state-owned banks

of the PRC 3,761,048 3,482,973
R EM FHIRITEEFER Deposits in other listed banks of the PRC 1,327,230 778,222
REMERITHFER Deposits in other banks 899,831 261,002
5,988,109 4,522,197

BEEEEMITERZERSGE TN TIROTAMES

EAAIEIR ©

Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance of these counterparties.
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3.2

3.3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of properties are made to buyers with an
appropriate financial strength and appropriate
percentage of down payment. Meanwhile, the
Group has the right to cancel the sales contract in
the event that the buyers default in payment, and
put the underlying properties back to the market
for re-sale. Therefore, the credit risk from sales of
properties is limited.

Other receivables mainly comprise receivables from
related parties and deposits made in the ordinary
course of business. The Group closely monitors
these other receivables to ensure actions are taken
to recover these balances in the case of any risk of
default.

Liquidity risk

Management of the Group aims to maintain
sufficient cash through internally generated sales
proceeds and an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities to meet its operation needs and
commitments in respect of property projects.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period as at 31 December 2012
and 2011 to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.

—FUR —2-F —ERF BEEUE &&t
Between Between
Within 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
ARETn AR¥®TR AR®BTR AR%®Tn AR%¥®Trx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
®2012%12A31AH As at 31 December 2012
fEmAe (ME21) Borrowings, principal (Note 21) 5,130,436 2,700,670 1,359,000 450,000 9,640,106
SERHE Interest payments on borrowings 586,905 261,389 201,499 67,328 1,117,121
ZHMEMENFIE  Trade and other payables
(T BEENTE) (excluding taxes payable) 9,388,569 - - - 9,388,569
FERRE Dividends payable 805 - - - 805
BEBEAREEY%E  Guarantees in respect of mortgaged
MERIZIBEE K facilities granted to purchasers of
R (HiE36) the Group’s properties (Note 36) 3,261,710 731,975 = - 3,993,685
18,368,425 3,694,034 1,560,499 517,328 24,140,286
A20114128318  As at 31 December 2011
fERAE (H21) Borrowings, principal (Note 21) 4,253,200 3,671,200 2,978,000 - 10,902,400
SHERFE Interest payments on borrowings 892,543 595,939 164,102 - 1,652,584
BHMEMEMNFIE  Trade and other payables
(TBREENTE) (excluding taxes payable) 6,426,631 - - - 6,426,631
e AR S, Dividends payable 805 - - - 305
EHEEAREEYE  Guarantees in respect of mortgaged
MmERILBEE RN facilities granted to purchasers of
R (Hi5E36) the Group’s properties (Note 36) 3,661,850 308,901 - - 3,970,751
15,235,029 4,576,040 3,142,102 - 22,953,171

et : ERFIBREZERERRER - L ARE2012F 20116127831

ERIESTEEA

-

EEFRGEH -

i

B LD REA2012F M2011F12A318H

Note: The interest on borrowings is calculated based on

borrowings held as at 31 December 2012 and 2011

without taking into account future borrowings. Floating-

rate interests are estimated using the current interest rate

as at 31 December 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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ROBSRE  BIHRIHEEENRDE

3.3

3.4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Due to dynamic nature of the underlying business,
the management of the Group is closely monitoring
the risk of the liquidity and takes the following
actions to manage the liquidity risk:

i) prepares annual cash flow forecast and
updates such forecast on a monthly basis to
reflect the latest changes and monitor the
liquidity risk closely;

ii) maintains strategic cooperation with major
banks and other financial institutions to
secure credit facilities where appropriate;

iii) continues to obtain longer term financing
facilities, mainly project bank loans with
pledge of the Group’'s properties under
development, or other resources of funding
which the Group considers appropriate;

iv) proactively promotes the sales of the
Group’s completed properties and pre-sales
of properties under development. The Group
also considers the flexibility of adjusting the
price and volume on sale of properties for
management of liquidity risk.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.
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AEENBEERBLREREEN o I RRRE
BFERAEAGRETE - BHFRRBRERERE
ReNReEE8Y - EXNERREHEEREBERMD

VLSRRI EERFERAE -

A2012FFM2011F12A31H » AEBEE GG R

3.4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

Capital risk management (Cont'd)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is calculated as total equity, as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position,
plus net debt.

The gearing ratios of the Group at 31 December

R 2012 and 2011 were as follows:
MA12H31H

As at 31 December
20124 20114F
2012 2011
AR®ET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EE L] Total borrowings 9,640,106 10,866,563
B ReMIReEEYD Less: Cash and cash equivalents (4,852,130) (4,221,558)
BERIERE Net debt 4,787,976 6,645,005
-tk Total equity 8,395,027 5,201,949
BB Total capital 13,183,003 11,846,954
BEBELE Gearing ratio 36% 56%

BEBGBHLEMN201E12A31BRKE  FERAL

FRBTEBR (ME18) REERER -

The decrease in the gearing ratio as at 31 December
2012 resulted primarily from issuance of ordinary
shares (Note 18) and repayment of borrowings
during the year.
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4 AREEME 4  FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

AEERREHYBRRPEZAABEAENSRT
E—T MBEEMBRELNETR - IRERT ESFRA

The Group adopts HKFRS 7 for financial instruments
that are measured in the consolidated financial

THARBEAEERRUARBEAEDREDRK

statements at fair value, this requires disclosure of

B fair value measurements by level of the following

fair value measurement hierarchy:

- HREESEGENERMIZRE CREHAE) - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
(B—FE) - for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- RE-—BREENREN  BEEREBENA - Inputs other than quoted prices included
B (MER) s (BERITED) & within level 1 that are observable for the
ZMEAE (F2E) - asset or liability, either directly (that is, as

prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

— WIEKEBEANBEOMSHEMEETNEE - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
sBEMNEAER (ARERE AR (F= based on observable market data (that is,
&) - unobservable inputs) (level 3).

AEEHHECHEERRE-BRAABET The available-for-sale financial assets of the Group

2o are measured at fair value by level 3.

TROBIZFAREBENR2012FFM2011F12 A3181%

The following table presents the Group’s assets that

NRABEETENEE are measured at fair value at 31 December 2012
and 2011 respectively:

- EfE - &5t

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ARBTRT AR®TR ARBTR AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

HESREE  Available-for-sale financial assets

7201256128318 At 31 December 2012 - - 181,187 181,187
2011 12H31H At 31 December 2011 - - 156,000 156,000

HZE2012F 2011 12A31BIEFEE =BT AR
W E B FMITET o

The changes in level 3 instruments for the years
ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 are presented
in Note 11.

EEBMSTPRINEMITAZ AR BBERIANREE
BEXRANTISRETIER - MRZMEFATUTHH R
REMRRF IS - KHE - LA EEEEH K
EHE%%%Y#@@%%#%% W BEERERTE as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
NEMBRSNER EFHER - ZTMHEES available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
RER o group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring

market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
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FRREEER M A R TS SR T A A AR R A K E AR Y
Eggfhat - WA ETARAABEFTENMAEEESH

HRABERE  IZTASFAFE_E -

5 EARERAERAE
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BRTERREG 2 ERIEM) (EIFETE - ERE
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ST EDHENERERER - AEEERN T —
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Z RS BRI T XA ©

51 HEEEGURABIBHMEBRS

AEBSEMBO T EFAERAE T T HEREEHE
EWE - mRASEETYEREIAR DE T IR
5T - BEE B VTR E R B ARBURR R K
RNEE - RELBRNFEBEENLE  BEERKR
REBRFEHZBEEERFBER TEA BN G LA
ENMERBEB P RO TEEERR  HBEERE
BRI ERNRERBERRGEENSE - it kR
REREMEHEHARBARBENEERRESE

By 488
R °

5.1

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (cont'd)

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The management makes estimates
and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are outlined below.

Development costs directly attributable to
property development activities

The Group allocates portions of land and
development costs to properties held and under
development for sale. As certain of the Group’s
property development projects are developed and
completed by phases, the budgeted development
costs of the whole project are dependent on the
estimate on the outcome of total development.
Based on the experience and the nature of the
development undertaken, the management makes
estimates and assumptions concerning the future
events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Given the uncertainties involved
in the property development activities, the related
actual results may be higher or lower than the
amount estimated at the end of the reporting
period. Any change in estimates and assumptions
would affect the Group’s operating performance in
future years.
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52 RIGERHEZHEEWENERERE

EEEREBETISEIEZHENENMGTTREE
BYELEYEIRRERE - EXRPEVETHNEK
Bt BERAUKREOSFRAEEINHERRS HRD
st - BEHERIE NSRS RSB BRFEN

RERBRELTE -

53 HEHEER

AEEBHANT B IR ED - A - ARBREHE
MERRGEEETESHH RN RIEERSE
PR - BAEEERMEFIAEE LHIBERN S
B ARBRBEEEEBRAEZEARBHRBERBER
AREMERELNREGT  ERALFLHEE
B o MEBA LA RN BZRGHNEE - MARE
BRF BRI B HEARE XS HARRNMEH

R °

5.2

5.3

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (cont'd)

Provision for impairment of properties
held or under development for sale

The management makes provision for impairment
of properties held or under development for sale
based on the estimate of the recoverable amount of
the properties. Given the volatility of the property
market in the PRC, the actual recoverable amount
may be higher or lower than the estimate made as
at the end of the reporting period. Any increase or
decrease in the provision would affect the Group’s
operating performance in future years.

Land appreciation tax of the PRC

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax
in the PRC. However, since the implementation
and settlement of the tax varies among various
tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, significant
estimate is required in determining the amount of
the land appreciation tax. The Group recognises the
land appreciation tax based on management’s best
estimates according to its understanding of the
interpretation of tax rules by various tax authorities.
The final tax outcome could be different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax expense in
the periods in which such taxes have been finalised
with local tax authorities.
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5.5
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AEEBHRTECEMEY - EEELEMEHN
BERAFELERHE - ERAFEBBES  2ER
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HERMeTERBRE T MENMERAX -

HEEERASB AR REELRATANBALEE
BUHEZRIWMBER  UBERLFESEZERBRT
ERAENEEHRAEE - ERERXEEMTR -

REMENDAEE

AABENSKEEESEARUBNLREMBENNY
EERNERTS LNER - ERZZFEHRNER
T EREEEAEAABEMNEENETSHE
FEEHEF - EREZRTRARNER - 845

(i) HE R ETR (RETEBELEEA
BRRE) IMEERNERTS ENER
(AR RERELAR)

5.4

5.5

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (cont'd)

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income tax
in the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for corporate income
tax. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that we initially recorded, such
difference will impact the income tax expense in
the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

Fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for the properties with similar
lease and other contracts. In the absence of such
information, the management determines the
amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making its estimate, the management
considers information from a variety of sources
including:

(i) Current prices in an active market for
properties of different nature, condition
or location (or subject to different lease or
other contracts), adjusted to reflect those
differences;
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5 EXREFEFRAE @ 5  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)

55 REVENLIAEE B) 5.5 Fair value of investment properties (Cont'd)

(ii) RAEREMISFREBEMUMERNTBRER (% (i) Recent prices of similar properties in less

ERSELAE  URBMERZSERET active markets, with adjustments to reflect

R SH B HREEMR RN EREE) & any changes in economic conditions since

the date of the transactions that occurred at
those prices; and,

(i)  WBREARKRBE S REEITHA A M IER (i) Discounted cash flow projections based
AR ERE - MZFEATEREMR on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
EHOBEEME NN BRR (NEAEER derived from the term of any existing lease
T) SMERRE (a2 AR AR A S LI % and other contract and (where possible)
ERMEES)  UKEARARMRESTSE from external evidence such as current
HEBENEBARERE ST RRHEITT market rents for similar properties in the
fhEBEIR RGE - same location and condition, and using

discount rates that reflect current market
assessment of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of the cash flows.

REEGERNIREYERIUREE - Wit RAAAR For investment properties under construction, the
B R e &R IE B E SN AR % Group adopted investment approach, and have
THZEEEMNESE  KESZMEBBEASESI taken into account the expended construction costs
FIEETEI T AR EFTEN - RERITREMEMS - and the costs that will be expended to complete the
HEDBEEEZZEHREEEHONFHEHESI development to reflect the quality of the completed
A (FEEFRMERKRAZEREERAIERE) (FH development on the basis that the properties will
BERETE - WEKSENERMIS ENLLEEREE be developed and completed in accordance with
g e the Group’s latest development plan. For completed

investment properties, valuations were based on
investment approach by capitalisation of the net
rental income derived from the existing tenancy
agreements with due allowance for reversionary
income potential of the properties and by reference
to comparable price in an active market.

REBMREMETIZREENRHBEESHIH Y The Group’s investment properties comprise mainly
¥ ([IP1)) MBEVES —HNBmHmE ([1P2]) + 15 a portion of Injoy International Plaza (“IP1") and
LR BT 878 BN T © IPIRZIP23 B 2012412 A a portion of Phase | of Injoy Plaza (“IP2"), both
NM3IRHET - IPIAIIP2H B LA 7 Al /£142,556F located in Changzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.
oK (B4539,879F KRB E ) 163,526F 77K IP1 and IP2 were completed in December and
(B3521,300F FFRMEE) o March 2012, respectively. Total gross floor area of

IP1 and IP2 are 142,556 square meters (including
carparks of 39,879 square metres) and 163,526
square meters (including carparks of 21,300 square
metres) respectively.
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5 EXRGEHEE RAE

55 REWMENDIAMBEE

FHEERZOREMERCRIREDEMANTER

BIIRIS

(%) 5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (cont'd)

5.5 Fair value of investment properties (Cont'd)

Major data used in the valuation of investment

properties under construction and completed
investment properties are as follows:

1P1
20124 20114
12A31H 12A318
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
e BB (AR FHX, H) Rental rate (RMB/square meter/day) 3.20 3.79
g 25 =& Yield rate 6.83% 6.50%
EMECBINENER Capital value if completed (RMB’000) 1,685,000 1,698,000

(AR®FT)

BEENEEREN (ARETIT) Construction costs to incur (RMB’000) - 294,851
W T HE Completion date December 2012 End of 2012
20125128 20124 K

1P2
20124 20114
12A831H 12A31H
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
HeBEE (ARE FHX, "H) Rental rate (RMB/square meter/day) 1.87 2.04
W= Yield rate 6.39% 6.50%
EVECBTINERNEE Capital value if completed (RMB’000) 1,416,000 1,552,000

(AR®EFT)

BEEMEZRKAN (ARETIT) Construction costs to incur (RMB’000) - 11,775
T HH Completion date March 2012 Early 2012
2012634 2012 1))
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5 EBERSFEAFTRAEK @ 5  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)

55 REVENLIAEE B) 5.5 Fair value of investment properties (Cont'd)
HeBEENRTERUE  MEHRNEE - Witk The rental rates were estimated depending on
HEBHNTISEBEANEANRGE - AEERMEER the actual location, type and quality of the
wmEREFTRTISEIE - BEANERKANSH properties, and taking into account market data
PR EEENERKARELE - MBEENER and projections at the valuation date. The Group
BRALEEMENRITAE RELE - considers the market data when estimating the

yield rate. Construction costs incurred are based
on the actual costs incurred as reflected in the
accounting records, while the construction costs to
incur are based on the most updated budget for
the construction of the properties.

RERRGEENHSERE WA T MERRARER Were the rental rate, yield rate and the construction
[ B TR R BUR I IR A2 10% - 7A2012F F120114F costs to incur assumed to increase or decrease by
12ANEZEEMENEABERESIT : 10% from management’s estimate, the carrying

amount of investment properties as at 31 December
2012 and 2011 would have changed as follows:

M12H31H
As at 31 December
20124 20114F
2012 2011
AR¥T T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B EE I CRid) Investment properties increase/(decrease)
—HeEEEINI0% - 10 percent rental rate higher 232,688 269,000
—HEEERI10% — 10 percent rental rate lower (225,982) (260,000)
B CRi) Investment properties increase/(decrease)
— PR RIEINT10% — 10 percent yield rate used higher (199,859) (183,000)
— FTRREZRRI10% — 10 percent yield rate used lower 233,448 217,000
EWEE I Cri) Investment properties increase/(decrease)
— BEERERAARIEMNI0% — 10 percent construction costs to incur higher TEA N/A (25,000)
— BEENERKANRD10% - 10 percent construction costs to incur lower TEA N/A 34,000
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UAERRRFANTRE EHEENSRRE

A AERHIIRE ©

5.6

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (cont'd)

Consolidation of project companies with
legal equity interests less than 50%

As stated in Note 21 and Note 38, the Group
entered into a number of trust financing
arrangements with trust financing companies in the
form of transferring equity interests of or issuing
new shares of the project companies to the trust
financing companies with repurchase obligation
at a fixed amount in a future date. Under certain
circumstances with these arrangements, the Group
holds legal equity interests or board seats at less
than 50%. Significant judgement is required in
determining whether these project companies shall
be consolidated.

The operation environment and structure of the
project companies require that all the major
financial and operating policies are determined
before trust financing arrangements are entered
into. The project companies may not deviate
from its approved purpose and design in any
material respect. At the same time, according to
various legal documents, including the articles
of association of the project companies, trust
financing arrangement contracts, framework
agreements and other agreements with the trust
financing companies, the Group retains the power
to operate and manage the project companies in
the ordinary course of business and the day-to-day
management of the project companies. The board
seats and the veto/unilateral rights held by the trust
financing companies are considered as a protection
to safeguard the creditor’s rights.
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5.6
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ERELELIAR ARV BMEERREEANIAR
NAESTEFNNEREN - ARREFRA/BER
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5.6

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (cont'd)

Consolidation of project companies with
legal equity interests less than 50%
(Cont'd)

In addition, pursuant to the trust financing
arrangements, the Group has the obligation to
repurchase the equity interest from the trust
financing companies for fixed amounts upon
termination or expiry of the relevant trust financing
arrangements. In light of such obligation to
repurchase, the instruments are classified as debt.
Accordingly, the trust financing companies are only
entitled to pre-determined fixed return as specified
in the trust agreements, while the Group is entitled
to majority beneficiary interests and bears risks from
the operation of the relevant project companies.

Considering the fact that the substance of these
trust financing arrangements is collateralized
borrowings and that the Group retains the practical
ability to govern the financial and operating policies
of these project companies so as to obtain benefits
from activities of the project companies, the
directors of the Company are of the view that the
project companies shall be consolidated into the
Group’s financial statements.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating
segments based on the reports reviewed by the
CODM that are used to make strategic decisions.
The chairman, Mr. Wang has been identified as the
CODM.

The Group manages its business by two operating
segments, which is consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the
Group’s CODM for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form
the following reportable segments.

° Jiangsu Future Land Co., Ltd., a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with
domestically listed foreign investment shares
(the "B share company”).

° Property projects not within the B share
company (the “Non-B share companies”)

The B share company is mainly engaged in
development of residential properties, while the
Non-B share companies are mainly engaged in
development of mixed-use complexes. All the
property development projects are in the PRC and
accordingly majority of the revenue of the Group
are derived from the PRC and most of the assets
are located in the PRC.

The CODM assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of revenue
and profit before income tax and fair value gains
on investment properties. The measurement basis
excludes the effects of income tax expense and fair
value gains on investment properties.
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6 DWER @ 6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
BZ2012F12831ALFE
Year ended 31 December 2012
Bt AT JEBER 2 & DEEE e rEEEG
B share  Non-B share
company companies Total segment Elimination  Total Group
ARBTT ARBTRT AR®T T AR¥T T ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
DEUA Segment revenue 14,300,447 3,221,061 17,521,508 (4,242) 17,517,266
BRILEMERNR Segment profit before fair value
BEKREMMAEN gains on investment properties
B IR bE and income tax expense 2,336,309 497,652 2,833,961 (46,886) 2,787,075
BRBA Finance income 39,759 8,293 48,052 = 48,052
AR A Finance costs (51,199) (108,513) (159,712) - (159,712)
FEM#HE Depreciation and amortisation (15,458) (6,050) (21,508) - (21,508)
NG E S Share of results of an associated
company (5,110) - (5,110) - (5,110)
FEMNEEERET A reconciliation to profit for the year is as follows:
HHEREEME Total segment profits before
N BEKEN fair value gains on investment
S B 2 AT properties and income tax
AEFEETE expense after elimination 2,787,075
REWMERNREE Fair value gains on investment
Wz properties 31,086
FERiEY Income tax expense (1,232,777)
FREFHE Profit for the year 1,585,384
R2012%12H31H
As at 31 December 2012
NEEE Segment assets 29,280,647 11,581,191 40,861,838 (18,295) 40,843,543
DHEERE Segment assets include:
RS ARIHIRE Investments in associates 229,890 - 229,890 - 229,890
REFRDEE Additions to non-current assets
(BEmTAMN (other than financial
ELERBEE) instruments and deferred
tax assets) 15,590 640,106 655,696 - 655,696
HEERE Segment liabilities 23,904,212 8,562,599 32,466,811 (18,295) 32,448,516
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6 ZIHER @ 6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
BE2011F12A318LEFE
Year ended 31 December 2011
B AR JEBRR A A DEAE E3fc AEEEE
B share Non-B share
company companies  Total segment Elimination Total Group
AREEF T AREFTT ARETT AREETF T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
DEBA Segment revenue 9,222,245 1,549,072 10,771,317 (4,063) 10,767,254
BRIEEME Segment profit before
DR EERE fair value gains on investment
S HiR SZ ATRY properties and income tax
DER AR expense 1,918,753 230,478 2,149,231 (37,509) 2,111,722
A Finance income 11,690 7,716 19,406 - 19,406
BB R AN Finance costs (60,249) (94,299) (154,548) - (154,548)
FEMSEH Depreciation and amortisation (9,456) (8,486) (17,942) - (17,942)
FEMEHEOT : A reconciliation to profit for the year is as follows:
HHBRIEE % Total segment profits before
AR EEREA fair value gains on investment
FIEHAX AN properties and income tax
DEFIEELE expense after elimination 2,111,722
REMELREBE Fair value gains on investment
Yz properties 273,493
RS Income tax expense (941,284)
FEEE Profit for the year 1,443,931
20114128318
As at 31 December 2011
DEEE Segment assets 28,974,355 7,929,836 36,904,191 (3,825) 36,900,366
DHEERE Segment assets includes:
N2 ARIHIRE Investments in associates 235,000 - 235,000 - 235,000
REFRBERE Additions to non-current assets
(BEBTAMN (other than financial
ELHIBEE) instruments and deferred
tax assets) 80,641 848,749 929,390 - 929,390
AHERE Segment liabilities 24,946,726 6,755,516 31,702,242 (3,825) 31,698,417
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7 YFE- BENXRE 7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT
rEE Group
B £B HE
BF "E R#EE MEELE =
Furniture,
Motor  fittings and Leasehold
Buildings vehicles equipment improvements Total
ARETT ARETFTT ARETFTT ARETT ARETFTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
RH2012F1818 At 1 January 2012
B A Cost 59,805 28,983 27,104 39,621 155,513
23 E Accumulated depreciation (4,555) (10,876) (9,783) (13,283) (38,497)
REFE Net book value 55,250 18,107 17,321 26,338 117,016
BZE20125F Year ended 31 December 2012
12A31BLLEE
FHERmFE Opening net book amount 55,250 18,107 17,321 26,338 117,016
RNE Additions = 859 10,741 9,325 20,925
HE (FHFE34) Disposals (Note 34) (327) (92) (471) = (890)
NEEBR (M:27) Depreciation charge (Note 27) (1,910 (2,743) (5,320) (10,004) (19,977)
FREMFE Closing net book amount 53,013 16,131 22,271 25,659 117,074
®2012%12831H At 31 December 2012
B A Cost 59,320 29,297 37,152 48,946 174,715
ZEE Accumulated depreciation (6,307) (13,166) (14,881) (23,287) (57,641)
REFE Net book value 53,013 16,131 22,271 25,659 117,074
R201151818 At 1 January 2011
AR Cost 15,430 30,669 14,179 8,984 69,262
ZEHIE Accumulated depreciation (3,885) (10,572) (5,538) (4,873) (24,868)
REFE Net book value 11,545 20,097 8,641 4,111 44,394
HZ2011%12831A8
IHFEE Year ended 31 December 2011
FUEREFE Opening net book amount 11,545 20,097 8,641 4,111 44,394
BEETFENE Transferred from properties held
HEEEME or under development for sale 46,013 - - 25,652 71,665
HAE Other additions - 2,984 13,791 4,985 21,760
HE (H3E34) Disposals (Note 34) (1,102) (1,968) (1,083) - (4,153)
WEBMH (H:F27) Depreciation charge (Note 27) (1,206) (3,006) (4,028) (8,410) (16,650)
FRIEEFE Closing net book amount 55,250 18,107 17,321 26,338 117,016
20115128318 At 31 December 2011
AR Cost 59,805 28,983 27,104 39,621 155,513
ZEHinE Accumulated depreciation (4,555) (10,876) (9,783) (13,283) (38,497)
REFE Net book value 55,250 18,107 17,321 26,338 117,016
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7 ¥ BEMXRE @

HE2012FE R2001MF12A3MBILEE - AEEY
¥ BEMRENITEEACBEGI ATHMA L 5E

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (cont'd)

The Group's depreciation charges of property,
plant and equipment have all been included in

SRR AN o administrative expenses or selling and marketing
costs for the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011.

8  BmEyx INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

®T B &a&t
Under

Completed development Total
AREFT AREFT ARBEFTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
"2012F181H8 At 1 January 2012 4,200 2,439,000 2,443,200
NE Additions - 631,314 631,314
15 B % T (a) Completion of projects (a) 3,070,314 (3,070,314) -
N EERE Fair value gains 31,086 - 31,086
2012%12831H At 31 December 2012 3,105,600 - 3,105,600
R2011F1818 At 1 January 2011 8,900 1,334,000 1,342,900
NE Additions . 831,507 831,507
HeE Disposals (4,700) - (4,700)
AR EENE Fair value gains - 273,493 273,493
720115 12H31H At 31 December 2011 4,200 2,439,000 2,443,200
(a) REREMENDBHENRES - BARFHE (a) The portion of Phase | of Injoy Plaza and

RSB D RIR2012F38 K12 AT -

(b) HE2012F12A8318I-FE - BAKREYE
MEARNEEKRAL A ARS0,006,0007T

(20114 : AR#83,229,0007T) ©

H E2012F12831BIEFE BREAR(LE A

11.06% (20114F : 11.67%) °

FrEIREWMER2012F K2011F12A31BHEBLER

XEERGEMBRRITARAREITEMR -

Injoy International Plaza used as investment
properties were completed in March and
December 2012, respectively.

(b) Borrowing costs capitalised in investment
properties for the year ended 31 December
2012 were approximately RMB80,006,000
(2011: RMB83,229,000).

The capitalisation rate of borrowings was 11.06%
for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011:
11.67%).

All investment properties were revalued as at 31
December 2012 and 2011 by DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung Limited, an independent professional
qualified valuer.
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8 RKREWEwW

HRERIWEMNS  HMEDEBBRBEHLNRER
FHEEWA (B EMERKRAZHENEEBAE R
B FHENCAERERERLEE  BRREEY
ERBEMRAREHRE - X2EHEMTIHH A LA
EXBEHL - THERTREMERSRACRAH

FMBERARER

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

For completed properties, valuations were based on
either capitalisation of net rental income derived
from the existing tenancies with allowance for the
reversionary income potential of the properties
or on direct comparison approach assuming sale
of each of these properties in its existing state
with the benefit of vacant possession by making
reference to comparable sales transactions as
available in the relevant market. The following
rental income from completed investment
properties has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of income:

HE12AMBLEE
Year ended 31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
AR®T T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
HEB WA Rental income 23,634 445

RERREYE  FEDNVRREEFE A REX
SHIRSEPN A R SERK P TR B TR ST AR - DA R
MBEBERTIRNEE  KEISZVEBRELAEE

BORBAEET & T ARBEMTK -

For investment properties under construction,
valuations were based on investment approach, and
have taken into account the expended construction
costs and the costs that will be expended to
complete the development to reflect the quality
of the completed development on the basis that
the properties will be developed and completed in
accordance with the Group’s latest development
plan.
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8 RKREWEwW

AEBREEMENEZREREFESTOT

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

The Group's interests in investment properties at
their net book values are analysed as follows:

R12A31H
As at 31 December
20125 20114F
2012 2011
ARBTT AREFTTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EHE - In the PRC, held on:
RIERAETHEA (MMN20124F  Leases with original term of 40 years
12A318 - 8 T AREIE (and remaining unexpired period of 34 years and
FHIA3AFENITE) 37 years as at 31 December 2012) 3,101,400 2,439,000
RIEARTOFEMAEHR (MH20124  Leases with original term of 70 years
12A318 - A NAR2H (and remaining unexpired period of 55 years
FHIR554) as at 31 December 2012) 4,200 4,200
3,105,600 2,443,200

R2012F12A31B8 A B2 B H B AR
1,416,400,0007T (20114 : AR #852,070,0007T)
RIS EYECIEMERAEEERNERS (FisE21) -

Investment properties with a total carrying amount
of RMB1,416,400,000 as at 31 December 2012
(2011: RMB852,070,000) were pledged as collateral
for the Group’s borrowings (Note 21).
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9 ®|EEE 9  INTANGIBLE ASSETS
AEME Group
EE B E &%
Computer
Trademarks software Total
AR®B T AR¥T T AR®T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
20121818 At 1 January 2012
4N Cost 800 8,438 9,238
R Accumulated amortisation (667) (3,230) (3,897)
BREFE Net book amount 133 5,208 5,341
HZE2012F12A31BLFE Year ended 31 December 2012
FYREFE Opening net book amount 133 5,208 5,341
INE Additions - 3,457 3,457
BB A (BE27) Amortisation charge (Note 27) (80) (1,451) (1,531)
FREEEHE Closing net book amount 53 7,214 7,267
7A2012612H31H At 31 December 2012
D% Cost 800 11,895 12,695
S Accumulated amortisation (747) (4,681) (5.428)
BREFE Net book amount 53 7,214 7,267
R2011E1818 At 1 January 2011
4N Cost 800 3,980 4,780
RETE Accumulated amortisation (587) (2,018) (2,605)
BRENFE Net book amount 213 1,962 2,175
HZE2011F12A31BLFEE Year ended 31 December 2011
FYREFE Opening net book amount 213 1,962 2,175
RE Additions - 4,458 4,458
BB A (BE27) Amortisation charge (Note 27) (80) (1,212) (1,292)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 133 5,208 5,341
R2011612H31H At 31 December 2011
B Cost 800 8,438 9,238
EER T Accumulated amortisation (667) (3.230) (3,897)
IR FE Net book amount 133 5,208 5,341

HE2012FE M2011F128318 ILFE - KEBEER
BEMNBEBACRBYETATHRAL
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10 REEATNRE 10 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
rEH Group
HZE12AMBLEE
Year ended 31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
AR®TT AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
LERDIFed-2S Opening balance 235,000 10,000
— FAShanghai Lan Tian Business — Investment in Shanghai Lan Tian Business
Development Property Co., Ltd. Development Property Co., Ltd.
(['Shanghai Lan Tian]) (“Shanghai Lan Tian") (a)
B2 & (a) 10,000 10,000
— R B8 2 E — Investment in Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng Real
BRAR ([ 8829 ]) Estate Development Co., Ltd.
B3 & (b) ("Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng”) (b) 225,000 -
# Additions
— R EFEZHHIEE (D) — Investment in Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng (b) = 225,000
JE(h A Share of results
— B8 ZH(b) - Shanghai Wan zhi Cheng (b) (5.110) -
HAR &8k Ending balance 229,890 235,000
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10 REZRATNERE @) 10

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (cont'd)

(a) Shanghai Lan TianfE2010F8 H4HKIL » 7K
SEHEBZAT20% M ARE o

ANEEEEShanghai Lan TiantZEEURE
EMEERBEIRNT :

(a)

Shanghai Lan Tian was established on 4
August 2010. The Group owns 20% of
equity interest in this company.

The Group's share of results and the
aggregated assets and liabilities of Shanghai
Lan Tian are as follows:

FrsfEs
BOk HEE mes B RAE
% interests Total Total Total Net
held assets liabilities revenue profit
ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REEZ20124128318  As at and for the year
IHFE ended 31 December 2012 20% 10,057 - - 15
REEZ20114128318  As at and for the year
IHFE ended 31 December 2011 20% 10,042 - - 24

(b) B ZWAE2011F38298 L - AEH
WA Z A RI50% A

ARG LFE 2 AN EEAREENR
AR HIRIT

(b)

Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng was established
on 29 March 2011. The Group owns 50%
of equity interest in this company.

The Group's share of results and the
aggregated assets and liabilities of Shanghai
Wan Zhi Cheng are as follows:

FrsfEs
BOk HEE mes 1L ON RER
% interests Total Total Total Net
held assets liabilities revenue loss
ARETFTT AREFTT ARBFT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REEZ201246128318  As at and for the year
LEFE ended 31 December 2012 50% 859,407 639,975 - 5,110
REEZE20114128318  As at and for the year
IHFE ended 31 December 2011 50% 670,795 446,253 - 458
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10 REZRATNERE @)

(b)

(%)

BEAEERE LEE ZWS0%ME - B
AEBERER LB ZHMOREDIERZ R
AIZE - RIBE EBEZ M EAMS0% AR
BAFTINAR  HiIREEURZHES
SRAMEMAEMNIZES D82 - A
- AEEAH LS ZWENEATE -

11 A EsHEE

10 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (cont'd)

(b)

(Cont'd)

The Group accounts for its investment in
Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng as an associate
although the Group holds 50% of equity
interest. According to the contract with
the other 50% equity interest holder of
Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng, the other investor
controls Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng with
majority seats on the board of directors
and other contractual rights. The Group,
however, has significant influence over
Shanghai Wan zZhi Cheng.

11 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS
AEE Group
BZ12A31MBLEE
Year ended 31 December
20124 20114F
2012 2011
AR¥T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
HR 9 4 ek Opening balance 156,000 156,000 (a)
g Acquisitions 25,187 (d,e,f) 53,066 (b,c)
HeE Disposals - (53,066) (b,c)
BR &84 Ending balance 181,187 156,000

(a)

R2010F9A2A  AEEBEUREB AR
156,000,0007T 45 8 & M SR 171 % B9 A% 8 o 1t
BEREEDRIR2012F %20115E12A31H
A EEMA UK AR B E K

On 2 September 2010, the Group acquired
1% equity interest in Bank of Suzhou at a
consideration of RMB156,000,000. There
is no significant change in fair value of the
financial asset as at 31 December 2012 and
2011, respectively from the acquisition cost.
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11

AHHESHEE @)

(b)

(o]

(e)

M201143H298 © K % N K E A
R 38,065,500t Y E&ESuzhou Fei Cui
International Community Property Co.,
Ltd. ([Suzhou Fei Cuil) 5%&) A& # - R
20115 9R9H - HEZBREMERES
AR #88,065500L c ZHEEEARE
50,000,000 T My Y s 5 58 (FisE26) ©

MR201159H20H - AEERBAES TS
REATRILEES ARM15,000,0007T © 74
200111 A1MA  HEZREESSIA
B AR®15,266,0007T - ZHEELEARE
266,000 Ty U es 558 (BisE26) o

R2012F4H108 - AE B URE AR
5,187,000t Y #&Shanghai Jingying
Investment Management Limited Partnership
6.19%H) 4 o LIRS R EEN20129F12A
BSTENAABEREKRBER AL ESRED -

20124 10A158 » AEBEUREBARE
50,000,0007T (H A K& #15,000,0007T E
REZE2012F12A318 IEFEAIA) i
Shanghai Wuling Investment Management
Limited Partnership 5.26% K% © 1L TE 4 &t
BEM2012F12A31 BN AR BEBHEIE
A EEREH) o

MR2012F 11 A28 AREBENUREARE
25,000,0007T (E # A E ®5,000,0007T
EREE2012F128318BEFERI M)
U BEGefei Assets Management Limited
Partnership 2.72% IR o LIESEEER
2012512 A3 1 B A 5 B E A L WA AT
BmEREH -

11

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Cont'd)

(b)

On 29 March 2011, the Group acquired
5% equity interest in Suzhou Fei Cui
International Community Property Co., Ltd.
("Suzhou Fei Cui”) at a consideration of
RMB38,065,500. This equity interest was
disposed at a proceed of RMB88,065,500 on
9 September 2011. This disposal gave rise to
a net gain of RMB50,000,000 (Note 26).

On 20 September 2011, the Group
subscribed public investment fund of
RMB15,000,000 in domestic fund market.
This investment fund was disposed at
a proceed of RMB15,266,000 on 11
November 2011. This disposal gave rise to a
net gain of RMB266,000 (Note 26).

On 10 April 2012, the Group acquired
6.19% equity interest in Shanghai Jingying
Investment Management Limited Partnership
at a consideration of RMB5,187,000. There
is no significant change in fair value of the
financial asset as at 31 December 2012 from
the acquisition cost.

On 15 October 2012, the Group acquired
5.26% equity interest in Shanghai Wuling
Investment Management Limited Partnership
at a consideration of RMB50,000,000, with
an amount of RMB15,000,000 already paid
during the year ended 31 December 2012.
There is no significant change in fair value
of the financial asset as at 31 December
2012 from the acquisition cost.

On 2 November 2012, the Group acquired
2.72% equity interest in Gefei Assets
Management Limited Partnership at a
consideration of RMB25,000,000, with an
amount of RMB5,000,000 already paid
during the year ended 31 December 2012.
There is no significant change in fair value
of the financial asset as at 31 December
2012 from the acquisition cost.
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12 TR LAND USE RIGHTS
rEE Group
ILEREE A —IBFIS W EUS TR A E R EER A The balance represents land use rights to be used
BEBARMERBELIHEEN LHERE - for development of properties for sale in the future
upon obtaining the necessary approval to re-zone
the site for commercial use.
13 HEELHFEFRE PREPAYMENTS FOR LEASEHOLD
LAND
rEE Group
N £ E R E 1E2012F128318 B A R B The Group made prepayments of RMB4,313,847,000
4,313,847,0007t AR BE BT & L A4 (2011 for the acquisition of leasehold land as at
F : AR®2,689,155,0007T) ° 31 December 2012 (2011: RMB2,689,155,000).
14 ZISGEIEZHEEYF PROPERTIES HELD OR UNDER
DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE
rEH Group
R12A31H
As at 31 December
201245 20114F
2012 2011
AR®T T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BrRENEE LT Leasehold land to be developed 1,518,738 2,376,518
EEIHEME Properties under development for sale 17,089,398 20,225,414
TLEEYE Properties held for sale 6,235,028 2,107,534
24,843,164 24,709,466
B RE R B Less: Provision for impairment loss (349,412) (482,400)
24,493,752 24,227,066

TIGEREEHEMEGUNTE -

HZE2012F12A318EFE  REIHEEMEEE
EMEPERNCHBREARL A ARKT76,028,000
7t (20114« AR#788,210,0007T) °

The properties held or under development for sale
are all located in the PRC.

Borrowing costs capitalised in properties under
development for sale and held for sale for the year
ended 31 December 2012 were approximately
RMB776,028,000 (2011: RMB788,210,000).
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14 ZRIGEIERHESVWE @ 14 PROPERTIES HELD OR UNDER
DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE (cont'd)
HE202FNA3MAEFE BREL(LEX A The capitalisation rate of borrowings was 9.71%
9.71% (20114 : 9.30%) ° for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011:
9.30%).
M2012F K2011F 128318 » AEBEUTH FHE As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group's
WS L ERMEMENT TEEYEDEIRE following leasehold land to be developed,
REBEROERD (FHFE21) - properties under development for sale and
properties held for sale were pledged as collateral
for the Group’s borrowings (Note 21).
M12H31A
As at 31 December
20125 20114F
2012 2011
ARBTT ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EHEMHEREE Carrying value pledged:
T RENHEE i Leasehold land to be developed 642,204 1,069,912
EEEEME Properties under development for sale 7,234,330 6,900,317
TITiFEYHE Properties held for sale 931,768 34,158

B E202FNANAEFE BRAMI R
HAEHENANTIREMEREARBARE
12,575,554,00000 ' EHEE B A REREEAREK
132,988,0007T B B 72 A 85 & Bk AR o B £20114F
NANBLEFE BREAINEBAARKE
7,071,994,0007T * BEFREOBEREEARE
398,726,0007C °

M20129F12A831H @ R @M B A A R &
6,205,262,0007C (20114 : A R #7,866,685,000
TC) MEREEMERTTERR —FRARIHYEIR
BRE - BEAEeREETHEWE - el
ELTTEHER—FRART - R LEEREEBEEDY
EMEMERTBI IR —FARE -

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the cost
of properties held for sale recognised as expense
and included in cost of sales amounted to
RMB12,575,554,000, accompanying by a reversal
of provision for impairment of RMB132,988,000
credited to cost of sales. For the year ended 31
December 2011, the amount recognised as expense
was RMB7,071,994,000, which included an accrual
of provision for impairment of RMB398,726,000.

As at 31
development for sale with a total carrying amount
of RMB6,205,262,000 (2011: RMB7,866,685,000)
were related to property projects which were not
scheduled to complete within one year although
pre-sales of some of these properties may occur.

December 2012, properties under

All the leasehold land to be developed were not
scheduled to complete within one year. The other
balances in properties held or under development
for sale were expected to be recovered within one
year.
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15 EZMEMERKERBNRE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS

AEE Group
®12A831H
As at 31 December
20125 20114
2012 2011
AR®ET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 rEWsE Trade receivables 3,265 7,085
JAlE=E Notes receivable 300 25,227
B REWFIEART Total trade receivables 3,565 32,312
o EWGRIE R B B Less: Provision for impairment of receivables - -
B FEWTIE — 558 Trade receivables — net 3,565 32,312
ek B 5 BB (MIRE37) Receivable from a related party (Notes 37) 180,000 390,367
FEfH SR AT hD & (i) Prepaid business tax and surcharges (i) 645,416 704,862
FEAT FTS R AN L 3 3B FR () Prepaid income tax and land appreciation tax (i) 377,514 414,993
FIZRE 2 (i) Tender deposits (ii) 196,190 -
RERQES R LAIZE i) Deposits with public housing fund centres (iii) 116,989 93,815
FE R A Prepayments for construction costs 89,491 87,428
HAth Others 57,101 37,829
1,666,266 1,761,606

EER  WmMBMIIZER R REBKE
EPEMNRE AWK - wEBNHIBNIEEH
WA FERATFIETRN FIA © beoh - Rt EHE
RITWAR - AR BERBI AN KOS %E
15%t EMFAF T BB AR WA - &1tk
BN RSB R IIEFR MR -

(i)

Business tax, surcharges and land
appreciation tax are provisionally levied
when the Group receives advances from
customers and the prepaid taxes are
recorded as prepayments before the relevant
revenue is recognised. In addition, a deemed
profit at 5% to 15% of advances received
by the Group is added to the accounting
income when calculating taxable income and
the prepaid income tax is similarly recorded
as prepayments.
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15 EBZNHEMEBYREREMNRIE @)

(i) IEBRSLHERAEBESENRERES K
PERK O EEEEE T IAN IR

(i) WEKRAREEIEZHOINOLRE AR
REAEEETEBFEENEFEAEEER - &
LIRS HRBASRPIELMEMBREERE
LERELMERAES T OIRRZE T IAL

i i e

il

-

B S REIWGRIAR2012F X2011F12 A31HH KRR D

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont'd)

(ii) This balance represents the tender deposits
for bidding of land use rights, which will
be subsequently received or transferred to
prepayments for leasehold land.

(iii) This balance represents the deposits paid
to public housing fund centres to secure
the housing fund loans taken by certain
property purchasers of the Group. Such
deposits will be released upon the issue
of the properties’ ownership certificate by
government authorities to these purchasers
and submitted to the public housing fund
centres.

The aging analysis of trade receivables as at 31

T December 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
®12A831H
As at 31 December

20124 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
—FNR Less than 1 year 2,555 31,302
—E=fF Between 1 and 2 years = -
—E=F Between 2 and 3 years = -
=FLE Over 3 years 1,010 1,010
3,565 32,312
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15 EBESMEMERFIRRENRE @) 15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont'd)
20129 F12011412A8318 » BHEKFIBEARE As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, trade
1,010,000t & %1 BB I f R (B iéﬁiﬁ??ﬂiELI receivables of RMB1,010,000 were past due but
BHANREHNELRFPEHE - ELEZ B not impaired. The balances are related to an
BRI DTN T - independent customer for whom there is no recent
history of default. The aging analysis of these trade
receivables is as follows:
R12A31H
As at 31 December
20125 20114F
2012 2011
ARET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
—FR" Less than 1 year - -
—EF Between 1 and 2 years - -
—E2= Between 2 and 3 years -
—FUE Over 3 years 1,010 1,010
1,010 1,010

R2012FEM201ME12A31B A NS A EERR 2
PR EEBGRIERNREE - NEBWEFE TR
e

20122011512 A831H » E S5 ME b fE Y F B
MAREEEELREAERS
MA2012FF2011FE128318 » BS M EURFIE

REMFRBENREEEIZUAREE -

The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31
December 2012 and 2011 is the carrying value of
each class of receivables mentioned above. The
Group does not hold any collateral security.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the fair value
of trade and other receivables approximate their
carrying amounts.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables and
prepayments are primarily denominated in RMB.
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15 ESFNMHEMERRERBANRE @ 15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont'd)
AL Company
®12831H
As at 31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
AR®T AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
e g 5 3 E (MaE37) Receivables from related parties (Notes 37) 717,847 -
H b FE U BR X Other receivables 570 -
718,417 -

FEU BT ORI E MR YRIB 2 BN — F R EH -

JE W B i 07 OB AN B AL FE M R R A A B B AR E (B
BE -

& W B s 77 R AN A M OB RR B 2 #R LA B TTAT
-

The aging of the receivables from related parties
and other receivables are all within 1 year.

The fair value of the receivables from related parties
and other receivables approximate their carrying
amounts.

The carrying amounts of the receivables from
related parties and other receivables are all
denominated in HKD.

16 RFIATPRE 16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
ARNF Company
MW12831H
As at 31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
ARET T ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A ETIIRAERE » LKA Unlisted equity investments, at cost 424,271 387,574

RNARFRABIR2012F K2011F12 A31BHFFIEE
RETBHRERM IS - RFARINEREN EIEH
ERE  c R TFRARIREMEINKRERTFARARTFA
FREBMERBEHANE X AMEEARDER 2
(MF3E19) -

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31
December 2012 and 2011 are set out in Note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements. No provision
for impairment has been made against investments
in subsidiaries. The increase in investments in
subsidiaries pertains to the Pre-IPO share award
scheme (Note 19) granted to the employees and
business partners of the Company’s subsidiaries.
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17 SRITMNFERE

CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND

AEME Group
MW12831H

As at 31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T T AREETTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000

R{TAFEIR & Cash at bank and on hand

AAREEHE Denominated in RMB 5,665,041 4,531,444
LAZETTEHE Denominated in USD 47 5
LA TTEHE Denominated in HKD 335,131 4,645
6,000,219 4,536,094

MR2012F 128318 » AEBRTHERANERFE A

0.91% (20114F : 0.50%) °

AEBNREMRESFEMETLT

The effective interest rate on the Group’s bank
deposits as at 31 December 2012 was 0.91%

(2011: 0.50%).

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group were

determined as follows:

M12H31H

As at 31 December
20125 20114
2012 2011
AR®T AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
RITAMFER S Cash at bank and on hand 6,000,219 4,536,094
o XRHIES Less: Restricted cash (1,148,089) (314,536)
4,852,130 4,221,558
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17 $HTNFEBES @ 17 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND
(Cont'd)
AEBNZRHIREBIEATZE Restricted cash of the Group comprised of the
following:
MR12H31H
As at 31 December
20125 20114F
2012 2011
ARET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ERIEE BRFZREMNRER Deposits for letters of guarantee issued for
project construction 22,107 8,649
EERES Margin deposits for notes issued 637,748 39,121
BREERBETRFZR) Deposits as security for property purchasers’
mortgage loans (a) 42,645 50,766
EBMEFEROER (F:E21) Deposits pledged for borrowings (Note 21) 45,589 216,000
TE Bi7F 3 (b) Time deposit (b) 400,000 -
1,148,089 314,536
(a) EUZRABITFRARERAEES TE (a) These bank deposits are restricted to secure

FEERBEE TR EREBSRITE
BN o B LR R W) P A RS B U BRI
%%%ﬁ‘é%ﬁ%%%iﬁFﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬂ%?&ﬁﬁ%l«x
FRER

(b) R2012F 128310 - EEXRH EHEFRH
REGEIRITIEE -

the bank loans taken by certain property
purchasers of the Group pursuant to the
local regulations of certain cities. Such
deposits will be released upon the issue
of the properties’ ownership certificate by
government authorities to these purchasers
and submitted to the mortgage banks.

(b) The time deposit is restricted for application
of bank borrowings as at 31 December

2012.
b N/NE| Company
MW12A831H

As at 31 December
20124 20114F
2012 2011
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000

SRITAMFEIRE Cash at bank and on hand

UAREE Denominated in RMB 877,935 -
LAZETTEHE Denominated in USD 47 .
LA TTEHE Denominated in HKD 17,325 4,626
895,307 4,626

2012128318 » ARRFBITHEARNERFN XA
0.22% (20114 : 0.06%) °

i 2% R KRR 2 T Future Land Development Holdings Limited == —

The effective interest rate on the Company's bank
deposits as at 31 December 2012 was 0.22%
(2011: 0.06%).
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18 KA 18 SHARE CAPITAL
AEEMNERAT Group and Company
(a) EERK (a)  Authorised shares
EERTEEB
Number of authorised shares
ETRHB BT A
USD share HKD share
R2011E1818 As at 1 January 2011 50,000 -
R2011F9 812 B EHHE Re-denomination and cancellation on
FEE5() 12 September 2011 (i) (50,000) 390,000,000

201149 A 12 B Hn(i)

Increase on 12 September 2011 (ii)

- 9,610,000,000

A20115E % 2012512 H31H

As at 31 December 2011 and 2012

- 10,000,000,000

(i)

(if)

R2011F98128 » KRR RFEBHER
AE51390,000,000/% & J% M1 40.001
BILHRD ([Bxktk]) BEEE
f% 7N T B8 F3 50,0003 7T 8 22 450,000
% JLA1390,0008 LM B EE - A H -
AN ST EE18(b)()FT R R Wealth
Zone Hong Kong#H #4,421/KE &
TR TR B iF B3 1734,483,800/%
SIS OEEED - EEEDE
TR % - EEEREITRAS B
§450,000/% =TT IR0 15 LABIE, -

R2011F98128 » KR RSB BIER
9,610,000,000 % ¥ 78 TT A% 19 #6575 E IR
7K #3390,0007% 7T 3% 210,000,000/
JC * 9 £10,000,000,000% & J& HE (&
0.001BTTHIRRD ©

(M)

(if)

On 12 September 2011, the
Company re-denominated the
authorised share capital of the
Company from USD50,000 to
the aggregate of USD50,000 and
HKD390,000 by the creation of an
additional 390,000,000 shares of par
value HKD0.001 each (“HKD share”).
On the same day, as disclosed in
Note 18(b)(i) below, the issued
4,421 USD shares held by Wealth
Zone Hong Kong were repurchased
with the proceeds received from the
issue of 34,483,800 HKD shares.
Immediately after the repurchase of
the USD shares, the authorised but
unissued share capital was reduced
by the cancellation of 50,000 USD
shares.

On 12 September 2011, the
Company increased the authorised
share capital from HKD390,000
to HKD10,000,000 divided into
10,000,000,000 shares of par value
HKDO0.001 each by the creation of
9,610,000,000 new HKD shares.
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18 M (@) 18 SHARE CAPITAL (cCont'd)
(b) ERITRE (b) Issued shares
ERITROEE ZER
Number of Ordinary
issued shares shares
BR1ET HKR0.001ER AR® T
USD1 each HKDO0.001 each RMB
M2011E1818 As at 1 January 2011 4,421 - 28,746
TR EFTEHE) Re-denomination of ordinary shares (i) (4,421) 34,483,800 -
AT EAR () Issuance of ordinary shares (ii) - 4,034,466,200 3,289,703
HERAFEEARD Issuance of ordinary shares in
AEEhE & B 1T T A% (i) connection with Pre-IPO share

award scheme (iii) - 181,050,000 147,628
H2012F1818 As at 1 January 2012 - 4,250,000,000 3,466,077
BT EBAR(v) Issuance of ordinary shares (iv) - 1,418,000,000 1,150,992
2012%12H831H As at 31 December 2012 - 5,668,000,000 4,617,069
() 2011498128 - 34,483,800 ()  On 12 September 2011, 34,483,800
AR E{E0.001 & T 88 JTiR (n 2 Bl 3 AN HKD shares at par value of HKDO0.001
Z£{7 T Wealth Zone Hong Kong ' & each were allotted and issued to
Wealth Zone Hong Kong# 5 874,421 Wealth Zone Hong Kong and 4,421
f&ETTRD EFEBBEITAETRD IS USD shares held by Wealth Zone
RIEHED o Hong Kong were repurchased with
the proceeds received from the issue

of the HKD shares.
(ii) M20114F9RF128 - & 5 (ii) On 12 September 2011, an

4,034,466,2000% & IR {E0.001/5 7T
BTG (ABRPIVESE) B R
%17 ¥ Wealth Zone Hong Kong * B
M3 & ¥{84,034,466/8 0 (HEER
ANER#3,289,7037T) °

additional 4,034,466,200 HKD shares
at par value of HKD0.001 each were
allotted and issued to Wealth Zone
Hong Kong for cash consideration
of HKD4,034,466 (equivalent to
RMB3,289,703), which were credited
as fully paid.
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18 B @)

19

(b) ERTKG (#)

(iii) 72011498 12H » 181,050,0000%
FREEE0.00 1B LB Tk (0 B Bl 88
MEE1T T R E T Wang Xiaosongst
A A HIWellink Global (PTC) Limited
(M§5E37(a)) BTG IR © ¥118181,050
BT (HHERAR®147,62870) ° it
IHBETHE R RARAEERRMD RZEE
EIAEEE (fFEE19) ©

(iv)  M2012F11 82908 » KARIG L&k
FR%1.458 0 8171,418,000,000/% &
f%0.00 1B LB T E B -
##92,056,100,000/8 T (SN AR
#1,668,936,0007T) HIFRIE  FT{3 5K
THRBE171,418,000,0000% & 38 f% T
B AAREE1,150,992THLEAA
R#1,667,785,0087T * HIBREEITHI
HEHEBENE R ARE5,165,000
LB A ARE1,602,620,0087T 0 It E
ARG RER (f3E20) ©

W ESHE

IR HERA M

RIE2011F9A12BMRER - AARIRME XAH
BERRD BB S ([IRGHREETE]) - RERD
HEIEtE - A $£159,800,000% A% 5 12 1,250,000/%
BRODRIBETMETERFRIEE (BIEES) M5
FTE=F -F-HBEMEEMNETE=FRRF - &
FE=ZARAINBRN T ARA LB AR

18

19

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd)
(b) Issued shares (Cont’d)

(iii) On 12 September 2011,
181,050,000 HKD shares at par
value of HKDO0.001 each were
allotted and issued to Wellink Global
(PTC) Limited, which is owned by
a related party Mr. Wang Xiaosong
(Note 37(a)) for cash consideration
of HKD181,050 (equivalent to
RMB147,628) in connection with the
pre-IPO share award scheme (Note
19).

(iv) On 29 November 2012, the Company
issued 1,418,000,000 HKD ordinary
shares of HKD0.001 each at HKD1.45
per share in connection with the
Listing, and raised gross proceeds of
approximately HKD2,056,100,000
(equivalent to RMB1,668,936,000).
The excess of RMB1,667,785,008
over the par value of RMB1,150,992
for the 1,418,000,000 HKD ordinary
shares issued, net of the relevant
incremental costs of RMB65,165,000
directly contributable to the new
shares issued, was credited to
“share premium” with amount of
RMB1,602,620,008 (Note 20).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Pursuant to a resolution dated 12 September
2011, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO share
award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”).
Under the Share Award Scheme, a total number of
159,800,000 shares and 21,250,000 shares were
issued and granted to selected current employees
(including directors) and certain third parties,
respectively. The third parties include former
employees and certain third party companies. The
shares granted to third parties are for recognition
of their past services.

ZZ— 43R 2012 Annual Report ¥4 % B2 KRG MR A 7 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

F-85



B O SRR ML

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EHZE2012412 831 H [L4EE For the year ended 31 December 2012

19 URGAERAOZM @

ERETRIEER (BRES) (9D £ARFAR
201266 A30ARMEREME R ZMARAFER L
MEkEENSEBHRDEROBRT - HHEHOKND
A 53 Bl 1K20124F ~ 20134 ~ 20144 M2015%F12 7

MBS WUENEE -

201268308 + ANABUEET AR (D B0 1& 4 -

ERARNBR2012F6 A30HAIR BB AR

RARIER EHEEZERE2013F12A31HE] ©

RIE D BB AT B3R H AR 1D 72011498158 (%
HHE) NRAREBEREARE119,766,3097T LB
BREEEEMEIET  BHEBEETBBERTS
EREER  REBEEEMEIETSEEAE,AE
WEEAFERASEGER BT WiREWEER
Tl A EE - MIERBIRAERTELERRFER
B WAHREEEEXNEYE TR -

HE201MF12A318LFE  AEERAQRRET
REREMAES  sREEREFEEANKND
2RI EER AR #13,468,0007T (Mf5E29) M A R

14,057,000t (MI5E26) B -

HE2012F12A31M8LFE  AEEBRARQRET
BT EE MR ERARE36,697,0000T (KizE29)

HWERM -

19

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont'd)

For shares granted to current employees (including
directors), subject to the meeting of the criteria
of the Company being listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
before 30 June 2012 and the employee being still
on service at the end of each vesting period, the
granted shares can be vested in four equal tranches
on 31 December 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015,
respectively.

On 30 June 2012, the Company modified the
condition for the share-based payments by
extending the criteria of the Company being listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited before 30 June 2012 to 31 December
2013.

The fair value of the shares granted under the
Share Award Scheme as at 15 September 2011,
the grant date, was RMB119,766,309, and was
determined using the asset-based approach and
the overall result was also cross-checked by using
the market approach. Various valuation methods/
techniques were applied to determine the value of
each asset/liability under the asset-based approach,
for example the investment properties were
valued using the residual method while the non-
tradable shares were valued using the comparable
company method with option pricing model to help
determine the illiquidity discount.

The Group recognised an expense of
RMB13,468,000 (Note 29), RMB14,057,000 (Note
26) for the year ended 31 December 2011 in
relation to shares awarded by the Company to the
current employees and former employees, officers
and business partners, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
recognised an expense of RMB36,697,000 (Note 29)
in relation to the shares awarded by the Company
to the current employees.
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20 APFERFEABRGHEMEE

20 OTHER RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

rEE Group
BRRE Hib e REER &5t
Share Other Retained
premium reserves earnings Total
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
(P &E(a))
(note (a))
A2012F1818K %8  Balance at 1 January 2012 360,020 (214,198) 3,030,528 3,176,350
ZHEKE Comprehensive income
F R E Profit for the year - - 930,819 930,819
Et2mikes Other comprehensive income = - - _
FREZEREEEE Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 930,819 930,819
HEBAETHRS Transactions with owners
BITE @R (MisE18) Issuance of ordinary shares
(Note 18) 1,602,620 - - 1,602,620
EPNGE Sl ) Pre-IPO share award scheme
HREIEE (FIFE19) (Note 19)
- REREERBEE - value of current employee
services - 36,697 - 36,697
EEAHERDIKEE  Total contributions by and
distributions to owners 1,602,620 36,697 - 1,639,317
72012512831 H K4 &k Balance at 31 December 2012 1,962,640 (177,501) 3,961,347 5,746,486
K& Representing:
EERHR S (M35 (b))  Proposed final dividend (Note (b)) 283,400 283,400
Hih Others 1,679,240 5,463,086
1,962,640 5,746,486
A2011FE1518H48  Balance at 1 January 2011 - 118,326 2,143,642 2,261,968
2HEKE Comprehensive income
FAFNE Profit for the year - - 886,886 886,886
H 2w des Other comprehensive income - - - -
FRAEZHEKEEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 886,386 886,886
HEBANETHRS Transactions with owners
BITEBAR (FFE18) Issuance of ordinary shares
(Note 18) 360,020 (360,049) - (29)
EPNGE Sl %) Pre-IPO share award scheme
HREEtE (f5EE19) (Note 19)
—BHAEEERBEE - value of current employee
services - 13,468 - 13,468
—FliEE - 2ES - value of former employees,
REBEBA officers and business
RiEE partners services - 14,057 - 14,057
BEEALERD KA Total contributions by and
distributions to owners 360,020 (332,524) - 27,496
H20115 12831 B W45tk Balance at 31 December 2011 360,020 (214,198) 3,030,528 3,176,350
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20 AQTEZFEAEGHHEHMDREE @

20 OTHER RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY (Cont'd)

RATE] Company
R AR E Hi RS RETEE a5t
Share Other Accumulated
premium reserves losses Total
AREFT AREFT ARBFTT AREFTT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
(P 5E(a))
(note (a))
M2012F181HM4E  Balance at 1 January 2012 360,020 27,525 (3,215) 384,330
2HEE Comprehensive loss
FNEE Loss for the year = = (4,058) (4,058)
Hih 2 EEE Other comprehensive loss = - - _
FREZEEEEE Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - (4,058) (4,058)
BEEA NETHRS Transactions with owners
BITE @R (FisE18) Issuance of ordinary shares
(Note 18) 1,602,620 - - 1,602,620
BRARBERRY Pre-IPO share award scheme
HEEhat & (PIFE19) (Note 19)
- BREEERBKBEE - value of current employee
services - 36,697 - 36,697
BEEAHERDIREZE  Total contributions by and
distributions to owners 1,602,620 36,697 - 1,639,317
2012512 A31H & &k Balance at 31 December 2012 1,962,640 64,222 (7,273) 2,019,589
K& B Representing:
EEAHRE (MH3E(b))  Proposed final dividend (note (b)) 283,400 283,400
e Others 1,679,240 1,736,189
1,962,640 2,019,589
A2011E1A1BWES  Balance at 1 January 2011 - 360,049 (81) 359,968
ZHEER Comprehensive loss
FNEE Loss for the year - - (3,134) (3,134)
Hith 2 EEE Other comprehensive loss - - - _
FREZHEEBREE Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - (3,134) (3,134)
HEBAETHRS Transactions with owners
BITEEk (MisE18) Issuance of ordinary shares
(Note 18) 360,020 (360,049) - (29)
EPNGE Sl ) Pre-IPO share award scheme
BREIEE (FI5E19) (Note 19)
- RAEREERBEE - value of current employee
services - 13,468 - 13,468
—FlEE - SRS — value of former
REBEEA employees, officers and
AR EE business partners services - 14,057 - 14,057
EEAHERDIKHEE  Total contributions by and
distributions to owners 360,020 (332,524) - 27,496
72011512831 H K482 Balance at 31 December 2011 360,020 27,525 (3,215) 384,330
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20 &

NAEREEAERGNEMEE @

P

REPBEQREERAFPEFRAINABZERAN  BLEFR
AEFARELEENE (REHEMBEFEBREK) M10%H
ANEEBBAES ([2FE)) RF - EARSHMREEL T
RAGMER IR AN50%I% - BIFEEREE - SEBENE
& ARESUANEHBEFEBRIEMBRER - A - £

EZSRRE%  BHAESATPREMER /BAR25% °

BRI -
TERRPTIR S o

M20124F12A318 » EEFRARNEBRADREE ANAE
& B FEE AR ¥921,259,0005T (20114 « AR #¥873,707,000

JL) ° USRI AREENRE AT -

RIEFE BB R EE (2003FEFTHR) F34GRARANMAHEE
RAR - MARRAEEERNDEARARDABTRABME
TE - AIRTAAR R B Bt s B R AR RAEH DIk - A B2 R AR

BHFERIINMIE32 -

REETAB/ESRR SRS - URHETHETE

20

OTHER RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY (Cont'd)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and
the articles of association of the PRC subsidiaries, these
subsidiaries registered in the PRC shall appropriate 10%
of its annual statutory profit (after offsetting any prior
years' losses) to the statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”)
account. When the balance of SSR reaches 50% of the
registered capital/share capital of these subsidiaries, any
further appropriation is optional. The SSR can be utilised
to offset prior years’ losses or to increase paid-in capital.
However, SSR shall be maintained at a minimum of 25%

of registered capital/share capital after such utilisation.

The SSR are non-distributable for cash dividends except
in the event of liquidation and are subject to certain

restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations.

As at 31 December 2012, total SSR of these subsidiaries
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
RMB921,259,000 (2011: RMB873,707,000). These

amounts were included in retained earnings of the Group.

Pursuant to Section 34 of the Cayman Companies Law
(2003 Revision) and the Articles of Association of the
Company, share premium of the Company is available
for distribution to shareholders subject to a solvency
test on the Company and the provision of the Articles of
Association of the Company. Details of the proposed final

dividend are set out in Note 32.
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EHZE2012412 831 H [L4EE For the year ended 31 December 2012

21 RN 21 BORROWINGS
rEH Group
®W12H31H
As at 31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T T ARBET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
JERNHA - B LM TH#IEE A - Non-current, secured and borrowed from:
— #R77(a) - Banks (a) 6,242,070 6,128,900
—ErRE T HE — Trust financing arrangements
— EFEER(Db) — conventional loan (b) 1,875,460 2,137,200
— WAL EENEE() — equity with repurchase obligation (b) - 1,467,163
8,117,530 9,733,263
o REAE BB ER SR Less: Current portion of long-term borrowings (3,607,860) (3,084,063)
4,509,670 6,649,200
BNER - IR AA TH#REE A © Current, secured and borrowed from:
— #R17(a) — Banks (a) 1,210,716 384,000
—ErtRE L HE — Trust financing arrangements
— EHRER(b) — conventional loan (b) 311,860 319,300
—EREEERNERD) — equity with repurchase obligation (b) = 430,000
i KEAE A BNERER (D Add: Current portion of long-term borrowings 3,607,860 3,084,063
5,130,436 4,217,363
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HZE2012412 4318 |F4[Z For the year ended 31 December 2012

21

B @

(a)

(b)

AEBWRITERBG TRENRE L
EEME  TIHEME (ME14)  KEY
% (Msts) ~ FRARMB (HEE38) MRTTHF
K (ME17) BRKHARBOFABTEER
mELLE (FHRE37) R -

HEEBRETBREARAFUETRELTHRE
NEJ - EHRERETRELHEAEER
ERARGIIMER B - MARE SR
B ETRELES RN EELESEBTD
HEARBRAEA L EERE - EEETH
ELRHMNEERER  WAAZKEBENIER
NEMREEAERR - EEMELTYET
MIERBE TR LFSRAREEEYE (M
14) MALEFRAMEG (MFE38) MK
RESAE (1E37) R -

21

BORROWINGS (cont'd)

(a)

The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by
leasehold land to be developed, properties
under development, properties held for
sale (Note 14), investment properties (Note
8), shares of subsidiaries (Note 38) and
bank deposits (Note 17) of the Group or
guaranteed by subsidiaries of the Company
for each other or by Mr. Wang (Note 37).

These borrowings are mainly in the form
of trust financing arrangements with trust
financing companies. The conventional
loan trust financing arrangements are loan
agreements entered into by the Group
and trust financing companies. The equity
with repurchase obligation trust financing
arrangements involves either capital increase
in, or transfer of equity interest in project
companies with repurchase obligation. The
substance of the type of trust financing
arrangement is borrowing, with the equity
interest in the project companies legally
transferred as collateral. The borrowings
under trust financing arrangements are
secured by certain properties held or under
development for sale (Note 14) and shares
of subsidiaries of the Group (Note 38) or
guaranteed by Mr. Wang (Note 37).
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21 fBF @

21

TRETIWN A ELOEEEENETRE LHER2012
F£K2011F12A31BHIEEE

BORROWINGS (cont'd)

The following table sets out details of the equity
with repurchase obligation trust financing
arrangements as at 31 December 2012 and 2011:

M128318 FHA
As at 31 December Expiration date

20125 20114

2012 2011

ARETT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’'000
B AI R R E Shanghai Future Land Chuanghong 20127H11H
BRATA Real Estate Co., Ltd. - 350,000 11 July 2012
BN R FE E Changzhou Future Land Hongye Real 201247 H26H
BRAF] Estate Co., Ltd. - 400,000 26 July 2012
BMFHRAEREMERME  Changzhou Future Land Chuangjia 20124104238
BRAA Real Estate Co., Ltd - 430,000 23 October 2012
BMFREERMEME  Changzhou Future Land Wanjia Real 20129104258
BHRAF] Estate Co., Ltd. - 150,000 25 October 2012
MRS REHE Nanjing Future Land Wanjia Real 2012911 A30R
BRAA Estate Co., Ltd. - 150,000 30 November 2012
LB ESBEHE Shanghai Future Land Jinjun Real 2012412 A26H
BRAF] Estate Co., Ltd. - 453,000 26 December 2012

- 1,933,000

W RS RARRITER Less: Transaction costs and prepaid
FEFRX interest expenses - (35,837)
- 1,897,163

HZE2012F12A318 ' AEBERHREE A
EAMEBETHERBLERRBNMER - W TAT

BUERY -

As of 31 December 2012, the Group had repaid all
borrowings under the trust financing arrangements
with repurchase obligation before their expiration
and terminated all such arrangements.
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21 fBF @

21

R2012F K2011E12A318 » ERSEZNREE

AFTREAT

BORROWINGS (cont'd)

The maturity of non-current borrowings as at 31
December 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

M12H31H

As at 31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
AR®T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
—EME Between 1 and 2 years 2,700,670 3,671,200
—FhHF Between 2 and 5 years 1,359,000 2,978,000
HBEAF Over 5 years 450,000 -
4,509,670 6,649,200

A2012F 2011512 A318 » JEFHEREF X3

The weighted average effective interest rates as at

REAE 31 December 2012 and 2011 were as follows:
M12H31H
As at 31 December
20124 20114F
2012 2011
ARET T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
RITE Bank borrowings 6.76% 6.69%
ErtRE & HE Trust financing arrangements 13.50% 13.28%
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21 BEX @ 21 BORROWINGS (Cont'd)
REBEROFESEERL REREFEEBHDEH The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest
H(URFEERE) 10T rate changes and the contractual repricing dates or

maturity whichever is the earlier date is as follows:

AMAAFEMA AETZEA -Z5E BBAE CHS
6 months 6-12 Over
or less months 1-5 years 5 years Total

AREBTT  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

HAERFEEMES :  Borrowings included in non-current
liabilities:
#2012912A431H As at 31 December 2012 1,785,600 1,209,370 1,514,700 - 4,509,670
R2011%F12831H As at 31 December 2011 2,284,000 893,000 3,472,200 - 6,649,200
HARBEBEHER Borrowings included in current liabilities:
#2012%12A831H As at 31 December 2012 5,040,436 90,000 - - 5,130,436
R2011%12831H As at 31 December 2011 3,701,363 516,000 - - 4,217,363
REBERVETMEAARBE  YREAREAE The carrying values of the borrowings of the Group
A - are denominated in RMB and approximate their fair
value.
22 FEEMFERRWIKIA 22 ADVANCES FROM PRE-SALE OF
PROPERTIES
rEE Group
AEEEYMELRTRAIHRINAIRABEEYEL AT The Group starts sales of properties and collection
PUTEGRIE o 35 LM% = YRR SRIBEAB FE 35 & TR of proceeds from customers before the properties
AIZIVETE B W S TR URRIR - are completed and ready for delivery. Such proceeds

from customers are recorded as advances from
pre-sale of properties before relevant sales are
recognised.
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23 EZNHAMENTIE 23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
rEH Group
®W12H31H
As at 31 December

20124 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
=) AN S Trade payables 8,223,769 5,950,825
RS Notes payable 637,748 39,121
FEfTBRE S IE (BRE37) Payables to related parties (Notes 37) - 4,404
Ak S 0 o 7 < R T Business and other taxes payable 208,460 200,458
RUREREES Maintenance & decoration fees collected on behalf 122,198 78,958
e Deed tax collected on behalf 127,673 78,311
EstIE Accrued payroll 71,912 62,816
FEAH LB Interest payable 125,396 132,941
fEERREEERAES@) Temporary funding payables (a) 18,000 18,000
HAh Others 61,873 61,255
9,597,029 6,627,089
(a) EERKERESH BENIERE T RE - (a) Temporary funding payables are payables to
TETE BEEE o non-related parties which are non-interest

bearing and unsecured.
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23 EBESMNEHMESTIE @) 23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Cont'd)
F2012FM2011FE12 8318 * B 5 ENTBRER The aging analysis of trade payables and notes
SEMERSTOT payable as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 are as
follows:
MA12H31H
As at 31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
—F R Less than 1 year 8,694,356 5,858,384
—EF Between 1 and 2 years 120,120 88,784
—E=F Between 2 and 3 years 27,644 25,671
=FPE Over 3 years 19,397 17,107
8,861,517 5,989,946
20125 2011912 B 31 El B S E i FE N R IE As 31 December 2012 and 2011, the fair value of
E’j&‘*{ﬂfﬁ;ﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁm trade and other payables approximate their carrying
amounts.
20125 M2011F12 83180 » B 5 MEMFEHRIE As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the carrying
HEmMETFZEUNAREE - amounts of trade and other payables are primarily
denominated in RMB.
¥ NN Company
A12H31H
As at 31 December
20124 20114F
2012 2011
AR¥T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ERNEERA Professional fees payable 13,789 -
FEfT BRI S A (FRE37) Payables to related parties (Notes 37) - 4,404
13,789 4,404

R2012F K20114912 8318 » E5ME b EN B
BRI 2D -

R2012F 20114128318 » BS5ME M EN B
MAREEEEKRAEMRS

F2012F 201146128318 » B ME M EN B
RIBREEY B TTETE -

HiH R IZER AR 2T Future Land Development Holdings Limited —

The aging of trade and other payables as at 31
December 2012 and 2011 are all less than 1 year.

As 31 December 2012 and 2011, the fair value of
trade and other payables approximate their carrying
amounts.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the carrying
amounts of trade and other payables are all
denominated in HKD.

—ZF 4 2012 Annual Report



B RS AR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EHZ2012412 831 H IL4EE For the year ended 31 December 2012

24 BEEFFEH 24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
REME Group
®12A831H
As at 31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BB AMELERIEEE Deferred tax assets to be recovered
—+=—@AR — within 12 months 19,234 89,797
—+=-@A% — after 12 months 341,959 272,843
361,193 362,640
BFEFWELEHEERS Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
—+=-@ARN — within 12 months (22,120) (13,898)
—+-@A% — after 12 months (380,752) (329,339)
(402,872) (343,237)
RERE (BE), BETFHE Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets, net (41,679) 19,403
FEIEFTISHAR B ME B RUOT ¢ The movement on the deferred income tax account
is as follows:
HE12AMBLEE
Year ended 31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
F) At beginning of year 19,403 (52,236)
(%3H),/ BRAHAMBR (Charged)/credited to the consolidated
(F7E30) statement of income (Note 30) (61,082) 71,639
FR At end of year (41,679) 19,403
7201245124318 + ARM47,423,0007T #)3EE A As at 31 December 2012, deferred income
BREEMELEHMESRaBECHEEE (20114F + A tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities
R#23,230,0007T) ° amounted to RMB47,423,000 were offset (2011:

RMB23,230,000).
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24 RIEFREHR ) 24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)
REZE2012F K2011F12A31HLEE - ELEAE The gross movements in deferred income tax assets
MEEMABENREZE CREZEREHER—BHA and liabilities for the years ended 31 December
EREEARLER) DRI 2012 and 2011, without taking into consideration

the offsetting of balances within the same tax
jurisdiction, are as follows:

BERSHRERE Deferred income tax assets
TIHE #i
HEER NEBE EHER  IHEER  AFERS &t
Provisions for Land Elimination of
properties appreciation inter-company
Tax losses  held for sale Accruals tax  transactions Total

ARBTT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R2012%51818 At 1 January 2012 150,744 120,600 14,450 98,384 1,692 385,870
B /(%88 AHFIBER  Credited/(charged) to the consolidated

statement of income 17,058 (33,247) (9,860) 49,562 (767) 22,746

R2012%12A31H At 31 December 2012 167,802 87,353 4,590 147,946 925 408,616

®2011F181A At 1 January 2011 88,498 23,938 5,857 86,873 1,730 206,896
i /() AHTIER  Credited/(charged) to the consolidated

statement of income 62,246 96,662 8,593 11,511 (38) 178,974

R2011%12831H At 31 December 2011 150,744 120,600 14,450 98,384 1,692 385,870

RIEFRBUARANEAR - BISE BN £ AT IR In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations,

RIERTINE w5 A 78 2 M SR B Al LR TR tax losses could be carried forward for a period of

AEDA - ABERALSAGARBEENELTHIBEE five years to offset against its future taxable profits.

= Deferred tax assets relating to unutilised tax losses

are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
such deferred tax assets to be utilised.

REBIWRLM2012F12A3IBEAARE The Group did not recognise deferred income tax
403,407,0007T (20114 = A K #312,028,000 assets of RMB100,852,000 (2011: RMB78,007,000)
o) B BEEERAEENEEMEHEEARKE in respect of tax losses amounting to
100,852,0007C (20114 : A R #78,007,0007T) ° RMB403,407,000 as at 31 December 2012 (2011:
FrEEEHBEEENAFREIE - RMB312,028,000). All these tax losses will expire

within five years.
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24 RIEFRBH @)

24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

ELMEHRAE Deferred income tax liabilities
RENF HENAH
MR REBE BERE  HEFAAN
K KEFAR TRER THER RABIE &t
Fair value
gains on Elimination of  Carpark cost Undistributed
investment  Acquisition of inter-company allocation  profits of PRC
properties  subsidiaries  transactions  differences  subsidiaries Total
ARETTT AEBTFT ARETFT AEETFT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(@)
(note (a))
®2012%181A At 1 January 2012 275,221 6,432 7,465 77,349 - 366,467
T /(85) A6FIER  Charged/(credited) to the consolidated
statement of income 7,172 (3,312) (1,102) 67,833 12,637 83,828
R20125128318 At 31 December 2012 282,993 3,120 6,363 145,182 12,637 450,295
®2011F181A At 1 January 2011 206,848 11,134 9,723 31,427 - 259,132
R4/ (85) AHFIER  Charged/(credited) to the consolidated
statement of income 68,373 (4,702) (2,258) 45,922 - 107,335
®2011%12A318 At 31 December 2011 275,221 6,432 7,465 77,349 - 366,467
(a) M2012%12A318 - AEEBEE 3 H E R (a) As at 31 December 2012, deferred income

WEERGETHREFAB I ARE LS A #t
3 Be F) B 7 B B B S < A TR0 B M SRR AT
FrisfiaE A R#12,637,0005T (20114 :
T)o

MR2012F12A318H - A&E B Kt & B R
NEEEREETHFETFRARABHAR
#2,470,027,0007T (20115 : A R &
1,891,520,0007T) &7 FE [ 7] 93 Ik 4 1| 72 (&
R PE S N R TE B SR AR B A IR PR A5 R
BEARE123,501,0005T (20114 « AR
189,152,0007T) * VMR ZEF HEIEA
BEE -

tax liabilities of RMB12,637,000 (2011: nil)
have been recognised for the withholding
tax that would be payable upon remittance,
in respect of a portion of the unremitted
distributable profits of certain PRC
subsidiaries attributable to the investors
outside PRC.

As at 31 December 2012, deferred
income tax liabilities of RMB123,501,000
(2011: RMB189,152,000) have not been
recognised for the withholding tax that
would be payable upon remittance, in
respect of the unremitted distributable
profits of certain PRC subsidiaries
attributable to the investors outside PRC
amounting to RMB2,470,027,000 (2011:
RMB1,891,520,000) as such profits are
intended to be reinvested.
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25 WA 25 REVENUE
HZE2012F R2011F12A31HILEFE @ AEENE Turnover of the Group consists of the following
EEBREATEERA revenues for the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2011:
BZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20125 20114
2012 2011
ARET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
HEWEIA Revenue from sales of properties 17,341,932 10,688,562
MEESEILA Revenue from property management 121,469 72,088
Hae A Rental income 35,620 4,960
Hth Others 18,245 1,644
17,517,266 10,767,254
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26 HfW A HiBX S HtKs 26 OTHER INCOME/OTHER EXPENSES/
— FH OTHER GAINS — NET
BZE12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December
20125 20114F
2012 2011
AR¥TR ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
HAp A Other income
BT Ah Government grants 4,433 _
BELIFREES Z@EE Compensation for return of land use rights - 5,743
AHEESREEREKA Dividend income on available-for-sale financial
assets 5,042 3,750
SNBSS > B (E(a) Compensation received from a lawsuit (a) = 30,000
9,475 39,493
HihBaxx Other expenses
B Donations (4,347) (6,183)
BIR A SRR R 2 Pre-IPO share award scheme
(M15E19) (Note 19)
—FIERE TEABREKEM - value of former employees, officers and
R EE business partners services = (14,057)
(4,347) (20,240)
Hittz# — 88 Other gains - net
HEREMEE LMY= Gain from disposal of an investment property = 750
HEME MEMBREELRNERE  Losses from disposal of property, plant and
equipment (55) (40)
HEAHEESRHEREEASMUZ  Gains from disposal of available-for-sale financial
(Btsx11) assets (Note 11) = 50,266
BUBEMEHE S S BEE Compensation for cancellation of property
sales contracts 13,686 7,775
Hith Others (5) (675)
13,626 58,076
(@  F201MF12A98 - —HFRBBERIR (@  On 9 December 2011, a lawsuit was settled
R Bl —REREREER2007F % through a legal judgment, according
AN EEEARNASEB I NBEEAR to which, an entity which breached a
#30,000,0007T ° Z B EER2011E12 A cooperative agreement signed in 2007

E

with the Group was judged to pay a
compensation of RMB30,000,000 to the
Group. This compensation was received in
December 2011.

ZZ— 43R 2012 Annual Report ¥4 % B2 KRG MR A 7 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

F-101



F-102

B O SRR ML

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EHZE2012412 831 H [L4EE For the year ended 31 December 2012

27 BMEITHEX
FEASHERA - BE M HRA RITHRBIX 0B %5

27 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and

mar marketing costs and administrative expenses are
analysed as follows:
BZ12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December
20125 20114
2012 2011
ARET T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
T i R AR Land use rights costs 4,025,794 1,634,569
A AR Construction costs 7,684,444 4,640,411
BEAREFIE Capitalised interest 732,328 398,288
BB LM INE ) Business tax and surcharges (a) 977,980 600,515
TLFEYMERERE Accrual of provision for properties
held for sale - 398,726
WME - BMEMBRETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(f5E7) (Note 7) 19,977 16,650
| A EEE (H:E9) Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) 1,531 1,292
RITFEE Bank charges 9,304 16,914
BIAKA (Mf3E29) Staff costs (Note 29) 478,739 326,509
BEE Entertainment expenses 68,393 69,234
ENFERE R E A TR Stamp duty and other taxes 31,739 27,729
EXER Professional fees 32,436 18,983
2 ERAT B & Auditors’ remuneration 3,280 4,250
FEAZ BT R IR X BUR TS & Non-audit service fees to the auditors 237 636
HEMS Sales commission 185,620 123,881
EBEEREEER Advertising and publicity costs 229,603 228,741
HERX Rental expenses 21,897 20,386
=ikE B Travelling expenses 9,451 9,339
HEMmAxz Other expenses 119,422 60,666
HEMA - HEMEHK AR Total cost of sales, selling and marketing costs and
TR X 425t administrative expenses 14,632,175 8,597,719
(a) REBFETFRAAEAREFEEYEWRARN (a) The PRC subsidiaries of the Group are

FASUWMABINS %L ER - MM INE B3R E
EERII0%E12%EH o

subject to business tax and surcharges.
Business tax is levied at 5% of revenue from

sale of properties and rental income, while
surcharges are 10% to 12% of business tax

payable.
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28 BN - FE 28 FINANCE COSTS - NET
BZE12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
AR®T T ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
A& AR Finance costs
— RITEFNETRE B — Interest on bank loans and trust financing
EORIN=N arrangements (1,015,746) (1,025,987)
— W BRMEFE — Less: Interest capitalised
(MsE8 R ffi5t14) (Note 8 and Note 14) 856,034 871,439
BERAERE (M3E34) Total finance costs (Note 34) (159,712) (154,548)
U N Finance income
— RITEZOABEUA (HT3F34) - Interest income on bank deposits (Note 34) 48,052 19,406
B E R AR Net finance costs (111,660) (135,142)
29 BEIRK (BEESMHE) 29 STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS)
BZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20125 20114
2012 2011
ARET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ITEMF< Wages and salaries 360,519 267,606
RARE Pension 30,776 21,898
HAb B Other welfare benefit expenses 50,747 23,537
BIRARBERIRG, REETE Pre-IPO share award scheme
—REREEEAE (FsE19) — value of current employees (Note 19) 36,697 13,468
TIHAGRER (FFsE27) Charged to consolidated statement
of income (Note 27) 478,739 326,509
EE%E Number of employees 4,127 3,384
AEENBETEEESNBBNTRERLEEERER All Chinese employees of the Group participate in
ERERES L SRETE - BRERK  BR X5 defined contribution employee social security plans,
T Hfth 48 M ET & o 78 5 3 30 4 H b 5 KB T A8 Al including pension, medical, housing and other
B welfare benefits, organised and administered by the

governmental authorities. The Group has no other
substantial commitments to employees.
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29 BEIRK (BEEE#ML) @ 29 STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS) (cont'd)
RIEEBET  AEBRIELEN—FLHBEET According to the relevant regulations, the premiums
BBRTEIROER FRIVRBRE M ATES - WA and welfare benefit contributions that should
B) M4 S (REE S AN o be borne by the Group are calculated based on
percentages of the total salary of employees,
subject to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the
labour and social welfare authorities.
(a) EERFIETHAENHE (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments
EENTETHRAEHNMESY AT - The directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments are set out below:
BRAH
#eR BEARA
e H2 ek BWAR  BRUGHEMRR LR Bt
Salaries Retirement Pre-IPO
and other  Performance scheme  share award
#E Name of director Fees  allowances related bonus contributions scheme Total
ARBTFL ARBFT ARBTR ARBTT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BZ201251283181LEE ¢ Year ended 31 December 2012
TRE() Mr. Wang (i) - 1,784 1,200 16 - 3,000
EAR Tan Weimin - 507 960 33 1,148 2,648
Rzt Min Yuansong - 944 1,140 16 1,837 3,937
A®m Liu Yuanman - 704 780 16 1,148 2,648
BN Lv Xiaoping - 1,424 960 16 2,756 5,156
EpE Huang Maoli - 1,080 - - - 1,080
BB (i) Nie Meisheng (i 23 - _ _ _ 3
RER (i) Chen Huakang (i 3 - - - - 3
RIBHE (i) Zhu Zengjin (i) 23 - - - - 23
69 6,443 5,040 97 6,889 18,538
22011128318 LEE © Year ended 31 December 2011
TEE () Mr. Wang (i) - 1,795 1,200 5 - 3,000
ERR Tan Weimin - 529 960 11 a1 1,921
Rzt Min Yuansong - 955 1,140 5 674 2,774
ARw Liu Yuanman - 715 780 5 41 1,921
BV Lv Xiaoping - 1,435 960 5 1,011 3,411
- 5,429 5,040 31 2,527 13,027
0) ARBNEETBRAERTRE - H 0) The chief executive of the Company

MBRRREF—RES -

BIGAE - PRER KRG EN2012F
MAEZEAERRARBLIERITE
$o

(i)

is Mr. Wang, who is also one of the
directors of the Company.
(i) Nie Meisheng, Chen Huakang and
Zhu Zengjin were appointed as
independent non-executive directors
of the Company in November 2012.
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29 EIRK (BESE=EME) @

(b)

TEBREFAL

HE2012F12A318LFE A&EEFR
REESFHATEE=S (2011F : =£&)
BE FEZHEERLEXETNHITHR
Mo B E20129 128318 IEFERNEN T
TRE (20114 : MB) ATHEFBOT

29

STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Cont'd)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2012 include three
(2011: three) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments payable to the
remaining two (2011: two) individuals for
the year ended 31 December 2012 are as
follows:

BZE12A3MBLEE
Year ended 31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EAFH® BEEE - 5 H Basic salaries, housing allowances, Pre-IPO share
BWERIIRMD EEIETE - Hb)EEE award scheme, other allowances and benefits
MEMEA in kind 5,625 3,370
TEAT Bonuses 760 1,180
6,385 4,550

ZMBEANLTZMEHBENT -

The emoluments to the two individuals fell
within the following bands:

BZE12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December

20124 20114
2012 2011

[l Emoluments bands
2,000,001%7T — 2,500,000/ 7T HKD2,000,001 - HKD2,500,000 - 1
2,500,001/% 7% — 3,000,000/8 7T HKD2,500,001 — HKD3,000,000 - 1
3,000,001/ 7T — 3,500,000/8 ¢ HKD3,000,001 — HKD3,500,000 - -
3,500,001/87C — 4,000,000/ 7T HKD3,500,001 — HKD4,000,000 1 -
4,000,001 7C — 4,500,000%8 7T HKD4,000,001 — HKD4,500,000 1 -

(c)

HE2012FR2011F12A31HIEFE - #HE
BEEQAMAGA TR T A TRANEEIKERE
o] B <2 7E & hn B2 ok 72 00 B3 o B B AR &2 [ I Y
BRI E S ERBER A (E -

(o)

During the years ended 31 December
2012 and 2011, no director or any of
the five highest paid individuals received
any emolument from the Group as an
inducement to join, upon joining the Group,
leave the Group or as compensation for loss
of office.
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30 FRSEBEX 30 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
BZ128310LFE
Year ended 31 December
20124 201148
2012 2011
AR®T T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
= HARTS I Current income tax
— B £ (AR — PRC land appreciation tax 636,150 388,216
— RSN - PRC corporate income tax 535,545 624,707
1,171,695 1,012,923
EEFTSE (MI5E24) Deferred income tax (Note 24) 61,082 (71,639)
FRI WS THEEE Total income tax charged for the year 1,232,777 941,284
REBBRAESEATFEM S E A RIRME A AL EE The income tax on the Group’s profit before income
TEARIMEREMOHREAENERESRE - ZH tax differs from the theoretical amount that would
s arise using the enacted tax rate of the home
country of the companies within the Group as
follows:
BZ12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December
20125 20114
2012 2011
AR®ET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
& P 1S 55 A A1) Profit before income tax 2,818,161 2,385,215
R+ I E R PRC land appreciation tax (636,150) (388,216)
2,182,011 1,996,999
H25%E TR B FTEH Income tax calculated at statutory rate of 25% 545,503 499,250
ANBI R R S Non-deductible expenses 17,734 22,096
EISIAON Non-taxable income (1,260) (938)
KHERRBIELFFEBHREENTISEE Tax losses not recognised as deferred tax assets 22,845 32,660
BEFEHIBRAE Prior year tax adjustments (832) -
AR TEFRL PRC withholding tax 12,637 -
F R 4 i 3 (B B PRC land appreciation tax 636,150 388,216
Fristimz 85 Total income tax expense 1,232,777 941,284
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30 FRE®iBEX @)
REISEMESR

RIBFECEMBIE((REMBHRE]D) A%
EETRHPEAMHFRREANEEMSHER

25% °

TEMSHEREERMBAUARTTFREERSEH
2008F 1 ATHRBEANABN M EPBIAING HEZE
IR BREE AR BB MN10% M TENF - 2008
F1IATHANEENADRAT ERRHNZIEN
oo IRIBPEBEEBT OB ROLH  BEEEE
AR ES - Al EREBIEAIS % BT
HZE2012F12A31BILFE - AEEGEPHEE
EEMED BFIRS % M EEHRIREMSHEBA
R #12,637,0007C (20114F : 1) o AREE LTS
ZEFEFRARMNBRERRTEBEB TSR REK

KD IRFZEF R RIHRE D BH -

£ 3t E B

F B 3 S (B 0 A 3 B W) 3R P 1S SR IEDRL 25 AT AL 32
(BRELtEREEEERMABMEMEN) &
T IBE R T F30% E60%8) RHET R B - IR

BHANBRATEMEHRAS

30

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (cont'd)
PRC corporate income tax

Under the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC
("CIT Law"), the CIT rate applicable to the Group’s
subsidiaries located in mainland China is 25%.

The CIT Law and its implementation rules
impose a withholding tax at 10% for dividends
distributed by a PRC-resident enterprise to its
immediate holding company outside PRC for
earnings generated beginning 1 January 2008
and undistributed earnings generated prior to 1
January 2008 are exempted from such withholding
tax. A lower 5% withholding tax rate may be
applied when the immediate holding companies
are established in Hong Kong according to the tax
treaty arrangement between the PRC and Hong
Kong. For the year ended 31 December 2012,
the Group accrued for PRC withholding tax with
amount of RMB12,637,000 (2011: nil) based on
the tax rate of 5% on a portion of the earnings
generated by its PRC entities. The Group controls
the dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that a majority
of these earnings will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

Land appreciation tax

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from
sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including lease charges for land use rights and all
property development expenditures, and is included
in the consolidated statement of income as income
tax expense.
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31 BRER 31 EARNINGS PER SHARE
SRERBAMDIEAANREDZEAEAEGAER Basic earnings per share for the year is calculated
FEBRULFAEETERBRMETIETE - B by dividing the profit of the Group attributable to
BEE20NFRAEEHTEARMETSE  BEH equity holders of the Company by the weighted
(M 351 R BT 5£18) i FA20114F9 8 B 77 M % 1 average number of ordinary shares in issue during
4,250,000,0000% % 1 # 4% /& 48 40 5%4,250,000,000 the year. In determining the weighted average
R F2011F1 H1BRE T ° number of ordinary shares in issue during 2011,

the 4,250,000,000 shares, which were issued and
allotted in September 2011 in connection with the
Reorganisation (Note 1 and Note 18), has been
treated as if the 4,250,000,000 shares were in issue
since 1 January 2011.

BZE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20124 201148
2012 2011
RARERIFEAEGEAGTE Consolidated profit attributable to equity holders
(AR®ETIT) of the Company (RMB’000) 930,819 886,886
BT TR IEFEHE (FR) Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue ("000) 4,368,167 4,250,000
SlRERZF (AR Basic earnings per share (RMB) 0.21 0.21
AR ZEF2012%2011F12 4318 1L FE W E T/ As there were no dilutive options and other dilutive
ErERs MR LB EERUEN B BTG - W potential shares in issue during the years ended
BREEARTNEGRERBFER - 31 December 2012 and 2011, diluted earnings per

share is the same as basic earnings per share.
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32 RE 32 DIVIDENDS
HE12AMBLEE
Year ended 31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BORAR B BB E @R Proposed final dividend of
AR#0.057T RMBO.05 per ordinary share 283,400 -

MR2013F3A27TEBTHNES SR L EFERE
BRMEERKEZE202FERBHRESGR L EBR A
R¥0.057C ° RS EA AV BRE R AR
S - ERERAQGEERRBFASHERE
R A E2013F12 8318 IEFERRDE

B o

33 ARAFRERAERGEER

KA R2010F4A23H M - B 22012412
A31BIUEFE AAREEABRLEEESABAR
#4,058,0007T (20114 : AR ¥3,134,0007T) °

MARRFBERRP AL -

33

At a Board meeting held on 27 March 2013,
the directors proposed a final dividend for 2012
of RMBO0.05 per ordinary share using the share
premium account. This proposed dividend is not
reflected as a dividend payable in these financial
statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation
of share premium for the year ending 31 December
2013 upon approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated on 23 April 2010.
The loss attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to
RMB4,058,000 (2011: RMB3,134,000), which have
been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.
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3 RETFHREBRE 34 CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATIONS
BZ128318LFE
Year ended 31 December
201245 201148
2012 2011
AR®T T ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
R BT 157 A 71 Profit before income tax 2,818,161 2,385,215
MTISIEELFE Adjustments for:
— 8 (5F27) - Depreciation (Note 27) 19,977 16,650
— 5 (fF27) — Amortisation (Note 27) 1,531 1,292
—HEVE  BMEMRBELD — Losses on disposal of property, plant and
&8 (MisE26) equipment (Note 26) 55 40
— HEREMEEENKE — Gains from disposal of investment properties
(Pif7E26) (Note 26) - (750)
- HEMHEECHEEEED — Gains from disposal of available-for-sale
sk (Mf5E26) financial assets (Note 26) = (50,266)
— BRAHABEERRR — Pre-IPO share award scheme expenses
B EIzH (KfFE19) (Note 19) 36,697 27,525
— WEMEALBEK (M5E8) - Fair value gains on investment properties
(Note 8) (31,086) (273,493)
— FE (AP E) HEWE — (Reversal)/accrual of provision for properties
BUERE (EE),FHE held (or under development) for sale
(M1EE14) (Note 14) (132,988) 398,726
— EREE A RIS (Mi5E10) — Share of results of an associated company
(Note 10) 5,110 -
—AHHESREERERA — Dividend income on available-for-sale
(Ft7x26) financial assets (Note 26) (5,042) (3,750)
— RERCAR (M7528) - Finance costs (Note 28) 159,712 154,548
— FIBEUWA (FFEE28) — Interest income (Note 28) (48,052) (19,406)
LEETH Changes in working capital
— ARKEEHNZRHIE® — Restricted cash relating to operating activities
(M$7%17) (Note 17) (603,964) 9,587
—FE+HIER A — Prepayments for leasehold land (1,624,692) 245,642
— R IFENEREEYE — Properties held or under development for sale
("EFEEAREFB) (excluding capitalised interest) 642,330 (6,008,944)
— B NEMEIWEIERTERZKIE - Trade and other receivables and prepayments 57,861 (143,874)
— FEEYETAWRFRTE — Advances from pre-sale of properties (1,111,151) 2,180,925
— B S MEAbFENT FRIE — Trade and other payables 2,977,485 1,877,747
KEEBSR S Cash generated from operations 3,161,944 797,414
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34 REIHFEES @) 34 CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATIONS (Cont'd)
RAMELRESERR  LEYYE  BENBEYRE In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
ZIFEIE proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment comprise:

BZE12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December
201245 20114F
2012 2011
ARBT T ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BREEE (BFE7) Net book value (Note 7) 890 4,153
HEWE MEMBEELWEIE  Losses on disposal of property,
(Ft7x26) plant and equipment (Note 26) (55) (40)
HEWE - HEMRESHE Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 835 4,113
35 RiE 35 COMMITMENTS
(a) IR HARE (a) Property development expenditure
commitments
R2012F KX2011F 128318 © MAREAEER As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, property
ERAENEREZBMT ¢ development expenditure committed but
not yet incurred are as follows:
R12A31H
As at 31 December
20124 20114F
2012 2011
ARET T ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EHEEE ST Contracted but not provided for 8,376,039 6,962,029
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35 RIE @) 35
(b) EEHEEEE (b)

MA2012F K2011F12A8318 » A TUAAA]
BEs G EHERANPBRAZTEFTFMELEN R
REERE T HABEZR A TR A

COMMITMENTS (Cont'd)

Operating lease commitments

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the
future aggregate minimum rental expenses
in respect of certain office buildings held
under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable in the following periods:

MR12H31H
As at 31 December
20124 20114
2012 2011
AR®T T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
—FR Within 1 year 13,399 9,889
—ERF 1 to 5 years 10,432 13,663
23,831 23,552
. (c) Investment commitments
() BERE
R s As at 31 December 2012 and 2011,
$Z_O12¢ R20MF12A318 - BE# R committed investments are as follows:
®12831H
As at 31 December
20125 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
M HESREENRERE Committed investments in available-for-sale
financial assets 55,000 -

(d) ReEESEWES (d) Operating lease rentals receivable
2012 %2011E12H318 » ot i R As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the
WA SRS EREMEEAN R KR future aggregate minimum rental receipts
KR4 WHezms A TEAR &R - under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of land and buildings are receivable
in the following periods:
R12A31H
As at 31 December
20125 20114F
2012 2011
AR®ET T ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—F R Within 1 year 54,217 -
—ERF 1 to 5 years 152,780 -
hF& After 5 years 118,774 -
325,771 -
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36 BIRERESEEE 36 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(a) REREVER (a) Guarantees on mortgage facilities
2012 K20114612 83180 - REEFIZIS The Group had the following contingent
A RHBRIERELANIARBEDNT ¢ liabilities in respect of financial guarantees
on mortgage facilities as at 31 December
2012 and 2011:
M12H318
As at 31 December
20125 20114
2012 2011
ARET T ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RAEEYENETERD Guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities for
ZIBEE 1 AR certain purchasers of the Group’s properties 3,993,685 3,970,751

AEECERAREMEE TERLHRITA
B URERMEREEREER  ZFHE
RGETIREEL L - (VEHEMAEE
MBTRFIEHAER - WE —REERE
KR TFEIME=FANEL - WRRBIR
TTERAE © H(NMEBERBERBERE

REBEERGR EZFERERZBER
i AEEAAERRITEEERERNIZ
BAzEREFNERTE MAKEER
BMRBYMEREIEXELAAER -  AKE
MERPERBIZIBEMERNG  EFZRA
BERER MR A&/ - Bk - BAR
EBEFENUBERERALIFEKX -

The Group has arranged bank financing
for certain purchasers of the Group's
properties and provided guarantees to
secure obligations of such purchaser for
repayments. Such guarantees will terminate
upon the earlier of (i) the issue of the real
estate ownership certificate by government
authorities to the purchaser which will
generally occur within an average period of
two to three years from the completion of
the guarantee registration and submitted to
the mortgage bank; or (ii) the satisfaction
of mortgage loans by the purchasers of the
properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees,
upon default of mortgage payments by
these purchasers, the Group is responsible
to repay the outstanding mortgage principal
together with accrued interest and penalties
owed by the defaulting purchasers to the
banks and the Group is entitled to take
over the legal title and possession of the
related properties. The Group’s guarantee
period starts from the date of grant of
mortgage. The directors consider that the
likelihood of default of payments by the
purchasers is minimal and therefore the
financial guarantee measured at fair value is
immaterial.
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36 UBEARRIBEEE @ 36 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Cont'd)
(b) 2ARERER (b) Corporate guarantees
MR2012F K2011F12 8310 » KAEEMTFA There are certain corporate guarantees
AIGLE R (MiE21) HERESE TREER - provided by the Group’s subsidiaries for
EERAESTRARBRNUKEREMNERE each other in respect of borrowings (Note
1% e 21) as at 31 December 2012 and 2011. The

directors consider that the subsidiaries are
able to sufficiently financially resourced to
settle their obligations.

37 BELIRS 37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) BEFBBREBEESHNBER (a) Name and relationship with related
parties

=1 e

Name Relationship

FoAE AREERERERES

Mr. Wang The controlling shareholder and a director of the Company

TBRIREE TRENKEKE

Mr. Wang Xiaosong Family member of Mr. Wang

BEEBBREAR AT FRAERO DA LB RARHE QT

Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments Limited A company controlled by Mr. Wang and is the Company's
parent company

TN EEEBE AR AR FARAEERA AR

Jiangsu Future Land Shiye Group. Ltd. A company controlled by Mr. Wang

FEBZHEMEREARAT LB EE QA

Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. An associated company of the Group

BERREERBR AR RABHF AR

Hong Kong Prosperity Development Ltd. A subsidiary of the Company

EBEIRERABR LA RARHFAF

Hong Kong Achievement Development Limited. A subsidiary of the Company
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37 BELTRS @ 37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Cont'd)
(b) HEEIHRS (b) Transactions with related parties
NEE Group
B R A BB TR S 1 R A IR AL - & Besides the guarantees as disclosed in Note
giﬁﬁ}b{?ﬁﬁﬁﬁi% : T 21 to the consolidated financial statements,

the Group has the following related party
transactions:

BZ12A31HILLEE
Year ended 31 December
20125 20114F
2012 2011
ARBTT ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(i) MEERSHERRE (i) Disposal of equity interest to a related party
— 1B EESEBR QA — Jiangsu Future Land Shiye Group. Ltd. - 500
(ii) MEAE S B (ii) Fundings to a related party
— FEEZWEMERE — Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng Real Estate
BRAF Development Co., Ltd. - 572,367
(i) HFEEE (iii) Transfer of liabilities
—IHIHERREARAF] — Jiangsu Future Land Shiye Group. Ltd. 44,000 -
(iv)HBESERNMER (3E21)  (iv)Borrowings guaranteed by a related party
(Note 21)
—FEAE — Mr. Wang - 901,500
(v) ERBREFEENYE (v)  Occupation of properties owned by
a related party
AEBETFTFRARMERATEM LR Some subsidiaries of the Group
BWMEREMBEART20F FANET occupied certain properties with
MEELERR  BHASNEIME total gross floor areas of 720 square
o meters owned by Mr. Wang Xiaosong
for operational use, which is free of
charge.
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37 BERRZ @)

(b) REBEINRE (&)

(vi)

T EETE SR

TEEEERRESR (MITMEY
17) ~ MBRE - BlRSM@EENE -
RETIRBENHENTEIREEE
ZHmMPIRIT

37

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Cont'd)

(b) Transactions with related parties
(Cont'd)
(vi) Key management compensation

Key management includes directors
(executive and non-executive), chief
financial officer, vice presidents
and assistant presidents. The
compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is
shown below:

BZE12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December
201245 20114F
2012 2011
ARBT T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FehEMREEESRET Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 36,597 20,866
BEE 2T Post-employment benefits 48 34
36,645 20,900
ZNAC Company
BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20125 20114F
2012 2011
AR®ET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(i) BEEFETERK (i) Fundings to a related party
— BELRRERBRAT - Hong Kong Prosperity Development Ltd. 717,787 -
(i) BREFBX (ii) Paid on behalf of a related party
— BEBIREREBRAF — Hong Kong Achievement Development Limited 60 -
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37 BERARS @)

() EELSHEH

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Cont'd)

(c) Related-party balances

rEE Group
R12A31H
As at 31 December
20124 20114F
2012 2011
AR¥TR ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(i) PEWRBAES FKE (MEE15) (i) Amount due from a related party (Note 15)
— BB EERE — Shanghai Wan Zhi Cheng Real Estate
BRAF Development Co., Ltd. 180,000 390,367
(i) FEATBAE S FE (MizE23) (ii) Amount due to a related party (Note 23)
— BEBABREERAT — Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments Limited = 4,404
b Company
®12H31H
As at 31 December
20125 20114F
2012 2011
ARET T ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(i) FEWBAESKE (MizE15) (i) Amounts due from related parties (Note 15)
—BAARBRERBRAT - Hong Kong Prosperity Development Ltd. 717,787 -
—BBEIRERBERAF — Hong Kong Achievement Development Limited 60 -
717,847 -
(i) FEATBAE S FE (MizE23) (ii) Amount due to a related party (Note 23)
— BEBEBREERAF — Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments Limited = 4,404

FEW AN A BEE T SR BT - B FHERBEA

’REE -

The amounts due from and due to related

parties are unsecured, bear no interest and
are repayable on demand.
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38 FAAEFHIE

RNEBFATR2012F K2011F12 A31 B HHEHE

38 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group as at 31

HEAR December 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
R12A318
EEREED L
Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December
EES BRITH
ARER SR B B HAMEX BRRA 2012% 0115 FEXH
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
Company name establishment capital capital 2012 2011 Principal activities
ARBTR  AR%TR
RMB’000 RMB'000
Jiangsu Future Land Property 26 March 1996 5,000 5,000 53.70% 53.70%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. 199637268 MEER
IEMBNERBERRA
Future Land Holdings Co., Ltd. 14 June 1996 600,000 600,000 91.62% 91.62%  Development and sale of
TREREEERAE 199663 14H properties
MERBRIEE
Jiangsu Future Land Co., Ltd. 10 October 1997 1,593,187 1,593,187 53.93% 53.93%  Development and sale of
LEMMERGBRAF (a) 19974 10A108 properties
MERBRIEE
Changzhou Future Land Real 26 April 1998 1,100,000 1,100,000 51.66% 51.66%  Development and sale of
Estate Development Co., Ltd. 19984 A26H properties
FNFHEEREERAA () NERERHE
Changzhou Wealthzone 27 April 2002 321,800 321,800 93.78% 93.78%  Development sale of
Development Co., Ltd. 2002947278 properties
ENEHBERERAR NERBERHE
Nanjing Future Land Chuangzhi 9 September 2002 120,000 120,000 51.89% 51.89%  Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd. 2002979 A9H properties
BB ERMERRDA MERERHE
Shanghai Future Land Chuangzhi 29 January 2003 210,000 210,000 51.89% 51.89%  Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd. 2003F1729H properties
AN ERMERRAR NEREREE

i 2% R KR AR 2 T Future Land Development Holdings Limited == — =44 %{ 2012 Annual Report
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38 FRAAHE @

AREH

Company name

MBI LB
Date of
incorporation/
establishment

38 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

R12A318
EEREEDL
Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December

Shanghai Future Land Wanjia
Real Estate Co., Ltd.
RN ERRHEBRAR

Shanghai Future Land Wanjia
Property Service Co., Ltd.
TERNERDEREERAT

Changzhou Xinlong Chuangzhi
Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

EMHERE R ERE
BRAE (a)

Suzhou Future Land Wanjia Real
Estate Co., Ltd.
HFMTREREHEBR LA

Changzhou Future Land Wan Jia
Construction Design Co., Ltd.
BB RRERHBRAF

Changzhou Dingjia Property Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
ENGERHEREERAA

Changzhou Future Land Dongjun
Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.
MR R ERE
BRRE

19 March 2003
2003F3A19H

27 November 2003
2003114278

16 September 2004

2004F9A16H

17 September 2004

200449A17H

20 May 2005
2005654 20H

27 May 2005
2005%5A27H

27 December 2005
2005412 8278

ZZ— 43R 2012 Annual Report ¥4 % B2 KRG MR A 7 Future Land Development Holdings Limited

EED BRITH
AMER BRRE 20125 2011F TEEH
Authorised  Issued and
or registered fully paid
capital capital 2012 2011 Principal activities
ARBTR  AR%TR
RMB’000 RMB'000
410,000 410,000 51.89% 51.89%  Development and sale of
properties
MERERHE
500 500 53.52% 53.52%  Property management
MEER
350,000 350,000 53.48% 53.48%  Development and sale of
properties
MERBRIHE
100,000 100,000 51.89% 51.89%  Development and sale of
properties
NERBRHE
3,000 3,000 52.57% 52.57%  Construction design and
consulting
RAERH R
100,000 100,000 51.96% 51.96%  Development and sale of
properties
NERERHE
100,000 100,000 53.75% 53.75%  Development and sale of
properties
MEREREE
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38 FRAREHE @

38 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Cont'd)

R12A318
EEREEDL
Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December

EES BRITH
ARER SR B B HEMER BRRA 2012 201ME  FEXH
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
Company name establishment capital capital 2012 2011 Principal activities
ARBTR  AR%TR
RMB’000 RMB'000
Kunshan Future Land Chuangzhi 7 April 2006 300,000 300,000 51.71% 51.71%  Development and sale of
Development Co., Ltd. 2006F4A7H properties
RUFHAZERERAF NERERHE
Changzhou Future Land Assets 24 October 2006 1,000 1,000 53.70% 53.70%  Asset operation and
Operation and Management 20065104248 management
Co., Ltd. BEEENERE
BN AELEERERLA
Changzhou Future Land Zhidi 13 December 2006 90,000 90,000 51.66% 51.66%  Development and sale of
Real Estate Development 20065127138 properties
Co., Ltd. NEFRBERBE
FNEH B R AR B
BRAF
Changzhou Future Land 13 December 2006 62,000 62,000 91.62% 91.62%  Development and sale of
Guangchang Property Co., Ltd. 2006125138 properties
FMTRESEEXERAR NERERHE
Changzhou Jia Chi Auto Parts 16 January 2007 15,000 15,000 51.66% 51.66%  Marketing research of
Co., Ltd. 2007461 716H properties
BEMER T ERTERAR E R
(REMNEETSREERARF)
Changzhou Wanfang Future Land 6 February 2007 30,000 30,000 51.72% 51.72%  Development and sale of

Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

FMERTHEERE
BARRE

20072 A6H

(2011:20,000) (2011:20,000)

i 2% R KR AR 2 T Future Land Development Holdings Limited == — =44 %{ 2012 Annual Report
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38 FRAAHE @

38 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Cont'd)

M12A31H

ElEREEDL

Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at

31 December

EES BRTH
DAEH SR, R A gmER BRBRA 2012% 015 FE¥E
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
Company name establishment capital capital 2012 2011 Principal activities
AR%TR AR%TR
RMB'000 RMB'000
Changzhou Fu Long Real Estate 6 February 2007 220,000 220,000 91.62% 91.62%  Development and sale of
Development Co., Ltd. 20072 A6H (2011: 10,000) (2011: 10,000) properties
ENRERREREBRAR NERERHE
Changzhou Future Land Wanbo 16 May 2007 615,000 615,000 91.62% 91.62%  Development and sale of
Property Co., Ltd. 200757 16H properties
BMNTREEEEBRAR MERBERHE
Shanghai Dongjun Real Estate 31 May 2007 400,000 400,000 53.93% 53.93%  Development and sale of
Development Co., Ltd. 2007454318 properties
FERBENEREBRAT () MERBRHE
Wuxi Future Land Wanjia Property 14 August 2007 420,000 420,000 53.93% 53.93%  Development and sale of
Co., Ltd. 2007487148 properties
BN EREXERAR NERERHE
Suzhou Future Land Chuangjia 11 October 2007 500,000 500,000 53.93% 53.93%  Development and sale of
Property Co., Ltd. 200741073118 (2011: (2011: properties
BNFHAIEEEBRAT 400,000) 400,000) NERELBE
Changzhou Wanjia Property 18 January 2008 1,000 1,000 53.93% 53.93%  Consulting
Consultancy Co., Ltd. 2008F 1A 18H R
EMNBREXHABRAA
Future Land Wanbo Property 24 January 2008 220,000 220,000 91.62% 91.62%  Development and sale of
Co., Ltd. 2008F 1 H24H properties
BB EXERAR NEREREE

ZZ— 43R 2012 Annual Report ¥4 % B2 KRG MR A 7 Future Land Development Holdings Limited
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38 FRAREHE @

38 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Cont'd)

R12A318
EERERA
Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December

EES BRITH
DAEH SRR RIS gmER BRBRA 2012% 015 FE¥E
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
Company name establishment capital capital 2012 2011 Principal activities
AR%TR ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000
Shanghai Future Land Chuangjia 20 March 2008 760,000 760,000 51.89% 51.89%  Development and sale of
Property Co., Ltd. 200843 H520H (2011: (2011: properties
HETAEEEERL A 210,000) 210,000) MEMABERHE
Changzhou Future Land 4 June 2009 360,000 360,000 53.75% 53.75%  Development and sale of
Dongsheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. 200946 A4 H (2011: (2011: properties
BMFHRARHEERAR 280,000) 280,000) NERERHE
Nanjing Future Land Chuangjia 2 July 2009 18,000 18,000 51.89% 51.89%  Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd. 20097 A2H properties
BRIMEERIERRD A MERBERHE
Changzhou Future Land Jinjun 11 September 2009 470,000 470,000 51.66% 51.66%  Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd. 200997118 properties
FNFHEPRHERRDA (a) MERBRHE
Changzhou Hengfu Property 26 November 2009 20,000 20,000 51.66% 51.66%  Development and sale of
Co., Ltd. 20091173268 properties
FMTEREXERAT (a) NERERHE
Changzhou Future Land Wanjia 10 December 2009 700,000 700,000 51.66% 51.66% (c) Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd. 200912 4108 properties
BNFRBERMESR AT (a) MERERHE
Changzhou Future Land Hongye 28 December 2009 800,000 800,000 91.62% 91.62% (c) Development and sale of

Real Estate Co., Ltd.
FMNTRRERHERRAR

200912 28R
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38 FRAlFE @m 38 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)
R12A318
EEREEDL
Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December
EED BRITH
ARER SR B B AMEX BRRA 2012 20115 FEXH
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
Company name establishment capital capital 2012 2011 Principal activities
ARBTR  AR%TR
RMB’000 RMB'000
Nanjing Future Land Wanjia Real 13 January 2010 310,000 310,000 51.89% 51.89% (c) Development and sale of
Estate Co., Ltd. 2010F1 /138 properties
ERIRERRMERRAF (a) MERERHE
Changzhou Future Land 22 January 2010 520,000 520,000 51.89% 51.89% (c) Development and sale of
Chuangjia Real Estate Co., Ltd.  2010%1A22H properties
BN A R ERE MERBRIHE
BRAT (a)
Shanghai Future Land 26 January 2010 420,000 420,000 51.89% 51.89% (c) Development and sale of
Chuanghong Real Estate 2010514268 (2011: (2011: properties
Co., Ltd. 770,000) 770,000) MERERHE
EFRAIEEERRRA
Changzhou Future Land Keda 4 February 2010 500 500 91.62% 91.62%  Consulting
Investment Consultancy 20102 A4H AR
Co., Ltd.
BMFRRER AR ABR AR
Changzhou Future Land Jingdian 4 February 2010 500 500 91.62% 91.62%  Development and sale of
Architectural Design Co., Ltd. 201052 F4H properties
BMFREBRERTBRAF NERERHE
Shanghai Future Land Nanjun Real 9 February 2010 - - - 51.89%  Development and sale of
Estate Co., Ltd. 201042 A9A (2011: (2011: properties
RN EREMEERAR 550,000) 550,000) MERERHE
Shanghai Future Land Jinjun Real 26 March 2010 820,000 820,000 51.89% 51.89% (c) Development and sale of
Estate Co., Ltd. 20103 A26H (2011: (2011: properties
TR EHEREERAF () 473,000) 473,000) ML LEE
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38 FRAREHE @

38 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

M2A31H
EEREEA T

Percentage of attributable

equity interest as at
31 December

EES BRITH
ARER SR B B HAMEX BRRA 2012% 20115 FEXH
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
Company name establishment capital capital 2012 2011 Principal activities
ARBTR  AR%TR
RMB’000 RMB'000
Wuxi Future Land Chuangzhi Real 6 May 2010 200,000 200,000 53.93% 53.93%  Development and sale of
Estate Co., Ltd. 2010F5A6H properties
EBTNAIERHMEBRAF (a) MERERHE
Changzhou Future Land 12 June 2010 120,000 120,000 91.98% 91.98%  Development and sale of
Wansheng Real Estate Co., Ltd.  2010%6A12H properties
BMFAERERERRAR MERBRIEE
Hong Kong Prosperity 30 August 2010 10 - 100% 100%  Investment company
Development Ltd. 20108 A30H KRELA
BRLBRERBEAA (b)
Hong Kong Achievement 30 August 2010 10 3 100% 100%  Investment company
Development Limited 201098 A30H (2011: ) RAERAT
BRARERBBEAA (b)
Changzhou Future Land Wanbo 8 November 2010 10,000 10,000 91.62% 91.62%  Development and sale of
Commercial Management 2010F1178H properties
Co., Ltd. NERERHE
BN EEEEERERAA
Shanghai Future Land Wansheng 10 November 2010 10,000 10,000 91.62% 91.62%  Development and sale of
Property Co., Ltd. 2010114108 properties
TENNBEEXERAR NERERHEE
Nanjing Future Land Yunsheng 19 November 2010 860,000 860,000 51.89% 51.89%  Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd. 2010611 4198 (2011: (2011: properties
ERIBA N ERERRAR 150,000) 150,000) MERERHE
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38 FRAHE @ 38 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)
R12A31H
EERERAL
Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December
EES BRTH
NAEH SR R SMEE BRRE 20125 015 FE¥E
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
Company name establishment capital capital 2012 2011 Principal activities
AR®TR ARBTR
RMB’000 RMB'000
Changzhou Future Land Hongye 30 November 2010 10,000 10,000 91.62% 91.62%  Development and sale of
Baihuo Co., Ltd. 2010F 1174308 properties
BN EEEEBRAR MEREREE
Wuxi Future Land Wanbo 6 January 2011 500,000 500,000 91.17% 91.17%  Development and sale of
Property Co., Ltd. 201151 A6H properties
EOMYBREEXBRAR MEREREE
Jintan Future Land Wanjun 22 March 2011 10,000 10,000 71.64% 71.64%  Development and sale of
Property Co., Ltd. 2011%3F228 properties
SETFNEBEXERAR MERBERHE
Changsha Future Land Wanbo 28 March 2011 420,000 420,000 91.62% 91.62%  Development and sale of
Property Co., Ltd. 2011%3728H properties
ROFREBEXERAA NERBERHE
Changzhou Wuyue Guangchang 22 April 2011 - - - 91.62%  Department store
Commercial Management 2011948228 (2011: 500)  (2011: 500) management
Co,, Ltd. BEHEEER
EMEHESEEERBR AR
Changzhou Wuyue Baihuo 22 April 2011 500 500 91.62% 91.62%  Department store
Co., Ltd. 201144 /8228 management
EMEHREERAR BEREER
Shanghai Future Land Chuangyu 10 May 2011 30,000 30,000 51.89% 51.89%  Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd. 201154108 properties
FENAEEERRAR MERERHE
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38 FRAlFE @m) 38 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)
R12A318
EEREEDL
Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December
EES BRITH
ARER SR B B HAMEX BRRA 2012 20115 FEXH
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
Company name establishment capital capital 2012 2011 Principal activities
ARBTR  AR%TR
RMB’000 RMB'000
Kunshan Future Land 20 June 2011 370,000 370,000 53.93% 53.93%  Development and sale of
Chuanghong Real Estate 2011%F65208 (2011: (2011: properties
Co., Ltd. 200,000) 200,000) NERERHE
BILFBAIZREFR A
Kunshan Future Land Chuangyu 23 June 2011 100,000 100,000 72.78% 72.78%  Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd. 201165230 properties
BILFHEIE R EFR AR MERBEREE
Changzhou Future Land Rui Vi 7 September 2011 1,000 1,000 51.66% 51.66%  Property, hotel
International Co., Ltd. 2011F9A7H and conference
FEMF R ERBEAR LA management;
apartment leasing
services
mE  BEMGEER
R ABHRERS
Changzhou Jiafeng Market 15 September 2011 5,000 5,000 51.66% 51.66%  Marketing research of
Research Co., Ltd. 2011497158 properties
FMERTSAEERAR ESE I
Changsha Wanbo Property 21 September 2011 500 500 91.62% 91.62%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. 201149A21H MEER
ROBBNEERBRLA
Changzhou Derun Real Estate 25 November 2011 700,000 - - 92.46%  Development and sale of

Co., Ltd.
FNEERERREBRARF

2011 11A258

i 2% R KR AR 2 T Future Land Development Holdings Limited == — =44 %{ 2012 Annual Report

properties

NERERHE



B OB IR RE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EHZ2012412 831 H IL4EE For the year ended 31 December 2012

38 FRAAHE @

38 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Cont'd)

R12A318
EEREEDL
Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December

EED BRITH
ARER SR B B AMEX BRRA 2012 20115 FEXH
Date of Authorised  Issued and
incorporation/ or registered fully paid
Company name establishment capital capital 2012 2011 Principal activities
ARBTR  AR%TR
RMB’000 RMB'000
Changzhou Wuyue International 5 April 2012 5,000 5,000 91.62% - Department store
Plaza Commercial Management 201294 A5H management
Co., Ltd. BEHEEE
ENESERESEEXER
BRRE
Wuhan Future Land Hongsheng 9 May 2012 400,000 400,000 91.62% - Development and sale of
Property Co., Ltd. 20125A9H (2011: (2011: properties
BREMEREEBR DA 10,000) 10,000) NEFRBERBE
Shanghai Fuming Real Estate 7 September 2009 338,000 338,000 51.89% - Development and sale of
Development Co., Ltd. 2009F9A7H (2011: 8,000) (2011: 8,000) properties
LEERRHEREFRAA MERBERHE
Changzhou Kaisheng Real Estate 19 June 2012 20,000 20,000 99.16% - Development and sale of
Co., Ltd. 20125673198 (2011: ) (2011: ) properties
FMABRFHELRERAR NERBERHE
Suzhou Future Land Chuangheng 13 August 2012 20,000 20,000 53.93% - Development and sale of
Real Estate Co., Ltd 2012987134 properties
HMIHAIEEEERAR NERERHE
Shanghai Qingpu Injoy 31 December 2012 5,000 5,000 91.62% - Department store
Commercial Management 2012912 A4318 management
Co., Ltd. BEBEEER
FEERENAEERERRAR
* 2012658168 » AEBAREARE311,157,000c 8 E LEEHFHEREERAT * On 16 May 2012, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in

(TLEEH]) 100%H# - EF25 - WEKBEERNEERE MEFEHAH Bt

EREENWEALK -

Shanghai Fuming Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Fuming”), at a consideration of RMB311,157,000. The directors
consider this acquisition is an asset acquisition in substance rather

than a business combination and therefore is accounted for as an

asset acquisition.
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38 FRAREHE @

38 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Cont'd)

(a) R2012F K2011F12A831H » AARFAA (a) Certain equity interests in the subsidiaries of

ETRECHERT AER (HE21) - BREE

15 BEHTER

as at 31

the Company were pledged for borrowings
December 2012 and 2011,

respectively (Note 21). For details, please
refer to the table below:

R12A31H
As at 31 December
20124 20114F
2012 2011
TTERFTI D ERR D B R A A Number of legal person shares of Jiangsu Future
HEANBREE Land Co., Ltd. 874,500,000 583,000,000
AT ESEHEEMESR AR Percentage of equity interests in Shanghai Future
B Dt Land Jinjun Real Estate Co., Ltd. - 4.23%
ERIMHMEREEEAR AR Percentage of equity interests in Nanjing Future
fEiEE D Land Wanjia Real Estate Co., Ltd. - 51.61%
BN ERIE A AR AT Percentage of equity interests in Changzhou
R#EB D Xinlong Chuangzhi Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. - 100%
FERAEERZEER A A Percentage of equity interests in Shanghai Dongjun
g A=y Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 100% 100%
BMTIEREXERARIRE Percentage of equity interests in Changzhou
Epan=d() Hengfu Property Co., Ltd. (i) 100% 100%
FINETI A E R AERE AR AT Percentage of equity interests in Changzhou
fRHEE Dt Future Land Chuangjia Real Estate Co., Ltd. - 17.31%
HEMEFHEERZEERA A Percentage of equity interests in Changzhou
f&#EH Dt Future Land Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 70% 70%
EIHFIRIE B EGR A A Percentage of equity interests in Wuxi Future
fEEE DL Land Chuangzhi Real Estate Co., Ltd. 100% 100%
BN EEEEREAERAT  Percentage of equity interests in Changzhou
feEBR DL Future Land Wanjia Real Estate Co., Ltd. 100% -
BN SR EEBR AR Percentage of equity interests in Changzhou
I&#EE Dt Future Land Jinjun Real Estate Co., Ltd. 100% -
(i) BMTEREXARARIKRED SR 0) The equity interests in Changzhou

TTER T AR - Rtz b - PR
MAEEMRESRETRELHT

LAHEHR
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38 TFATRFHE @

(b)

(@]

ARBMNBLEFRAERBERBRE MEL
FRAVEAMF AR EENEEREFRME -
BUEFRANEBKL  MHABEMLFAA
R ERHRT -

FIEmMERRETESLALAEEEENE
wAEZS o RENE2011F12831H ° BRTFRE
EARMELY ELEEMNEICRERRE

N/oqdE g
zZs < o
JIIl* mm

RE 120114128318 AEEBUATFA
AN BREA A T T AREERR (M
21) °

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

(b)

The Company has direct equity interests
in these subsidiaries which have direct
or indirect equity interests in the other
subsidiaries. These subsidiaries were
incorporated in Hong Kong and all the other
subsidiaries were established in mainland
China.

The percentage of attributable equity
interest presented was the beneficiary
interests held by the Group. The legal equity
interests in these entities were lower than
the beneficiary interests because of the
existence of trust financing arrangements as
at 31 December 2011.

The Group had legally transferred the
equity interests in the following subsidiaries
as collateral (Note 21) to trust financing
companies as at 31 December 2011.

R12A31H
As at 31 December
201245 20114F
2012 2011
e AI LR ESR AR Shanghai Future Land Chuanghong Property
Co., Ltd. - 45.45%
BN EEREMZEABR AT  Changzhou Future Land Wanjia Real Estate
Co., Ltd. - 62.86%
HRFNEEEERR A A Nanjing Future Land Wanijia Real Estate Co., Ltd. = 48.39%

LisFReEERR AR
BN EEFIMERR AR

BN AIER EREFR AR

Co., Ltd.

Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Future Land Jinjun Real Estate Co., Ltd. - 95.77%
Changzhou Future Land Hongye Real Estate

= 98.75%

Changzhou Future Land Chuangjia Real Estate

- 82.69%
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38 FRAREHE @

BEWM EXFM - AEEESEFBEE THE ARTHE
B50% B ARHE - BEAREERE HIELIBE QAT
0 BEREEARZHESERSRAEELEE AR
FEE - At - EEIBE ARIEAREMBERETS

HEABR -

HZE2012F12A318 ' HAEBHRERE D EFIER

B M LlmEERRE LK &I -

39 HEHRREBR

AN A F 2013415248 % 77 7200,000,000% 7T

10.25% 2018 F 2| BB L =% -

38

39

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

Although the Group legally held less than 50%
equity interests in certain project companies as
indicated above, the Group retained control over
these project companies, and was entitled to
majority beneficiary interests and bore the risks of
these project companies. Accordingly, the project
companies were consolidated into the Group's
financial statements.

As of 31 December 2012, the relevant borrowings
had been repaid before their expiration and all
the above trust financing arrangements had been
terminated.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company issued the USD200,000,000, 10.25%
senior notes due 2018 on 24 January 2013.
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